EXHIBIT OSS – 7

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules - Appendix



BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix

Network Services — Customer Services

Copyright

April, 2001

© BellSouth

Toni Addison 404–927–4305

Notice

BellSouth Telecommunications reserves the right to revise this document for any reason, including but not limited to, conformity with techniques or procedures described or referred to herein. LIABILITY TO ANYONE ARISING OUT OF USE OR RELIANCE UPON ANY INFORMATION SET FORTH HEREIN IS EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED, AND NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, ARE MADE WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR UTILITY OF ANY INFORMATION SET FORTH HEREIN.

Page iii

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00 Issue 9.0, April, 200
·	

Contents

Subj	ubject Pag		
Intro	Purpose	vii vii vii	
1. 1.1	Appendix A	1 1	
2. 2.1	Appendix B	3 3	
3. 3.1	Appendix C	7 7	
4. 4.1	Appendix D	9 9	
5. 5.1	Appendix E	17 17	
6. 6.1	Appendix F	27 27	
7. 7.1	Appendix G UNEPROD Identifier	29 29	
8. 8.1	Appendix H	31 31	
9. 9.1	Appendix I	111 111	
10. 10.1	Appendix J	113 113	
11. 11.1	Appendix K	115 115	
12. 12.1	Appendix L	117 117	
13. 13.1	Appendix M	129 129	
14. 14.1	Appendix N	135 135	
15.	Appendix O	139	

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix Table of Contents

15.1	Multi-Line Hunt Messages	139
16. 16.1	Appendix P	147 147
17. 17.1	Appendix Q	149 149
18. 18.1	Appendix R	151 151
19. 19.1	Appendix S	155 155
20. 20.1	Appendix T	157 157
21. 21.1	Appendix U	159 159
22. 22.1	• • •	161 161
23. 23.1	Appendix W	165 165

Introduction

Purpose

The scope of the document is to provide the Appendices for the BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Document which can be found at the following website:

http://www.interconnection.bellsouth.com/guides/bpobr.html

This document is intended to reflect in as accurate a manner as possible, product and services information. BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., and its subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors and employees are not liable nor responsible for inaccuracies which may be present in this documentation. Please report any discrepancies you may find to your account team.

Version Information

Table A Revision History

Version	Date	Change	Author
9.0	04-23-01	Document adapted to hypertext markup language (html) format	Toni Addison
8.0	11-09-00	Added Appendix W. RSPROD Identifiers	Marsha Harrell
7.0	-	Corrected website in Introduction to: http:/// www.interconnection.bellsouth.com/guides/bpobr.html Deleted from the footer: Proprietary: Not for use or disclosure outside BellSouth except under written agreement Added BellSouth Disclaimer	Edwardine Marrone

- continued -

Page vii

Table A Revision History (continued)

Version	Date	Change	Author
6.0	07-07-00	 Changes: Added Appendix G Added document titile to header Changed font to Verdana Deleted the following statement from the Introduction: This document is intended to reflect in as accurate a manner as possible, product and services information. BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., and its subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors and employees are not lilable nor responsible for inaccuracies which may be present in this documentation. Please report any discrepancies you may find to your account team. Added Appendix T Added Appendix U Added Appendix V 	Edwardine Marrone
5.0	05-31-00	Changes:Add Change History SectionAdd Introduction Section	Edwardine Marrone

1. Appendix A

1.1 Pre-Order Common Messages

Table B Pre-Order Common Messages

Message ID	Message Text	
BLP1001COM	RESOURCE LIMITATION; UNABLE TO PROCESS TRANSACTION - PLEASE RESUBMIT	
BLP1001COM	INVALID INQTYP %; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP1002COM	INVALID INQACT %; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP1003COM	INVALID INQACT % INQTYP % COMBINATION; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP1004COM	INVALID NPA %%%; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP1005COM	INVALID NPANXX %%%%% CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP1006COM	INVALID STATE %%; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP1007COM	INVALID PARTNER %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP1008COM	REQUIRED %%%%%%%%%%% IS MISSING FROM INPUT	
BLP1009COM	RELATED INQUIRY COULD NOT BE LOCATED	
BLP10010COM	INQUIRY ALREADY EXISTS; PLEASE RESUBMIT WITH PROPER RESEND INDICATOR	
BLP10012COM	INVALID SITE CODE FOR STATE %%; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP10013COM	CLLI %%%%%%%%%%; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP10010COM	INQUIRY ALREADY EXISTS; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	
BLP3001COM	APPLICATION ENVIRONMENT COULD NOT BE FOUND	

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-001 Issue 9.0, April, 2001

2. Appendix B

2.1 Valid Values for Thoroughfare

Table C Valid Values for Thoroughfare

Valid Values	Explanation
ALY	Alley
ANX	Annex
ARC	Arcade
AV	Avenue
BEND	Bend
BLK	Block
BDWK	Boardwalk
BLVD	Boulevard
BR	Branch
BTM	Bottom
ВҮР	Bypass
CSWY	Causeway
CTR	Center
CIR	Circle
CV	Cove
СТ	Court
CRES	Crescent
CRK	Creek
CRSG	Crossing
DR	Drive
ESPLND	Esplanade
EST	Estate
EXPWY	Expressway

- continued -

Table C Valid Values for Thoroughfare (continued)

Valid Values	Explanation
EXT	Extension
FRK	Fork
FRWY	Freeway
GRDN	Garden
HBR	Harbor
HL	Hill
HLS	Hills
HOLW	Hollow
нт	Height
HTS	Heights
HWY	Highway
ISL	Island
JCTN	Junction
LK	Lake
LDG	Landing
LN	Lane
LOOP	Loop
MNR	Manor
MKT	Market
MT	Mount
MTN	Mountain
NK	Neck
PASS	Pass
PATH	Path
PK	Park
PKWY	Parkway
PR	Peir

Table C Valid Values for Thoroughfare (continued)

Valid Values	Explanation
PKE	Pike
PL	Place
PLZ	Plaza
PT	Point
PD	Pond
PROM	Promenade
PVT DR	Private Drive
RDG	Ridge
RD	Road
RDWY	Roadway
RT	Route
RO	Row
RU	Run
SQ	Square
STA	Station
ST	Street
TER	Terrace
THRWY	Thruway
TRC	Trace
TR	Trail
TRNPK	Turnpike
VLG	Village
WK	Walk
WAY	Way
WHF	Wharf
YD	Yard

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00
	Issue 9.0, April, 200

3. Appendix C

3.1 Values for Location Fields in Address Validation Requests

Table D Values for Location Fields in Address Validation Requests

Field Name	Uses For	Required Prefix	Usage Example
FLOOR	ELEVATION		
	Floor	FLR	FLR13
BUILDING	STRUCTURE		
	Building	BLDG	BLDGC
	Pier	PIER	PIER4
	Wing	WING	WING1
ROOM	UNIT		
	Apartment	APT	APT A-1
	Lot	LOT	LOT G
	Room	RM	RM 1
	Slip	SLIP	SLIPA3
	Suite	SUIT	SUIT403C
	Unit	UNIT	UNIT12

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00 Issue 9.0, April, 200

4. Appendix D

4.1 Location Standards Abbreviations

Table E Location Standards Abbreviations

If LOC Information is	Then, Use This Data Element	And, Use This Abbreviation
Administration Building	BLDG	Admin
Arcade	UNIT	Arcade
Atrium	FLR	Atrium
Attic	FLR	Attic
Auditorium	UNIT	Auditorium
Automatic Teller Machine	UNIT	ATM
Back	SEE REAR	
Ballroom	RM	Ball
Bar	UNIT	Bar
Barn	BLDG	Barn
Barracks	BLDG	Brcks
Basement	FLR	Basement/Bsmt
Bay	UNIT	Bay
Beach House	BLDG	Bch Hse
Beauty Salon	UNIT	Beauty Shp
Berth	SLIP	Berth
Block	UNIT	Block/Blk
Boatominium	UNIT	Boato
Booth	UNIT	Booth
Botel	UNIT	Botel
Breakroom	UNIT	Brkrm
Breezeway	FLR	Brzwy
Bungalow	UNIT	Bnglw

- continued -

If LOC Information is	Then, Use This Data Element	And, Use This Abbreviation
Bunkhouse	UNIT	Bunkhse
Business Service Center	UNIT	BSC
Cabana	UNIT	Cabana
Cabin	UNIT	Cabn
Cafeteria	UNIT	Cafeteria/Cafe'
Campground	UNIT	Campgrnd
Canteen	UNIT	Canteen Car
Carriage House	UNIT	Crge Hse
Cashier	UNIT	Cashier/Cshr
Center	UNIT	Center
Central	Note 2	Cntrl
Central Office	UNIT	Cntrl Ofc
Church	BLDG	Church
Clubhouse	BLDG	Clubhouse/Clubhse
Cluster	BLDG	Cluster/Clstr
Coach	UNIT	Coach
Coin Service Center	UNIT	Coin
Commercial	UNIT	RSC, BSC, PSC
Computer Room	RM	Computer
Concession Stand	UNIT	CSN Stand
Concourse	BLDG	Concourse/Conc
Condominium	BLDG	Condo
Conference Room	UNIT	Conf
Construction Site	UNIT	Constr Ste
Construction Trailer	UNIT	Constr Trl
Control Tower	BLDG/UNIT	Twr/Control
Corner	Note 2	Crnr

Appendix D

Table E Location Standards Abbreviations (continued)

If LOC Information is	Then, Use This Data Element	And, Use This Abbreviation
Corporate Communications	UNIT	Corp Comm
Cottage	UNIT	Ctge
Courthouse	BLDG	Courthouse
Department	UNIT	Dept.
Direct Mail Center	UNIT	DMC
Division	UNIT	Divn
Dock	PIER	Dock
Downstairs	FLR	Down
Duplex	UNIT	Dupl
East	Note 2	Е
Efficiency	Apt	Efcny
Elevator	UNIT	Elevatr
Emergency	UNIT	Emergncy
Employee Lounge	UNIT	
Entrance	Note 2	Entr
Equipment Room	RM	Equipment
Exhibit Hall	UNIT	Exh H1
Fairgrounds	UNIT	Fairgrnd
Field House	BLDG	Field Hse
First	Note 2	1
Flight Svc Tower	BLDG/UNIT	Twr/Fligh Svc
Foyer	UNIT	
Front	UNIT	Frnt
Front House	BLDG	Front Hse
Game Room	RM	Game
Garden Apt	UNIT	Garden
Garage	UNIT	Grge

Table E Location Standards Abbreviations (continued)

If LOC Information is	Then, Use This Data Element	And, Use This Abbreviation
Gate	UNIT	Gate
Gatehouse	BLDG	Gate Hse
Ground	FLR	Grnd
Guard House	UNIT	Guard Hse
Guard Shack	UNIT	Guark Shk
Guesthouse	BLDG	Guest Hse
Gymnasium	UNIT	Gym
Hallway	UNIT	Hlsy
Health Center	UNIT	Health Ctr
Honeymoon	SUIT	Honeymoon
Houseboat	UNIT	Hseboat
Housekeeping	UNIT	Hsekpng
Inside	UNIT	Inside
Instant Banker	UNIT	Inst Bank
Interexchange Cust Svc Center	UNIT	ICS
Kiosk	UNIT	Kiosk
Kitchen	UNIT	Kitchen
Lanai	UNIT	Lanai
Laundry	UNIT	Lndry
Leasing Office	UNIT	Leasng Ofc
Left	Note 2	L
Level	FLR	Lvl
Loading Area	UNIT	Load Area
Loading Dock	UNTI	Load Dock
Lobby	UNIT	Lobby
Locker Room	RM	Locker
Loft	FLR	Loft

Table E Location Standards Abbreviations (continued)

If LOC Information is	Then, Use This Data Element	And, Use This Abbreviation
Lounge	UNIT	Lounge
Lower	FLR	Lwr
Main	FLR	Main
Main Right Rear	UNIT	Main R RR
Maintenance	UNIT	Mtc
Manager	UNIT	Mgr
Manager's Office	UNIT	Mgr Ofc
Meeting Room	UNIT	
Mezzanine	FLR	Mezz
Middle	UNIT	Mddl
North	UNIT	N
Nurses Station	UNIT	Nurses Sta
Office	UNIT	Ofc
Outside	UNIT	Outside
Packing House	BLDG	Pkg Hse
Parking Garage	UNIT	Prk Grge
Parlor	UNIT	Parlor
Parsonage	BLDG	Parsonage
Pastorium	BLDG	Pastorium
Patio	UNIT	Patio
Penthouse	UNIT	PH
Photo Hut	UNIT	Photo Hut
Plaza	FLR	Plaza
Plaza Level	FLR	Plz Lvl
Pool Area	UNIT	Pool
Presidential	SUIT	Presidentl
Press	UNIT	Press

Table E Location Standards Abbreviations (continued)

If LOC Information is	Then, Use This Data Element	And, Use This Abbreviation
Pro Shop	UNIT	Pro Shop
Quadplex	UNIT	Quadplex
Quarters	BLDG	Qts
Rear	Note 2	Rr
Rear House	BLDG	Rr Hse
Receiving Department	UNIT	Dept.
Recreation	RM	Rec
Rectory	UNIT	Rectory
Restaurant	UNIT	Restrnt
Restroom	RM	Restrm/Restrm Men/Rstrt Women
Right	Note 2	R
Runway	UNIT	Runway
Residence Service Center	UNIT	RSC
Section	UNIT	Sect
Security	UNIT	Security
Service Centers	UNIT	Svc Ctrs
Shack	BLDG	Shk
Shipping Department	UNIT	Dept. Ship
Shop	UNIT	Shop
Shopping Plaza	BLDG	Shpng Plz
Side	APT	Side
South	Note 1	S
Space	UNIT	Space
Stable	UNIT	Stbl
Stall	UNIT	Stall
Station	UNIT	Sta
Store	UNIT	Str

Table E Location Standards Abbreviations (continued)

If LOC Information is	Then, Use This Data Element	And, Use This Abbreviation
Student Union	BLDG	Student Un
Studio	APT/UNIT	Studio
Terminal	BLDG / UNIT	Terminal
Terminal Room	UNIT	Term
Terrace	UNIT	Terrace
Тор	FLR	Тор
Tower	BLDG /FLR	Tower
Townhouse	APT	Tnhse
Trailer	UNIT	Trl
Triplex	UNIT	Trpl
Truckers Lounge	UNIT	
Upper	FLR	Upr
Upstairs	FLR	Up
Villa	BLDG	Villa
Waiting Room	RM	Waiting
Warehouse	BLDG	Wrhse
West	Note 2	W
Wharf	SLIP	Wharf

Note: 1: If used as directional, show letter only; if used for designation, spell out word.

Note: 2: This living unit location, direction or designation is valid for use with any LOC code.

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00 Issue 9.0, April, 200

5. Appendix E

5.1 Cross Boundary States

The following list will assist you with Cross Boundary State communities. All the communities that exist in more than one Address Validation site.

```
BAREFT BAY, FL - South Florida

BAREFOOT BAY, FL - North Florida

BELMONT, MS - Mississippi

BELMONT, MS - Alabama

BENNETTSVL, SC - South Carolina

BNTSVL, SC - North Carolina

BLKSBG, SC - South Carolina

BLKSBG, SC - North Carolina

BLKSBG, SC - North Carolina

BLKSBG, SC - North Carolina

BLKSBG, SC - Rorth Carolina
```

CHESNEE, SC - South Carolina

CHESNEE, SC - North Carolina

CHEWALLA, TN - Tennessee

CHEWALLA, TN - Mississippi

CHICKAMAUGA, GA - Tennessee

CHICKAMAUGA, GA - Georgia

CLARKSVILLE, TN - Tennessee

CLARKSVILLE, TN - Kentucky

CLOVER, SC - South Carolina

CLOVER, SC - North Carolina

EPWORTH, GA - Tennessee

EPWORTH, GA - Georgia

FELLSMERE, FL - South Florida

FELLSMERE, FL - North Florida

FIVE PTS, AL - Georgia

FIVE POINTS, AL - Alabama

FLINTSTONE, GA - Tennessee

FLINTSTONE, GA - Georgia

FORT OGLETHORPE, GA - Tennessee

FORT OGLETHORPE, GA - Georgia

FRTHST, AL - Georgia

FRUITHURST, AL - Alabama

GASTONIA, NC - South Carolina

GAST, NC - North Carolina

GEOTWN, GA - Georgia

GEORGETOWN, GA - Alabama

GOLDEN, MS - Mississippi

GOLDEN, MS - Alabama

GRHM, AL - Georgia

GRAHAM, AL - Alabama

GUYS, TN - Tennessee

GUYS, TN - Mississippi

HAMER, SC - South Carolina

HAMER, SC - North Carolina

HORN LAKE, MS - Tennessee

HORN LAKE, MS - Mississippi

IRON CITY, TN - Tennessee

IRON CITY, TN - Alabama

KINGS MTN, NC - South Carolina

KINGS MTN, NC - North Carolina

LAKE CORMORANT, MS - Tennessee

LAKE CORMORANT, MS - Mississippi

LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN, GA - Tennessee

LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN, GA - Georgia

MARTIN, TN - Tennessee

MARTIN, TN - Kentucky

MC*COLL, SC - South Carolina

MC*C, SC - North Carolina

MICHIE, TN - Tennessee

MICHIE, TN - Mississippi

MICHIGAN CITY, MS - Tennessee

MICHIGAN CITY, MS - Mississippi

MINERAL BLUFF, GA - Tennessee

MINERAL BLUFF, GA - Georgia

MORRIS, GA - Georgia

MORRIS, GA - Alabama

MSCDN, AL - Georgia

MUSCADINE, AL - Alabama

NESBIT, MS - Tennessee

NESBIT, MS - Mississippi

OLIVE BRANCH, MS - Tennessee

OLIVE BRANCH, MS - Mississippi

POCAHONTAS, TN - Tennessee

POCAHONTAS, TN - Mississippi

POPLARVILLE, MS - Mississippi

POPLARVILEE, MS - Louisiana

PORTLAND, TN - Tennessee

PORTLAND, TN - Kentucky

QUARLES, AL - Georgia

QUARLES, AL - Alabama

RAMER, TN - Tennessee

RAMER, TN - Mississippi

RNBRN, AL - Georgia

RANBURNE, AL - Alabama

RINGGOLD, GA - Tennessee

RINGGOLD, GA - Georgia

RISING FAWN, GA - Tennessee

RISING FAWN, GA - Georgia

ROBERTSDL, AL - North Florida

ROBERTSDALE, AL - Alabama

ROSSVILLE, GA - Tennessee

ROSSVILLE, GA - Georgia

SOUTH FULTON, TN - Tennessee

SOUTH FULTON, TN - Kentucky

TRENTON, GA - Tennessee

TRENTON, GA - Georgia

UNION CITY, KY - Tennessee

UNION CITY, KY - Kentucky

UNION CITY, TN - Tennessee

UNION CITY, TN - Kentucky

VERO BCH, FL - South Florida

VERO BEACH, FL - North Florida

WALLS, MS - Tennessee

WALLS, MS - Mississippi

WILDWOOD, GA - Tennessee

WILDWOOD, GA - Georgia

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00 Issue 9.0, April, 200

6. Appendix F

6.1 Rate Zone Mileage

One of the fields on the Address Validation response is the RTZ field. Data will be populated in this field only when appropriate. The RTZ is zone mileage, for a local channel terminated outside of the base rate area, individual line. The table below will aid in determining the correct USOC.

Table F Rate Zone Mileage

RTZ Code	Valid USOC
1	1LS11
2	1LS12
3	1LS13
4	1LS14
5 or E	1LS15
6 or F	1LS16
7 or G	1LS17
8 or H	1LS18
9 or I	1LS19

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-001 Issue 9.0, April, 2001

7. Appendix G

7.1 UNEPROD Identifier

Table G UNEPROD Identifier

UNEPROD IDENTIFIER	UNEPROD IDENTIFIER DESCRIPTION
0	Not a UNE to Calculate
1	Unbundled Loops
2	Loop Concentration - Loop Channelization System
3	Loop Concentration - Central Office Channel Interfaces (2 Wire/4 Wire Voice)
4	Sub Loops - Loop Feeder
5	Sub Loops - Loop Concentration
6	Network Interface Loop
7	Open AIN
8	CCS7
9	Unbundled Interoffice Transport (Excluding Dark Fiber)
10	O/S and DA UNEs
11	Customized Call Routing
12	Unbundled Local Switching - 2 Wire Analog Line Port
13	Unbundled Local Switching - Hunting
14	Unbundled Local Switching - 2 Wire Analog DID Trunk Port
15	Unbundled Local Switching - 2 Wire Digital Line Side Port
16	Unbundled Local Switching - 4 Wire ISDN DS1 Digital Trunk Port
17	Unbundled Local Switching - Switching Functionality
18	Unbundled Local Switching - Unbundled Local Usage (Entire Local Calling Area)
19	Unbundled Access to OSS
20	Access to Databases - 800 Database
21	Access to Databases - Line Information Database (LIDB)

- continued -

Table G UNEPROD Identifier (continued)

UNEPROD IDENTIFIER	UNEPROD IDENTIFIER DESCRIPTION
22	Interim Number Portability - RCF, Non-Complex Services
23	Interim Number Portability - RCF, Complex Services
24	Interim Number Portability - DID Initial Request (Trunk Group to be Established)
25	Interim Number Portability - DID Subsequent Request (Trunk Group in Place)
26	Local Number Portability - Not Complex Services
27	Local Number Portability - Complex Services
28	Physical Collocation - Ordinary
29	Physical Collocation - Extraordinary
30	Virtual Collocation - Ordinary
31	Virtual Collocation - Extraordinary

8. Appendix H

8.1 Services Available

The following tables provide information concerning services offered in BellSouth. The column headings are defined as:

Product Name - The full service name. The valid entries are up to 25AN.

Feature Title - The feature associated with the service name. The valid entries are up to 25AN.

T - This field denotes when there is a trademark or service mark associated with a given service/feature. Valid characters for this field:

- TM— Trademark
- SM— Service Mark
- R— Registered

Product ID - The system abbreviation for the service/feature. The valid entries are up to 6AN. If a specific feature is requested, the complete product ID is required. If a list of services/features is desired, send the first 2-3 characters of the Product ID followed by a percent sign (%). For example:

If the Product ID field is populated with "CCR%" the response would return:

CCRACF | REM ACC OF CALL FWD VAR

CCRCFW | REM ACC CF VAR W/O CL CMP.

A maximum of 10 services may be requested per transaction.

Table H Services Available

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ADWATCH	ADWATCH		AAW
AIN TOOLKIT	AIN TOOLKIT		AT
AIN TOOLKIT	CUSTOM DIAL PLAN TRIGGER		ATCD

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
AIN TOOLKIT	FEATURE CODE TRIGGER		ATFC
AIN TOOLKIT	OFF-HOOK DELAY TRIGGERS		ATOD
AIN TOOLKIT	OFF-HOOK IMMEDIATE TRIGGER		ATOI
AIN TOOLKIT	TAT TRIGGERS		ATT
AIN TOOLKIT	10 DIGIT PODP TRIGGERS		ATTP
AIN TOOLKIT 6 DIGIT PODP TRIGGERS AT6P	6 DIGIT PODP TRIGGERS		AT6P
ALTERNATE ROUTING	ALTERNATE ROUTING		ALTRTG
AMS-SVC ORDER REQUESTS	AMS-SVC ORDER REQUESTS		AMSSO
ANSWER SUPV'N LINE SIDE	ANSWER SUPV'N LINE SIDE		ASPLS
AREA CLG PLAN-MS	AREA CLG PLAN-MS		AACP
AREA CLG PLAN-TN	AREA CLG PLAN-TN		ACP
AREA CLG SVC-AL ONLY	AREA CLG SVC-AL ONLY		ACS
AREA CLG SVC-KY	AREA CLG SVC-KY		ACSK
AREA PLUS SERVICE	AREA PLUS SERVICE		APSSC
AUTO CKT & TRNK MONITORNG	AUTO CKT & TRNK MONITORNG		ACTMON
AUTO NMBR IDENT VIA FGB	AUTO NMBR IDENT VIA FGB		ANI-B
AUTO NMBR IDENT VIA FGD	AUTO NMBR IDENT VIA FGD		ANI-D
AUTO NUMBER IDENTIFICATN	AUTO NUMBER IDENTIFICATN		ANID
AUTO PROTECTION SWITCHING	AUTO PROTECTION SWITCHING		APS
BACK-UP LINE	BACK-UP LINE	SM	BUL
BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE	BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE		BLD

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE	BEST PLAN DOMESTIC		BLDF
BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE	BEST PLAN DOMESTIC/INT		BLDB
BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE	DOMESTIC VOLUME DISCOUNT		BLDA
BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE	GLOBAL CALLING CARD		GLDJ
BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE	INTERN'TL ADVANTAGE		BLDG
BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE	ITERN'TL SELECT B		BLDI
BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE	PERFORMANCE		BLDE
BELLSOUTH LONG DISTANCE	PLATINUM BL		BLCD
BELLSOUTH.NET	BELLSOUTH.NET		BN
BELLSOUTH.NET	FASTACCESS		BNFA
BILLED NUMBER SCREENING	BILLED NUMBER SCREENING		BNS
BRIDGING	BRIDGING		BRDG
BSLD TOLL FREE	BASIC TOLL FREE		BTFA
BSLD TOLL FREE	BSLD PREMIER TOLL FREE		BTFP
BSLD TOLL FREE	BSDL TOLL FREE		BTF
BSLD TOLL FREE	DISCOUNT FAVORITE LOC		BTFD
BSLD TOLL FREE	DOMESTIC DOLLAR DISCOUNT		BTFC
BSLD TOLL FREE	PREMIER TF ADDL LIST		BTFM
BSLD TOLL FREE	PREMIER TF CALL BLOCKING		BTFN
BSLD TOLL FREE	PREMIER TF LISTING		BTFL
BSLD TOLL FREE	VOLUME DISCOUNT		BTFB

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
BUS. ANNOUNCEMENT SERVICE	BUS. ANNOUNCEMENT SERVICE		ABAS
C. O. BLOCK W/OPR SCREEN	C. O. BLOCK W/OPR SCREEN		COBOS
CALL DETAIL CALL DETAIL ACD	CALL DETAIL		ACD
CALL DETAIL CDP	CALL DETAIL-PODP TRIGGERS		ACDP
CALL DETAIL	CALL DETAIL-TAT TRIGGERS		ACDT
CALL DETAIL INFO - ACCESS	CALL DETAIL INFO - ACCESS		CDI-A
CALL DETAIL INFORMATION	CALL DETAIL INFORMATION		CDINFO
CALL PATTERNS	CALL PATTERNS		ACAP
CCSAC+	CCSAC=		64CCCS
CLLD DN DELIV VIA 900NXX	CLLD DN DELIV VIA 900NXX CD		CDN9
CLLG BN DELIV VIA GATEWAY	CLLG BN DELIV VIA GATEWAY		CBNG
COIN PH-POST DIAL DTMF	COIN PH-POST DIAL DTMF		CNDTMF
COMMUNITY CIRCLE PLAN-NC	COMMUNITY CIRCLE PLAN-NC		OCP1
CONDITIONING	CONDITIONING		COND
COURTESYCOMPLETE	COURTESYCOMPLETE		CMP
COURTESYCOMPLETE	COURTESYCOMPLETE DACC		CMPA
COURTESYCOMPLETE	COURTESYCOMPLETE DACC2		СМРВ
CRISISLINK	CRISSISLINK		ACL
CUST SERVICE AREAS (ACCS)	CUST SERVICE AREAS (ACCS)		CSAACC
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL FORWARDING VARIABLE		CCCF
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL FWD DA-RING CONTROL		CCCFRC

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL FWD DONT ANS		CCCFDA
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL FWD DONT ANS CL WTG		CCCFCW
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL FWDG BUSY LN		CCCFBL
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL HOLD		СССН
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL PICK UP		CCCPU
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL TRANSFER		CCCT
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL WAITING		CCCW
CUSTOM CALLING	CALL WAITING DELX W/CONF		CCCWDC
CUSTOM CALLING	CF VAR ACT W/O CRTSY CALL		CCFWCC
CUSTOM CALLING	CFBL/DA CUST FWD TO NO		CCFFTN
CUSTOM CALLING CCF	CL FWD BY LINE MULTIPATH		CCFBMS
CUSTOM CALLING	CL FWD DNT ANS MULTIPATH		CCCFDMS
CUSTOM CALLING	CL FWD VAR MULTIPATH		CCCFMS
CUSTOM CALLING	CL FWD VAR W/O CL CMPLT		CCCFVW
CUSTOM CALLING	CONTROL/CANCEL CL WAITING		CCCCW
CUSTOM CALLING	UST CTL CALL FWD BY LINE		CCCCBL
CUSTOM CALLING	CUST CTL CALL FWD DNT ANS		CCCCD
CUSTOM CALLING	CUSTOM CALLING		CC
CUSTOM CALLING	FLEXIBLE CALL FORWARDING	SM	CCFCF
CUSTOM CALLING	PER USE 3 WAY CALLING		CCUS3
CUSTOM CALLING	REM ACC CF VAR W/O CL CMP		CCRCFW
CUSTOM CALLING	REM ACC OF CALL FWD VAR		CCRACF
CUSTOM CALLING	REM CL FWD MULTIPATH		CCRACM
CUSTOM CALLING	SPONTANS 3 WAY CALL/USE		CCSUS3
CUSTOM CALLING	3 WAY CALLING		CC3
CUSTOM CALLING	30 CODE SPEED CALLING		CCSC3
CUSTOM CALLING	8 CODE SPEED CALLING		CCSC8

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
CUSTOM SERVICE AREAS	CUSTOM SERVICE AREAS		CSAS
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR		CCR
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	INTERNATIONAL CALL BLOCK		CCRICB
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	OPTION DIALLING 1		CCR1
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	OPTION DIALING 1B		CCRA
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	OPTION DIALING 2		CCR2
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	OPTION DIALING 3		CCR3
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	OPTION DIALING 3B		CCRB
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	OPTION DIALING 4		CCR4
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	OPTION DIALING 5		CCR5
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	OPTION DIALING 6		CCR6
CUSTOMIZED CODE RESTR	900 PAY PER CL SVC BLOCK		CCR900
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	ALTERNATE ANSWERING		CDPAA
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	AUTO CALLBACK CALLING		CDPAC
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	CALL FWD BUSY LINE		CDPBL
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	CALL FWD VARIABLE		CDPCF
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	CALL HOLD		CDPCH

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	CALL PICKUP		CDPCP
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	CALL WAITING		CDPCW
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	CONFERENCING		CDPC
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK		CDP
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	DIST RING & CW TONE		CDPDR
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	INCOMING RESTRICTION		CDPIR
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	LDSPKR PAGING ACCESS		CDPLP
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	OUTGOING RESTRICTION		CDPOR
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	SPEED CALL 30		CDPSC3
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	SPEED CALL 6		CDPSC6
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	SPEED DIAL		CDPSD
CUSTOMIZED DIALING PK	USER TRANSFER		CDPUT
CUTOFF ON DISCONNECT	CUTOFF ON DISCONNECT		COD
DATA OVER VOICE	DATA OVER VOICE		DOV
DATAREACH	DATAREACH		ADR
DDCS - DSO B FACILITY	DDCS - DSO B FACILITY		DDCSF
DDCS - DSO B INTERFACE	DDCS - DSO B INTERFACE		DDCSI
DED ALERT TRANSPORT	DED ALERT TRANSPORT		ATBSA
DED DERIVED CHANNEL	DED DERIVED CHANNEL		DCBSA

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
DED METALLIC BSA	DED METALLIC BSA		METBSA
DED NTWK ACCESS LINK	DED NTWK ACCESS LINK		NALBSA
DED PRIVATE LINE BSA	DED PRIVATE LINE BSA		PLBSA
DED PROGRAM AUDIO BSA	DED PROGRAM AUDIO BSA		PABSA
DED TELEGRAPH BSA	DED TELEGRAPH BSA		TELBSA
DID	DID		DID
DID TRUNK QUEUING	DID TRUNK QUEUING		DIDTQ
DID WITH USE TRANSFER	DID WITH USER TRANSFER		DIDUT
DIST RING TERM SCREEN	DIST RING TERM SCREEN		DRTS
DTMF SIGNALING ON DID	DTMF SIGNALING ON DID		DTMF
DYNAMIC ALLOC OF TRAN CAP	DYNAMIC ALLOC OF TRAN CAP		DYNALL
EASY CALLING PLAN	EASY CALLING PLAN		СР
EASY CALLING PLAN	PLAN NO. 1		CP1
ENHNCD AREA CLG PLAN	ENHNCD AREA CLG PLAN		ACPE
EOEAS	BELLE GLADE-W PALM		EOEBW
EOEAS	BIG PINE KY-KEY WEST		EOEBK
EOEAS	BOCA-FT LAUDERDALE		EOEBF
EOEAS	BUNNEL-DAYTONA BCH		EOEUD
EOEAS	BUNNEL-DAYTONA		EOEBD
EOEAS	DELRAY BCH-W PALM BCH		EOEDW
EOEAS	EOEAS		EOE
EOEAS	FERNANDINA BCH-JAX		EOEFJ
EOEAS	FLGLER BCH-DAYTONA BCH		EOEFD
EOEAS	FT GEORGE - JAX BCH		EOEGJ
EOEAS	FT PIERCE-VERO		EOEFV

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
EOEAS	GENEVA - ORLANDO		EOEGO
EOEAS	HOBE SND - W PALM BCH		EOEHW
EOEAS	HOLLEY / NAVARE - MILTON		EOEHNM
EOEAS	HOLLYWOOD - MIAMI		ЕОЕНМ
EOEAS	K LRGO - HMSTD/MIA/PRIN		EOEKM
EOEAS	KEYSTONE HTS - GNSVILLE		EOEKG
EOEAS	N DADE ARCH CRK - FT LDL		EOENF
EOEAS	N KEY LARGO - HMSTEAD		EOENH
EOEAS	N KEY LARGO - MIAMI		EOENM
EOEAS	NEWBERRY - TRENTON		EOENT
EOEAS	OAK HILL - DAYTONA BCH		EOEOD
EOEAS	PAHOKEE - W PALM BCH		EOEPW
EOEAS	PALM COAST - DAYTONA		EOEPD
EOEAS	SANFORD - ORLANDO		EOESO
EOEAS	ST AG-JX/PT VDRA/JLGTN		EOESP
EOEAS	STUART - W PALM BCH		EOESW
EOEAS	SUNY HLS - LYN HVN/PC		EOESL
EOEAS	TRENTON - GAINSVILLE		EOETG
EOEAS	TRENTON - NWBERRY/GNSVL		EOETN
EOEAS	VERO BCH-FT PRCE		EOEVF
ESSX	ACCNT CODE ACC REC (G)		EACAR
ESSX	ACD BASIC (G)		EACDB
ESSX	ACD CALL PROCESS CONTR (G)		EACDCC
ESSX	ACD CALLED NM/NO DISPL (G)		EACDCD
ESSX	ACD ENHANCED (G)		EACDEH
ESSX	ACD FEATURE PACKAGE (G)		EACDFP
ESSX	ACD LD MNG BASIC CMMDS (G)		EACDLM

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	ACD MULTI QUE STAT LMP (G)		EACDMQ
ESSX	ACD ON 2500 SET		EO25S
ESSX	ACD REMOTE LOAD MNG (G)		EACDRL
ESSX	ACT/DEACT OF MSG WTG (G)		EADAMW
ESSX	AF-ACCESS LINE (G)		EAAL
ESSX	AF-ATT ACC PROT CT/OSI (G)		EOSIP
ESSX	AF-ATT ACT DEACT CF (G)		EACACF
ESSX	AF-ATT CALL WAIT LAMP (G)		EACAL
ESSX	AF-ATT CALL-DETAIL ENT (G)		EACDE
ESSX	AF-ATT CAMP W/DIST TN (G)		EACODT
ESSX	AF-ATT CTL OF VOICE TE (G)		EACVT
ESSX	AF-ATT EXT CLS TO CFBN (G)		EAECBA
ESSX	AF-ATT KEY CONTROL (G)		EAAKCT
ESSX	AF-ATT MESSAGE STG (G)		EAAMW
ESSX	AF-ATT T O D NCOS (G)		ETDNCS
ESSX	AF-AUDIO ON INC CL QUE (G)		EAIICQ
ESSX	AF-AUTODIAL (G)		EAD
ESSX	AF-AUTOMATIC RECALL AT (G)		EARA
ESSX	AF-BUSY VERF STA & TRK (G)		EABVST
ESSX	AF-BUSY VERIFICATN TRK (G)		EABVT
ESSX	AF-BUSY VERIFICTN STA (G)		EABVS
ESSX	AF-CALL PARK RCALL TIM (G)		EACPRT
ESSX	AF-CALL PARK//UNPARK (G)		EACPK
ESSX	AF-CALL THROUGH TEST (G)		EACTT
ESSX	AF-CAMP ON WITH MUSIC (G)		EACOWM
ESSX	AF-CAMP-ON (G)		EACO
ESSX	AF-CODE CALL ACCESS (G)		EACCA

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	AF-CONFERENCE (G)		EAC
ESSX	AF-CONROL OF FACILITIES (G)		EACF
ESSX	AF-CTRL OF VFG ACCESS (G)		EACVA
ESSX	AF-CTRL-GLOBAL VFG ACC (G)		EACGVA
ESSX	AF-CTRL-TRK GROUP ACCS (G)		EACTGA
ESSX	AF-DELAY OPERATION (G)		EADO
ESSX	AF-DIAL THRU ATTND (G)		EADTA
ESSX	AF-DO NOT DISTURB (G)		EADND
ESSX	AF-DTMF END-TO-END SGN (G)		EADTMF
ESSX	AF-EMERGENCY OVERRIDE (G)		EAEO
ESSX	AF-FLEX CONSOLE ALERT (G)		EAFCA
ESSX	AF-FLEX INC CALL RESTR (G)		EAFICR
ESSX	AF-FLEXIBLE DISP LANG (G)		EAFDL
ESSX	AF-FLEXIBLE INTERCEPT (G)		EAFI
ESSX	AF-GLOBAL VFG BUSY (G)		EAGVB
ESSX	AF-GROUP BUSY ID (G)		EAGBI
ESSX	AF-GROUP TRK ACCSS CTL (G)		EAGTAC
ESSX	AF-GROUP TRUNK BUSY (G)		EAGTB
ESSX	AF-ISDN ATTNT CONSOLE (G)		EAIAC
ESSX	AF-MULTI LIST DIR NBR (G)		EAMLD
ESSX	AF-MULTI POS HUNT W QU (G)		EAMPHQ
ESSX	AF-MULTI POSITION HUNT (G)		EAMPH
ESSX	AF-NDATA LK CTL CL EXT (G)		EANDLC
ESSX	AF-NET ATT B VYD STAT (G)		EANBVS
ESSX	AF-NET CAMP-ON-1 (G)		EANCO
ESSX	AF-NIGHT SERVICE (G)		EANSFL
ESSX	AF-NIGHT SERVICE FIXED (G)		EANSF

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	AF-POSITION (G)		EAP
ESSX	AF-POSITION BUSY (G)		EAPB
ESSX	AF-QUERY-TIME KEY (G)		EAQTK
ESSX	AF-RELEASE ON COMP DIAL (G)		EARLK
ESSX	AF-SECRECY ATTENDANT (G)		EASECA
ESSX	AF-SERIAL CALL ATTNDNT (G)		EASCA
ESSX	AF-SERVICE (G)		EAS
ESSX	AF-SIMPLE MSG INTERFCE (G)		EASMI
ESSX	AF-SOURCE BILL ATT HD (G)		EASBAC
ESSX	AF-STA DID RESTRICTION (G)		EADIDR
ESSX	AF-THRU DIALING (G)		EATD
ESSX	AF-TRANSFER ATTENDANT (G)		EATRAT
ESSX	AF-TRK ANSW FR ANY STA (G)		EATAAS
ESSX	AF-TRK BUSY VERIF TONE (G)		EATBVT
ESSX	AF-TRUNK GROUP BUSY (G)		EATGB
ESSX	AF-UCD (G)		EAUCD
ESSX	AF-UCD FROM QUEUE ATT (G)		EAUCDA
ESSX	AF-VFG ACCESS CONTROL (G)		EATVAC
ESSX	AF-VFG BUSY (G)		EAVB
ESSX	AF-WILD CARD ACCESS (G)		EAWCA
ESSX	ANONYMOUS CALL REJECTN (G)		EACR
ESSX	AP-BASIC RATE INTERFACE (G)		EAPBRI
ESSX	AP-IOP INTERFACE (G)		EAII
ESSX	ARS-AUTHORIZATION CODE (G)		EACARS
ESSX	ARS-BASIC (G)		EARS
ESSX	ARS-ERWT (G)		EARSE
ESSX	ARS-IDDD VIA ARS (G)		EIDDDA

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	ARS-OFFHOOK QUEUING (G)		EARSO
ESSX	ARS - QUEUING, CALLBACK (G)		EARSC
ESSX	ARS-6 DIGIT SCREENING (G)		EARS6
ESSX	ASSUMED DIAL 9 (G)		EAD9
ESSX	AT-RECORDED ANNOIUNCMNT (G)		EARAAT
ESSX	AUTH CODE IMMED DIAL (G)		EACIMD
ESSX	AUTH VERIF AND RECORD (G)		EAACVR
ESSX	AUTHORIZATION CODES (G)		EAUTC
ESSX	AUTO ANSWER BACK (G)		EAAB
ESSX	AUTO CALL DIST-MIS (G)		EACDIS
ESSX	AUTO CALLBACK/RING AGN(G)		EACBR
ESSX	AUTO CIRCUITS ASSUR (G)		EACA
ESSX	AUTO DIAL SET (G)		EADS
ESSX	AUTO ID OUT DIAL B G (G)		EAIOD
ESSX	AUTO LINE AND MADN (G)		EALM
ESSX	AUTO LINE/DIR CONNECT (G)		EADC
ESSX	AUTO ROUTE SEL (PBX) (G)		EARSP
ESSX	AUTODIAL (G)		EAUTD
ESSX	AUTOMATIC INSPECT MODE (G)		EAIM
ESSX	AUTOMATIC LINE I (G)		EALI
ESSX	BASIC STATION LINE HTG (G)		EBSLH
ESSX	BLIND TRANS REC ID (G)		EBTRID
ESSX	BLIND TRANSFER RECALL (G)		EBTREC
ESSX	BUSINESS SET INTERCOM (G)		EBSINT
ESSX	BUSY OVERRIDE (G)		EBOV
ESSX	CALL BACK QUE BUS SET (G)		ECBQBS
ESSX	CALL BACK QUEUE ENH (G)		ECBQEH

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	CALL BLOCK, PER SYS/LN (G)		ECLBLK
ESSX	CALL DELAY ANNOUNCEMENT (G)		ECDAN
ESSX	CALL FORWARDING VAR (G)		ECFDVA
ESSX	CALL FORWD ENHANCMENTS (G)		ECFE
ESSX	CALL FWD BUSY LINE (G)		ECFBL
ESSX	CALL FWD BY LN INC ON (G)		ECBLIO
ESSX	CALL FWD BY LN PROG I (G)		ECFBLP
ESSX	CALL FWD DNT ANS PRG I (G)		ECFDAP
ESSX	CALL FWD DONT ANS INC (G)		ECFDAI
ESSX	CALL FWD DONT ANSWER (G)		ECFDA
ESSX	CALL FWD INC ONLY (G)		ECFIO
ESSX	CALL FWD PRIVATE FAC(G)		ECFPF
ESSX	CALL FWD REASON DISPLY(G)		ECFR
ESSX	CALL FWD VARIABLE (G)		ECFV
ESSX	CALL FWD W/IN GRP ONLY (G)		ECFWGO
ESSX	CALL FWD/AUT DIAL DISP(G)		ECFADD
ESSX	CALL HOLD (G)		ECH
ESSX	CALL HOLD II/PERM HOLD(G)		ECH2
ESSX	CALL PARK I (G)		ECPK
ESSX	CALL PARK RECALL IDENT(G)		ECPRI
ESSX	CALL PICKUP (G)		ECP
ESSX	CALL PICKUP BUS SET (G)		ECPBS
ESSX	CALL RETURN PER SYS/LN(G)		ECLRT
ESSX	CALL SELECTOR, SYS/LN (G)		ECS
ESSX	CALL TRACE PER SYS/LN (G)		ECLTR
ESSX	CALL TRANSFER (G)		ECT
ESSX	CALL TRANSFER I (G)		ECTRI

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	CALL WAITING (G)		ECW
ESSX	CALL WAITING BUS SET (G)		ECWBS
ESSX	CALL WAITING EXEMPT I (G)		ECWEXI
ESSX	CALL WAITING INDCAT II(G)		ECWIII
ESSX	CALL WAITING ORIG (G)		ECWO
ESSX	CALL WAITING RINGBCK I(G)		ECWRBI
ESSX	CALL WAITING TERMINTNG(G)		ECWT
ESSX	CALL WTG IND II (G)		ECWII
ESSX	CALL WTG ORIG FOR B/S (G)		ECWOBS
ESSX	CALLER ID, NUMBER DEL (G)		ECID
ESSX	CALLG/CALLD NBR DISPLY(G)		EISACN
ESSX	CALLING NAME DISPLAY (G)		ECNMD
ESSX	CALLING NBER DEL BLOCK(G)		ECNDB
ESSX	CALLNG NAME/NO DEL BLK(G)		ECNNDB
ESSX	CALLNG NUMBER DELIVERY(G)		ECNDL
ESSX	CANCEL CALL WAITING (G)		ECCW
ESSX	CCSA LINE OPTION (G)		ECCSLA
ESSX	CCSA VFG OPTION (G)		ECCSVF
ESSX	CENT DATA FAC POOLING (G)		ECDFP
ESSX	CENTRALZED ATTNDNT SVC(G)		ECAS
ESSX	CENTREX ELECTRONIC KEY(G)		ECEK
ESSX	CF/DA - ESSX HUNT GRP (G)		ECFDAE
ESSX	CFBL/DA INT/EXT SPLT (G)		ECFIES
ESSX	CLG NBR DEL BLOCK-CALL(G)		ECNDBC
ESSX	CODE CALLING (G)		ECCA
ESSX	CODE CALLING ANSWER II(G)		ECCAII
ESSX	CODE RESTRICTION (G)		ECR

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
ESSX	CODE RSTRCTN ARRGMT (G)		ECRA
ESSX	COMMON BLOCK (G)		ECB
ESSX	CONFERENCE USE CONTROL(G)		ECVC
ESSX	CONFERENCE-STA CONTROL(G)		ECC
ESSX	CONSULTATION HOLD (G)		ECHILD
ESSX	CUST CHANGEABLE SC (G)		ESC3DC
ESSX	CUST CTRL STA RESTRICT(G)		ECCSR
ESSX	CUST DIAL ACCT RECORD (G)		ECDAR
ESSX	CUSTOMER GRP TRANSPRN (G)		ECGTI
ESSX	CUT THROUGH DIALING (G)		ECUTD
ESSX	DATA CALL PROTECTION (G)		EDCP
ESSX	DECAS (G)		EDECAS
ESSX	DELAY ANNCMT ON QUEUE (G)		EDA
ESSX	DELUXE QUEUING (G)		EDQ
ESSX	DIAL "0" CALLING (G)		EADOC
ESSX	DIAL CALL WAITING (G)		EDCW
ESSX	DIAL CALL WTG -BUS/SET(G)		EDCWBS
ESSX	DIAL CODE SENDING ACCS(G)		EDCSA
ESSX	DIAL DICTATION (G)		EDD
ESSX	DIAL THRU ATTENDANT (G)		EDTA
ESSX	DIR CPU BARGE IN EXMPT(G)		EDCPBE
ESSX	DIR CPU NB IN EXEMPT (G)		EDCPNE
ESSX	DIR CPU NON BARGE IN (G)		EDCPN
ESSX	DIR CPU W/OUT BARGE IN(G)		EDCPNB
ESSX	DIRECT CONNECT (G)		EDC
ESSX	DIRECT INWRD SYSTM ACC(G)		EDISA
ESSX	DIRECT LN MNUAL LN SVC(G)		EDCM

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
ESSX	DIRECT OUTWARD DIALING(G)		EDOD
ESSX	DIRECTED CALL PARK (G)		EDICP
ESSX	DIRECTED CPU B I T II(G)		EDCPIT
ESSX	DIRECTED CPU BARGE IN (G)		EDCPB
ESSX	DIRECTRY NO NET ATTRIB(G)		EDNNAT
ESSX	DISA THIRD DIAL TONE (G)		EDITDT
ESSX	DISPLAY (G)		EDISPL
ESSX	DISPLAY AND PRIVACY (G)		EDP
ESSX	DISPLAY CALLED NUMBER (G)		EDCDN
ESSX	DISPLAY CALLING NUMBER(G)		EDCGN
ESSX	DISTINCTIVE RING & CW (G)		EDRCWT
ESSX	DISTINCTIVE RINGING (G)		EDR
ESSX	DISTINCTV CL WTG TONES(G)		EDCWT
ESSX	DISTNCTVE CL WTG RING (G)		EDCWRB
ESSX	DO NOT DISTURB (G)		EDND
ESSX	EBS AS MESSAGE CENTER (G)		EEMSMS
ESSX	ECAS (G)		EECAS
ESSX	ELCTRNC DIRECTORY SVC (G)		EEDS
ESSX	ELCTRNC MSG REG SVC (G)		EEMRS
ESSX	ELECTRNC TELEPHONE SVC(G)		EETS
ESSX	ESS-OUTWARD CALLNG FTR(G)		EEOCF
ESSX	ESSX	R	ESSX
ESSX	ETS-ACCOUNT CODES (G)		EEAC
ESSX	ETS-ARS (G)		EEARS
ESSX	ETS-ARS DELUXE (G)		EEARSD
ESSX	ETS-AUTHORIZATON CODES(G)		EEAVC
ESSX	ETS-AUTO ALTERNATE RTE(G)		EEAAR

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	ETS-CUSTOMER ADMIN (G)		EETSCA
ESSX	ETS-DELUXE QUEUING (G)		EEDQ
ESSX	ETS-FAC ASSURANCE RPT (G)		EEFAR
ESSX	ETS-FAC RESTRICT LEVEL(G)		EEFRL
ESSX	ETS-FACILITY ADMIN CTL(G)		EEFAC
ESSX	ETS-OFFHOOK QUEUING (G)		EEOHQ
ESSX	ETS-OVERFLOW TO TOLL (G)		EEOTT
ESSX	ETS-SMDR (G)		EESMDR
ESSX	ETS-SMDR-CDAR (G)		EESC
ESSX	ETS-TIE LINE (G)		EETL
ESSX	ETS-TIME OF DAY ROUTNG(G)		EETDR
ESSX	ETS-TRAFC DATA TO CUST(G)		EETDC
ESSX	ETS-UNIFORM NUMBERING (G)		EEUN
ESSX	EXCHANGE CIRCUIT (G)		EMSC
ESSX	EXEC BUSY OVERRD EXMPT(G)		EEBOE
ESSX	EXEC BUSY OVERRDE EX I(G)		EEBOEI
ESSX	EXECUTIVE BUSY OVERRDE(G)		EEBO
ESSX	EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE (G)		EEC
ESSX	EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE I(G)		EECNFI
ESSX	FACILITIES MANAGEMENT (G)		EFM
ESSX	FOREIGN EXCH FORIGN CO(G)		EFXFCO
ESSX	FULLY RESTRICTED SVC (G)		EFRS
ESSX	FUNC SGN ACC- MDC FEA (G)		EFSAEF
ESSX	GROUP INTERCM ALL CALL(G)		EGIAC
ESSX	GROUP INTERCOM (G)		EGI
ESSX	GROUP INTERCOM I (G)		EGINTI
ESSX	HOT LINE STATIONS (G)		EHLS

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	HUNTING, REGULAR (G)		EHSC
ESSX	IDENTIFIED OUTWARD DIAL(G)		EIOD
ESSX	INDIV PAGE GRP INTERCM(G)		EIPGI
ESSX	INTERCOM (G)		EI
ESSX	LAST NO REDIAL ASST (G)		ELNRAS
ESSX	LAST NUMBER REDIAL I (G)		ELNRI
ESSX	LEAVE WORD CALLING (G)		ELWC
ESSX	LINE IDENTIFICATION (G)		ELI
ESSX	LOUDSPEAKER PAGE ANSII(G)		ELPAII
ESSX	LOUDSPEAKER PAGE/ANSWR(G)		ELPAGA
ESSX	MADN RING FORWARD (G)		EMDRF
ESSX	MADN SNGL BRIDG ARRGMT(G)		EMDSBA
ESSX	MAIN STA EXTENSION SVC(G)		EMSE
ESSX	MAKE BUSY ARRANGMNT II(G)		EMBAII
ESSX	MAKE BUSY EX GRP INTC (G)		EMBEGI
ESSX	MAKE BY EX TERM(MS/LN)(G)		EMBET
ESSX	MAKE LN BUSY ALL CALLS(G)		EMLBAC
ESSX	MAKE LN BUSY INTRAG I (G)		EMLBII
ESSX	MAKE SET BUSY (G)		EMSB
ESSX	MBKS FEATURE BUTTON (G)		EMBKFB
ESSX	MBPS MULT CALL APP (G)		EMBKCA
ESSX	MDC ORG RSTR (G)		EMDCOR
ESSX	MEET ME CONF SEC CODE (G)		EMMCSC
ESSX	MEET ME CONFERENCE (G)		EMMC
ESSX	MEET ME CONFERENCE I (G)		EMMCI
ESSX	MESSAGE SERVICE (G)		EMS
ESSX	MIS DOWN STRM PROCSSR (G)		EMISDS

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	MISC LINE TERM-TIE LN (G)		EMLTTL
ESSX	MISC LINE TERMINATIONS (G)		EMLT
ESSX	MULT APP DN MCA-NRSM (G)		EMCANR
ESSX	MULTI APP DIR NO (G)		EMADN
ESSX	MULTI APP DN MCA-RSM (G)		EMCARS
ESSX	MULTI APP DN SCA-NRSM (G)		ESCANR
ESSX	MULTI APP DN SCA-RSM (G)		ESCARS
ESSX	MULTILINE HUNT GROUPS (G)		EMHG
ESSX	MUSIC ANNC ON HOLD I (G)		ЕМАОНІ
ESSX	MUSIC ANNOUNCE ON HOLD(G)		ЕМАОН
ESSX	MUSIC ON HOLD BUS SET (G)		EMOHBS
ESSX	MUSIC ON QUEUE (G)		EMOQ
ESSX	M52/M53 SET DISPLAY (G)		EM5253
ESSX	NAME DISP MADN SEC MEM(G)		EMDMD
ESSX	NET WIDE AUTO RT SEL (G)		ENWARS
ESSX	NET WIDE RING AGAIN (G)		ENWRA
ESSX	NETWORK ACCESS LIMITER(G)		ENAL
ESSX	NETWORK ACCESS REGISTR(G)		ENAR
ESSX	NETWORK CLASS OF SVC (G)		ENCOS
ESSX	NETWORK DIAL PLAN DISP(G)		ENDPD
ESSX	NETWORK INFO SIGNAL (G)		ENIS
ESSX	NETWORK NUMBER DISPLAY(G)		ENND
ESSX	NETWORK SPEED CALLING (G)		ENSC
ESSX	NIGHT SERVICE FIXED (G)		ENSF
ESSX	NIGHT SERVICE FLEXIBLE(G)		ENSFL
ESSX	NIGHT SVC-ANS ANY STA (G)		ENSTA
ESSX	NTWK NA DISP-ATT COL (G)		ENNDAC

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	ONHOOK DIALING (G)		EOHD
ESSX	OUT TRK QUEUING-WATS (G)		EOTQ
ESSX	OUTGOING CALL SCREEN (G)		EOCS
ESSX	OVERFLOW MSG IND II (G)		EOMIII
ESSX	PERSONAL CALL SCREEN I(G)		EPCSI
ESSX	POSITION HUNT (G)		EPOHT
ESSX	PREFERENTIAL HUNTING (G)		ЕРНТ
ESSX	PREFERRED CALL FORWARD(G)		EPCF
ESSX	PRESET CONFERENCE (G)		EPC
ESSX	PRIV FAC POOLING (G)		EPFP
ESSX	PRIV REL CONF CONT (G)		EPRCC
ESSX	PRIVATE VIRT NET ENH (G)		EPVNE
ESSX	PRIVATE VIRTUAL NET (G)		EPVN
ESSX	PROGRAMMABLE LN SELECT(G)		EPRLNS
ESSX	PROHIBIT 10XXX DIALING(G)		EP10X
ESSX	PROHIBT INTERLATA DIAL(G)		EPILD
ESSX	PVN ATTENDANT SERVICE (G)		EAPVNS
ESSX	QUERY BUSY STATION (G)		EQBS
ESSX	QUERY TIME/DAY (G)		EQTD
ESSX	QUEUING (G)		EQ
ESSX	QUEUING, CALL BACK (G)		ECBQ
ESSX	QUEUING, OFFHOOK (G)		EOHQ
ESSX	RADIO PAGING (G)		ERP
ESSX	RECORDED ANNOUNCEMENT (G)		ERANN
ESSX	RECORDED TEL DICTATION(G)		ERTDA
ESSX	REGULAR HUNTING DCO (G)		ЕНТ
ESSX	RELEASE LINK TRKS (G)		ERLT

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	REMOTE ACTVN OF CL FWD(G)		ERACF
ESSX	REPEAT DIALING, SYS/LN(G)		ERD
ESSX	SEC MADN CALL FORWARD (G)		ESMDCF
ESSX	SEMI RESTRICTED SVC (G)		ESEMI
ESSX	SEQUENTIAL HUNTING (G)		ESH
ESSX	SHORT HUNT (G)		ESHTHT
ESSX	SHORT HUNT DMS (G)		ESHHT
ESSX	SIMP MSG DESK INTERFAC(G)		ESMDI
ESSX	SIMPLIFIED DIALING (G)		ESIMDL
ESSX	SIMULATED FAC GRP I/O(G)		ESFG
ESSX	SIX PORT CONFERENCING(G)		E6PCNF
ESSX	SIX PRT CON AUTO CODE(G)		ESPCAC
ESSX	SMDR (G)		ESMDR
ESSX	SMDR-CDAR (G)		ESMCD
ESSX	SMDR-PREM (G)		ESMDRP
ESSX	SMDR-RAO-CDAR (G)		ESMDRC
ESSX	SMDR-REG ACTG OFFICE (G)		ESMDRR
ESSX	SPEED CALL LONG, IND.(G)		ESC3I
ESSX	SPEED CALL LONG, LIST (G)		ESCL12
ESSX	SPEED CALL SHORT, IND.(G)		ESCS
ESSX	SPEED CALL SHORT, LIST (G)		ESC6F
ESSX	STA CONTR OUTGONG RSTR(G)		ESCOR
ESSX	STA DIAL CODE SCREEN (G)		ESDCS
ESSX	STA DID RESTRICTION (G)		ESDIDR
ESSX	STA HTG ARRNGMNTS II (G)		ESHAII
ESSX	STA HTG-CIRC HUNT (G)		ESHCH
ESSX	STA HTG-MULTLN HNT GRP(G)		ESHMHG

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX	STA HTG-SERIES NON-SEQ(G)		ESHSNS
ESSX	STA HTG-SERIES SEQ (G)		ESHSS
ESSX	STA HTG-UCD (G)		ESHUCD
ESSX	STA MESSAGE WTG LAMP (G)		ESTMWL
ESSX	STA MSG WTG LAMP IND I(G)		EMWLII
ESSX	STA NUMBER CORRELATION(G)		ESNC
ESSX	STA ORIGINATION RESTR (G)		ESOR
ESSX	STA REST IN/OUT EX ACC(G)		ESRIOA
ESSX	STATION ACT CFBL/DA (G)		ESACBD
ESSX	STATION ACT DND W/REMD(G)		ESADND
ESSX	STATION CONFERENCE (G)		ESATCN
ESSX	STATION IDENTIFICATION(G)		ESI
ESSX	STATION MESSAGE WAIT (G)		ESMWA
ESSX	STATION RESTRICTION (G)		ESR
ESSX	STATION SPEC AUTH CODE(G)		ESPAC
ESSX	STOP HUNT/MAKE BUSY KY(G)		ESHMBK
ESSX	STUTTR DIAL TONE-MWIA (G)		ESDTMW
ESSX	SUBSIDIARY SYS ARRGMNT(G)		ESSA
ESSX	THREE WAY CALL CHAINNG(G)		ETWCC
ESSX	THREE WAY CONF/HOLD/TR(G)		ETWCCT
ESSX	THREE WAY CONFERENCE (G)		ETWCF
ESSX	TIME OF DAY NCOS (G)		ETNCOS
ESSX	TOLL DIVERSION (G)		ETDTR
ESSX	TOLL RESTRICTION (G)		ETDR1
ESSX	TRAFFIC DATA TO CUST (G)		ETDC
ESSX	TRK ANS FROM ANY STA (G)		ETAAS
ESSX	UCD QUEUE-STATUS LAMP (G)		EUCDQL

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
ESSX	UCD W/DELAY ANNOUNCEMT(G)		EUCDD
ESSX	UNBUN ARS DELUX (G)		EUARSD
ESSX	UNBUN ARS DX W/AUTO CD(G)		EUARAC
ESSX	UNBUN ETS DLX QUEUE (G)		EUETSQ
ESSX	UNBUN FAC ADM & CNTRL (G)		EUFADC
ESSX	UNBUN SMDR (G)		EUSMDR
ESSX	UNIFORM CALL DISTRBUTN(G)		EUCD
ESSX	VAR LNGTH DIG DIAL TRS(G)		EVLSDL
ESSX	VIRT FAC GRP LOOKAHEAD(G)		EVFGLA
ESSX	VOICE DATA PROTECTION (G)		EVDP
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	ADD'L APP. OF SHARED DN		EIAAS#
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	ADD'L CALL APPEARANCES		EIADCL
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	ADD'L DIRECTORY NUMBER		EIADN
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	ADD'L LOGICAL CHANNEL		EIALC
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	CKT SW DATA CALL HUNT		EIHUNT
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	CLG/CLD NO DISPLAY		EI#DIS
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	CONF/DROP/HOLD/ TRANSFER		EICDHT
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM		EIC
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	FAST SELEC ACCEP		EIFSA
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	FAST SELEC. INITIA		EIFSI
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	IDS INTERCOM, AUTO		EIIAUT
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	IDS INTERCOM, GROUP		EIIGRP
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	INSPECT		EIINSP
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-ADD'L		EIICUA
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-GRP		EIICUG
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	MANUAL EXCLU. (PRIVACY)		EIP
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	NON-SHR SECONLY DN		EINS2#

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	PRIVACY RELEASE		EIPR
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	SHARED NON-ISDN DN		EISNI#
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	SHARED PRIMARY DN		EISPDN
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	SHARED SECONDARY-ONLY DN		EISODN
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	X.25 HUNTING		EIX25H
ESSX ISDN - CUSTOM	X.25 INTERCOM ADDRESSING		EIX25I
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	ADD'L APP OF SHARED DN N2AASD		N2AASD
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	ADD'L CALL APPEARANCE N2ACA		N2ACA
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	ADD'L DIRECTORY NUMBER N2ADN		N2ADN
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	ADD'L LOGICAL CHANNEL N2ALC		N2ALC
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	CKT SW DATA CALL HUNT N2HUN		N2HUN
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	CLNG/CLD NUM DISPLAY N2CND		N2CND
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	CONF/DROP/HOLD/ TRANSFER N2CDHT		N2CDHT
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2		NEI2
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	FAST SELEC ACCEP		N2FAS
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	FAST SELEC. INITIA		N2FSI
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	IDS INTERCOM, AUTO		N2IIA
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	IDS INTERCOM, GROUP		N2IIG
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	INSPECT		N2I
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-ADD'L		N2ICCGA
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-GRP		N2ICUG
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	MANUAL EXCLU. (PRIVACY)		N2P
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	NON-SHR SEC ONLY DN		N2NSOD
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	PRIVACY RELEASE		N2PR
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	SHARED NON-ISDN DN		N2SNI#

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	SHARED PRIMARY DN		N2SPD
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	SHARED SECONDARY-ONLY DN		N2SSOD
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	X.25 HUNTING		N2XX25H
ESSX ISDN - NAT'L 2	X.25 INTERCOM ADDRESSING		N2XIA
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	ADD'L APP. OF SHARED DN		NEIAS#
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	ADD'L CALL APPEARANCE		NEIADC
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	ADD'L DIRECTORY NUMBER		NEADN
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	ADD'L LOGICAL CHANNEL		NEALC
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	CKT SW DATA CALL HUNT		NEIHUN
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	CLNG/CLD NUM DISPLAY		NEI#DS
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	CONF/DROP/HOLD /TRANSFER		NEICDH
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL		NEI
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	FAST SELEC ACCEP		NEFSA
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	FAST SELEC. INITIA		NEFSI
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	IDS INTERCOM, AUTO		NEIIAT
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	IDS INTERCOM, GROUP		NEIIGP
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	INSPECT		NEIINS
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-ADD'L		NEICUA
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-GRP		NEICUG
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	MANUAL EXCLU. (PRIVACY)		NEIP
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	NON-SHR SEC ONLY DN		NEINS#
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	PRIVACY RELEASE		NEIPR
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	SHARED NON-ISDN DN		NEISN#
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	SHARED PRIMARY DN		NEISP#
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	SHARED SECONDARY-ONLY DN		NEISO#
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	X.25 HUNTING		NEX25H
ESSX ISDN - NATIONAL	X.25 INTERCOM ADDRESSING		NEIX25

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
EXTENDED SUPERFRAME COND	EXTENDED SUPERFRAME COND		SUPCND
FASTER SIGNALING ON DID	FASTER SIGNALING ON DID		DIDFS
FAX	FAX		FAX
FAX	FAX BROADCAST		FAXY
FAX	FAX MAIL SERVICE(50 FREE)		FAXB
FAX	FAX ON DEMAND		FAXX
FAX	FAX OVERFLOW		FAXA
FAX	INTEGRATED VOIC/FAX (AMC)		FAXZ
FAX	VOICE/FAX SVC (50 FREE)		FAXC
FLEXIBLE ANI	FLEXIBLE ANI		FANI
FLEXSERV SERVICE	FLEXSERV SERVICE	R	FLEX
HIGH CAP DIGITAL >1.544MB	HIGH CAP DIGITAL >1.544MB		HCGBSA
HIGH CAP DIGITAL SVC	HIGH CAP DIGITAL SVC		HCBSA
HOT LINE	HOT LINE		HTLN
HUNTING, SERIES COMPLETE	HUNTING,SERIES COMPLETE		HSC
INBAND SIGNALING	INBAND SIGNALING		INBAND
INTELLIGENT NETWORK RTG	INTELLIGENT NETWORK RTG		AINR
INTERNET CALL WAITING	INTERNET CALL WAITING		NETCW
INTERSWITCH SMDI	INTERSWITCH SMDI		ISMDI
INTRALATA EQUAL ACCESS	INTRALATA EQUAL ACCESS		LPIC
IPP	ENHANCED OUTWARD ONLY SVC		IPEOS
IPP	IPP IPP		IPP

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	ADD'L CALL APP-PDN/DN		IIADCL
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	AUDIBLE MSG WTG IND		IIAMWI
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL BLOCK		IICB
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL FRWD VAR-VOICE/DATA		IICFVD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL PICKUP-PER GROUP		IICPPG
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL PICKUP-PER MEMBER		IICPPM
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL RETURN		IICR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL SELECTOR		IICS
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL TRACING		IICT
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CF BUSY LINE-VOICE/DATA		IICF
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CF DON'T ANS-VOICE/DATA		IICFDV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CF VAR-FEAT BUTTON-VOICE		IICFBV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CONF/DROP/HOLD/ TRANSFER		IICDHT
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	FAST SELECT OPTION		IIFSO
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	INT'L CLSD USER GROUP		IIICUA
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-GRP		IIICUG

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	ISDN ACCESS - BUSINESS		IIACB
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	ISDN ACCESS - PACKET-BUS		IIACPB
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	ISDN ACCESS-PACKET RES		IIACPR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	ISDN ACCESS-RESIDENCE		IIACR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	ISDN INTERCOM DIAL - AUTO		IIIAUT
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	ISDN INTERCOM DIAL - DIAL		IIIDD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM		IILSC
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	MANUAL EXCL. (PRIVACY)		IIP
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	MLHG-DATA		IIMLD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	MLHG-VOICE/DATA		IIMLVD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	PREFERRED CALL FORWARDING		IIPCF
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	REPEAT DIALING		IIRD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	SECONDARY ONLY DN		IISODN
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	SHARED NON-ISDN DN		IISNI#
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	SHARED PRIMARY DN		IISPDN
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	SHARED SECONDARY ONLY DN		IISSDN

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	SPEED CALLING		IISPC
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	VISUAL MSG WAIT IND		IIVMWI
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	X.25 HUNTING		IIX25H
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	6-W CONF/DROP/HOLD/TRANS		II6CDT
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	ADD'L CALL APP-PDN/DN		NIIADC
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	AUDIBLE MSG WAIT IND		NIIAMW
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL BLOCK		NIICA
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL FORW VAR-VOICE/DATA		NIICFD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL FORWARD VAR-DATA		NIICF
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL FORWARD VAR-VOICE		NIICFV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-CUSTOM	CALL PICKUP-PER GROUP		NIICPG
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CALL PICKUP-PER MEMBER		NIICPM
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CALL RETURN		NIICR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CALL SELECTOR		NIICS
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CALL TRACING		NIICT
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CALLED NBR DELIVERY		NIICNE

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CALLING NBR DELIVERY		NIICND
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CF MULT SIMULT-DATA		NIICFM
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CF MULT SIMULT-VOICE		NIICFN
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CF VAR-FEAT BUTTON-DATA		NIICBD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CF VAR-FEAT BUTTON-VOICE		NIICBV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFBL - DATA		NIICBL
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFBL - VOICE		NIICLV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFBL - VOICE/DATA		NIICB
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFBL PROGRAM VOICE/DATA		NIICBP
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFBL-PROGRAM DATA		NIICBQ
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFBL-PROGRAM VOICE		NIICBR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFDA - DATA		NIICDD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFDA - PROGRAM DATA		NIICDQ
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFDA - PROGRAM VOICE		NIICDR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFDA - PROGRAM VOICE/DATA		NIICDP
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFDA - VOICE		NIICDO

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CFDA - VOICE/DATA		NIICDV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	CONF/DROP/HOLD/ TRANSFER		NIICDT
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	FAST SELECT OPTION		NIFSO
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-ADD'L		NIIICA
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-GRP		NIIICG
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	INTERCOM EKTS-CALL APPEAR		NIIECA
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	ISDN ACCESS - BUSINESS		NIIACB
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	ISDN ACCESS - PACKET-BUS		NIIAPB
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	ISDN ACCESS-PACKET - RES		NIACPR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	ISDN ACCESS-RESIDENCE		NIIACR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	ISDN INTERCOM DIAL - AUTO		NIIIAT
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	ISDN INTERCOM DIAL - DIAL		NIIIDD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L		IILSN
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	MANUAL EXCL.(PRIVACY)		NIIP
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	MLHG - VOICE/DATA		NIIMVD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	MLHG-DATA		NIIMLD

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	MLHG-VOICE		NIIMLV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	PREFERRED CALL FORWARDING		NIIPCF
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	PRIVACY RELEASE		NIIPR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	REPEAT DIALING		NIIRD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	SECONDARY ONLY DN		NIISO#
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	SHARED NON-ISDN DN		NIISN#
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	SHARED PRIMARY DN		NIISP#
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	SHARED SECONDARY ONLY DN		NIISS#
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	SPEED CALLING		NIISPC
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	VISUAL MSG WAIT IND		NIIVMW
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	X.25 HUNTING		NIIX25
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L	6-W CONF/DROP/HOLD /TRANS		NIICDH
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	ADD'L CALL APP-PDN/DN		N2IACA
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	AUDIBLE MSG WAIT IND		N2AMWI
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	AUTO SPID		N2AS
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	BRI CALLING NAME DELIVERY		N2BCND

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	BRI REDIRECTING NUMBER		N2BRN
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CALL BLOCK		N2CB
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CALL FORW VAR-VOICE/DATA		N2CFV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CALL FORWARD VAR-DATA		N2CFVD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CALL FORWARD VAR-VOICE		N2CFVV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CALL PICKUP-PER GROUP		N2CUG
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CALL PICKUP-PER MEMBER		N2CPUM
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CALL RETURN		N2CR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CALL SELECTOR		N2CS
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CALL TRACING		N2CT
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CF BUSY LINE - DATA		N2CFBD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CF VAR-FEAT BUTTON-DATA		N2FBD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CF VAR-FEAT BUTTON-VOICE		N2FBV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CFBL-VOICE		N2CFBV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CFBL-VOICE/DATA		N2CBVD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CFDA-DATA		N2CDD

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CFDA-VOICE		N2CDV
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CFDA-VOICE/DATA		N2CVD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CONF/DROP/HOLD/TRANS 6/W		N26CDH
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	CONF/DROP/HOLD/TRANSFR		N2CDH
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	FAST SELECT OPTION		N2FSO
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-ADD'L		N2ICUA
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	INT'L CLSD USER GRP-GRP		N2ICG
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	INTERCOM EKTS-CALL APPEAR		N2IECA
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	ISDN ACCESS - BUSINESS		N2IAB
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	ISDN ACCESS - PACKET-BUS		N2APB
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	ISDN ACCESS - PACKET-RES		N2APR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	ISDN ACCESS-RESIDENCE		N2IAR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	ISDN INTERCOM DIAL - AUTO		N2IDA
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	ISDN INTERCOM DIAL - DIAL		N2IDD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2		NIILS
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	MANUAL EXCL. (PRIVACY)		N2ME

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	MLHG - VOICE/DATA		N2MVD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	MLHG-DATA		N2MD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	NON-INITIALIZING TERMINAL		N2NIT
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	PREFERRED CALL FORWARDING		N2PCF
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	PRIVACY RELEASE		N2PRIR
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	REPEAT DIALING		N2RD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	SECONDARY ONLY DN		N2SOD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	SHARED NON-ISDN DN		N2SNID
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	SHARED PRIMARY DN		N2SD
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	SHARED SECONDARY ONLY DN		N2SODN
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	SPEED CALLING		N2SC
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	VISUAL MSG WAIT IND		N2VMWI
ISDN-IND LINE SVC-NAT'L 2	X.25 HUNTING		N2XH
LOC OPT SVC-OPT B-LA	LOC OPT SVC-OPT B-LA		ACPL
LOCAL MEASURED SVC	LOCAL MEASURED SVC		LMS
LOCAL NUMBER PORTABILITY	LOCAL NUMBER PORTABILITY		LNP
LOCAL OPT AVC-LA	LOCAL OPT SVC-LA		LOS

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MAKE BUSY/NIGHT TRANSFER	MAKE BUSY/NILGHT TRANSFER		MBNT
MEGA-LINK ISDN	CALL BY CALL		MICXC
MEGA-LINK ISDN	CALLING LINE ID INTERFACE		MICLI
MEGA-LINK ISDN	MEGA-LINK ISDN		MI
MEGA-LINK ISDN	PRI ACCESS		MIPRIA
MEGA-LINK ISDN	PRI INTERFACE		MIPRII
MEGA-LINK ISDN	CALL BY CALL		MI2CXC
MEGA-LINK ISDN NAT'L 2	CALLING LINE ID INTERFACE		MI2CLI
MEGA-LINK ISDN NAT'L 2	MEGA-LILNK ISDN NAT'L 2		MIN2
MEGA-LINK ISDN NAT'L 2	PRI ACCESS		MI2PRA
MEGA-LINK ISDN NAT'L 2	PRI INTERFACE		MI2PRI
MEMORYCALL	ANNOUNCEMENT SERVICE		MMCANN
MEMORYCALL	ANSWERING SVC W/PAGER		MMCPAS
MEMORYCALL	CUSTOM CALL ROUTER		MMCCCR
MEMORYCALL	FAX OVERFLOW	SM	MMCACA
MEMORYCALL	FAXMAIL SERVICE		MMCFAX
MEMORYCALL	INTEGRATED VOICE FAX SVC		MMCAC
MEMORYCALL	MAS RES PERS 2-LINE MLBOX		MMCMP2
MEMORYCALL	MAS RES PERS 3-LINE MLBOX		MMCMP3
MEMORYCALL	MAS RES 2-LINE MLBOX		MMCMB2
MEMORYCALL	MAS RES 3-LINE MLBOX		MMCMB3
MEMORYCALL	MEMORYCALL	SM	MMC
MEMORYCALL	MEMORYCALL ANS SVC PERSL		MMCASP
MEMORYCALL	MEMORYCALL ANS SVC PLUS		MMCTAS
MEMORYCALL	MEMORYCALL ANS SVC RESDNL		MMCASR
MEMORYCALL	MEMORYCALL ANSWERING SVC		MMCAS
MEMORYCALL	MEMORYCALL BASIC VMS		MMCBVM

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MEMORYCALL	MEMORYCALL DELUXE VMS		MMCDVM
MEMORYCALL	MEMORYCALL ON CALL MAILBX		MMCOCM
MEMORYCALL	MEMORYCALL TRANSFER MLBOX		MMCTMB
MEMORYCALL	MESSAGE DELIVERY SERVICE		MMCAD
MEMORYCALL	MESSAGELINK		MMCML
MEMORYCALL	MULTI-LINE SVC (0 RATED)		MMCMNR
MEMORYCALL	PERSONAL W/PAGER		MMCPMP
MEMORYCALL	SURROGATE CLIENT NUMBER		MMCSCN
MEMORYCALL	VMS SERVICE W/MDS - BASIC		MMCSBM
MEMORYCALL	VMS SERVICE W/MDS -FLAT		MMCABM
MEMORYCALL	VOICE FAX SERVICE W/MDS		MMCSVM
MEMORYCALL	VOICE MAIL FLAT RATE SVC		MMCAA
MEMORYCALL	WIRELINE-WIRELESS MBX REA		MMCBWR
MEMORYCALL	WIRELINE-WIRELESS MBX SBS		MMCBWB
MEMORYCALL E+	ANS SVC PLUS-FLAT RATE		MMEASR
MEMORYCALL E+	ANS SVC W/PAGER		MMEASP
MEMORYCALL E+	ANSWERING SERVICE		MMEAS
MEMORYCALL E+	DELUXE MAILBOX		MMEZ
MEMORYCALL E+	FLAT RATE MAILBOX		MMEFRM
MEMORYCALL E+	INFORMATION DELIVERY SVC		MMEIDS
MEMORYCALL E+	MAS RES PERS 2-LINE MLBOX		MMEMP2
MEMORYCALL E+	MAS RES PERS 3-LINE MLBOX		MMEMP3
MEMORYCALL E+	MAS RES 2-LINE MLBOX		MMEMB2
MEMORYCALL E+	MAS RES 3-LINE MLBOX		MMEMB3
MEMORYCALL E+	MEMORYCALL E+		MEE
MEMORYCALL E+	MESSAGE DELIVERY SVC		MMEMD
MEMORYCALL E+	MESSAGELINK		MMEML

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MEMORYCALL E+	MULTI-LINE SVC (0 RATED)		MMEMNR
MEMORYCALL E+	PERSONAL		MMEP
MEMORYCALL E+	PERSONAL MAILBOX W/PAGER		MMEPMP
MEMORYCALL E+	TRANSFER MAILBOX		MMETMB
MEMORYCALL E+	VMS SERVICE W/MDS - BASIC		MMESBM
MEMORYCALL E+	VMS SERVICE W/MDS - FLAT		MMEAB
MEMORYCALL E+	VOICE FAX SERVICE W/MDS		MMESVM
MEMORYCALL E+	WIRELINE-WIRELESS MBX COU		MMESWR
MEMORYCALL E+	WIRELINE-WIRELESS MBX SBS		MMESWB
MESSAGE RATE SERVICE	MESSAGE RATE SERVICE		MRS
MLHG ACCESS TO EACH PORT	MLHG ACCESS TO EACH PORT		MLHGAP
MLHG CO ANNOUNCE	MLHG CO ANNOUNCE		MLHGCA
MLHG OVERFLOW	MLHG OVERFLOW		MLHGOV
MLHG UCD LINE HUNTING	MLHG UCD LINE HUNTING		MLHGLH
MSG WAITING IND AUD/ VIS	MSG WAITING IND AUD/VIS		MWIAV
MSG WAITING IND AUDIBLE	MSG WAITING IND AUDIBLE		MWIA
MULTILINE HUNT GROUP	MULTILINE HUNT GROUP		MLHG
MULTISERV ACD	BASIC-PER ACE GROUP, B		MPACDB
MULTISERV ACD	BASIC-RECONFIG GROUP, B		MPACDR
MULTISERV ACD	EBS AGENT - BASIC FEA, B		MBFAA
MULTISERV ACD	EBS AGT-C/A KEY W/MSBO,B		MPAC3
MULTISERV ACD	EBS AGT-C/A, DIF INCALL, B		MPAC4
MULTISERV ACD	EBS AGT-CL/ANS SVR KEY, B		MPAC1
MULTISERV ACD	EBS AGT-DISP QUEUE KEY, B		MPADQT
MULTISERV ACD	EBS AGT-ENH EMER KEY, B		MPAEEK

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
MULTISERV ACD	EBS AGT - EVENT CODE KEY, B		MPAECL
MULTISERV ACD	EBS AGT-MSBO, INCALL, B		MPAC2
MULTISERV ACD	EBS AGT-NOT READY KEY, B		MPANRK
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR - BASIC, B		MBFAS
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-AGT STAT LAMP, B		MAASL
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-ANS AGENT KEY, B		MASAAK
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-ANS EMER KEY, B		MASAEK
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-CALL AGT KEY, B		MASCA
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-CNTRL INTERFLOW, B		MACIK
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-DISP QUE THRSHD, B		MADQST
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-DISP QUEUE STAT, B		MADQSS
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-ENH OBSRV AGT, B		MASEOB
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-NITE SVC CNTRL, B		MASNS
MULTISERV ACD	EBS SVR-OBSERVE AGT KEY, B		MASOB
MULTISERV ACD	FEATURE GROUP 1, B		MBRA1
MULTISERV ACD	FEATURE GROUP 2, B		MBRA2
MULTISERV ACD	FEATURE GROUP 3, B		MBFA3
MULTISERV ACD	FEATURE GROUP 4, B		MBFA4
MULTISERV ACD	MULTISERV ACD		MSA
MULTISERV ACD	NTWK MGMT RPTS-ANAL, B		MANMRA
MULTISERV ACD	NTWK MGMT RPTS-DIG, B		MANMRD
MULTISERV ACD	REMOTE LOAD MGMT UPDATE, B		MARLM
MULTISERV EBS	FEATURE GROUP 3, B		MBFA3
MULTISERV EBS	FEATURE GROUP 4, B		MBFA4
MULTISERV EBS	MULTISERV ACD		MSA
MULTISERV EBS	NTWK MGMT RPTS-ANAL, B		MANMRA
MULTISERV EBS	NTWK MGMT RPTS-DIG, B		MANMRD

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
MULTISERV EBS	REMOTE LOAD MGMT UPDATE,B		MARLM
MULTISERV EBS	ADD'L DIR NUMBER, B		MADN
MULTISERV EBS	ANON CALL REJECT, B		MPACR
MULTISERV EBS	AUTH CODES-STA, B		MACSK
MULTISERV EBS	AUTO ANSWERBACK, B		MPAAB
MULTISERV EBS	AUTO INSPECT, B		MPAIM
MULTISERV EBS	AUTODIAL, B		MPAUTD
MULTISERV EBS	AUTOMATIC LINE, B		MPALP
MULTISERV EBS	BASIC DISPLAY, B		MPBD
MULTISERV EBS	CALL BLOCK, B		MCB
MULTISERV EBS	CALL FWD VAR ALL CALLS, B		MPCFV
MULTISERV EBS	CALL NAME DISP, INTRA, B		MPCND
MULTISERV EBS	CALL NUMB DEL BLOCK, B		MPCNB
MULTISERV EBS	CALL PARK/RETRIEVE, B		MPCPCR
MULTISERV EBS	CALL PICKUP, B		MPCP
MULTISERV EBS	CALL RETURN, B		MPCR
MULTISERV EBS	CALL SELECTOR, B		MPCS
MULTISERV EBS	CALL TRACE, B		MPCT
MULTISERV EBS	CALL TRACE, DENIAL, B		MPDCT
MULTISERV EBS	CALL TRACE, SUCCESS, B		MPCTS
MULTISERV EBS	CALL TRANS, SYS EXCEP, B		MPCTW
MULTISERV EBS	CALL WAIT TERM W/CCCW, B		MPCWT
MULTISERV EBS	CALL WAITING EXEMPT, B		MPCWE
MULTISERV EBS	CALL WAITING ORIG, B		MPCWO
MULTISERV EBS	CAMP ON, STATION, B		MPSCO
MULTISERV EBS	CFBL PROGRAMMABLE, B		MPCF
MULTISERV EBS	CFBL SPLIT DESTINATION, B		MPCF4

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MULTISERV EBS	CFDA PROGRAMMABLE, B		MPCF5
MULTISERV EBS	CFDA SPLIT DESTINATION, B		MPCF8
MULTISERV EBS	CODE RESTR-N11, B		MPCRN
MULTISERV EBS	CODE RESTR-10XXXX, B		MPCR2
MULTISERV EBS	CODE RESTR-900, 976, B		MPCR9
MULTISERV EBS	CONF-STA CONTROLLED, B		MPSCC
MULTISERV EBS	DATA CALL PROTECTION, B		MPDCP
MULTISERV EBS	DIAL CALL WAITING, B		MPDCW
MULTISERV EBS	DIR CALL P/U BARGE EX, B		MPDCBE
MULTISERV EBS	DIR CALL P/U BARGE IN, B		MPDCPB
MULTISERV EBS	DIR CALL P/U NON-BARGE, B		MPDCNB
MULTISERV EBS	DIR CALLP/U NONBARGE EX,B		MPDCNE
MULTISERV EBS	DIRECTED CALL PARK/RET, B		MPDCCR
MULTISERV EBS	DISTINCTIVE RING OVRRD,B		MPDRSO
MULTISERV EBS	DO NOT DISTURB, B		MPDND
MULTISERV EBS	DSS/BUSY LAMP, B		MPDSS
MULTISERV EBS	EXEC BUSY OVERRIDE, B		MPEBO
MULTISERV EBS	FEATURE GROUP, BASIC, B		MBFPB
MULTISERV EBS	GROUP INTERCOM ALL CALL,B		MPGIA
MULTISERV EBS	GROUP INTERCOM, B		MPGI
MULTISERV EBS	HUNT, SHORT, B		MPSHHT
MULTISERV EBS	INSPECT, B		MPI
MULTISERV EBS	INTERCOM, SET, B		MPINT
MULTISERV EBS	MADN NOT PDN, ADD'L APP,B		MADN2
MULTISERV EBS	MADN NOT PDN, 1ST APP, B		MMADN1
MULTISERV EBS	MADN RING FORWD-AUTO, B		MPMRFA
MULTISERV EBS	MADN RING FORWD-MANUAL, B		MPMRFM

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MULTISERV EBS	MADN SAME TN, NO GUIDE,B		MADN3
MULTISERV EBS	MADN, SECOND-CALL FRWD, B		MPMCF
MULTISERV EBS	MAKE SET BUSY-PER DN, B		MPMSBD
MULTISERV EBS	MAKE SET BUSY, B		MPMSB
MULTISERV EBS	MESSAGE WAITING AUD, B		MPMWA
MULTISERV EBS	MODULE ADDITIVE, B		MPMA
MULTISERV EBS	MULTISERV EBS		MSE
MULTISERV EBS	MUSIC ON HOLD KEYSET, B		МРМОН
MULTISERV EBS	PREFER CALL FORWARDING, B		MPPCF
MULTISERV EBS	PRIVACY ENABLE/RELEASE, B		MPPER
MULTISERV EBS	PROGRAM LINE SELECTION, B		MPRLNS
MULTISERV EBS	QUERY BUSY STATION, B		MQBS
MULTISERV EBS	QUERY TIME/DATE, B		MQTD
MULTISERV EBS	REPEAT DIALING, B		MPRD
MULTISERV EBS	SELECT CALL ACCEPTANCE, B		MPSCA
MULTISERV EBS	SPEED CALL LNG-ADDL USR,B		MPSCL
MULTISERV EBS	SPEED CALL LONG-CNTRL,B		MPSCLC
MULTISERV EBS	SPEED CALL SHORT, B		MPSCS
MULTISERV EBS	STA CNTRL OUT REST /DN, B		MPSCOR
MULTISERV EBS	STA REST-DENIED ORIG, B		MPDO
MULTISERV EBS	STA REST-DENIED TERM, B		MPDT
MULTISERV EBS	TOLL DIVERSION, B		MPTD
MULTISERV EBS	TOLL REST-EXP LOC CALL, B		MPELC
MULTISERV EBS	TOLL RESTRICTION, B		MPTR
MULTISERV EBS	UCD LOGIN/LOGOUT, B		MPUCDI
MULTISERV EBS	UCD, B		MPUCD
MULTISERV EBS	3 CONF/CON HOLD/TRANS, B		MPCHT

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MULTISERV PLUS	CALL PARK/CALL RETRIEVE		MPCPR
MULTISERV PLUS	CALL TRF/SYSTEM EXCEPTION		MPCTSE
MULTISERV PLUS	DIAL CALL WAITING		MPDC
MULTISERV PLUS	MAKE SET BUSY-INTRAGROU		MPMSBI
MULTISERV PLUS	MULTISERV PLUS		MP
MULTISERV SERVICE	ACCOUNT CODES-CDAR, ABCD		MSMCD
MULTISERV SERVICE	ACS-CHANGE TRANSLATN, ABCD		MACSC
MULTISERV SERVICE	ACS-SYS ABBREV DIAL, ABCD		MACSS
MULTISERV SERVICE	ANON CALL REJECTION, ABCD		MACR
MULTISERV SERVICE	ARS BASIC - LILNE, C		MARSBL
MULTISERV SERVICE	ARS BASIC - SYS, ABD		MARSBS
MULTISERV SERVICE	ASSUMED DIAL 9, ABCD		MAD9
MULTISERV SERVICE	ATT-CALL TRANS-LILLNE, C		MACT
MULTISERV SERVICE	AUTH CODES-PER LINE, C		MACPL
MULTISERV SERVICE	AUTH CODES-PER OCC, ABCD		MACCHG
MULTISERV SERVICE	AUTH CODES-PER SYS, ABCD		MACPS
MULTISERV SERVICE	AUTH CODES-STA SPEC, B		MACS
MULTISERV SERVICE	AUTH CODES-TONE, ABCD		MACPT
MULTISERV SERVICE	AUTO NUMBER REF, ABCD		MANR
MULTISERV SERVICE	BASIC FEATURE GROUP, A		MAFB
MULTISERV SERVICE	BASIC FEATURE GROUP, B		MBFB
MULTISERV SERVICE	BASIC FEATURE GROUP, C		MCFB
MULTISERV SERVICE	BASIC FEATURE GROUP, D		MDFB
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL FWD MULTI SIM, A		MCFMSL
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL FWD MULTI SIM, B		MCFMSS
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL NUMB DEL BLOCK, ABCD		MCNDB
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL TRACE, ABCD		MCT

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL TRACE, DENIAL, ABCD		MDCT
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL TRACE, SUCCESS, ABCD		MCTPST
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL WAIT TERM W/CCW,ABCD		MCLTI
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL WAIT TERM-DIS TONE,C		MCWTZ
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL WAITING EXEMPT, B		MCWEX
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALL WAITING ORIG, ABCD		MCWO
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALLER ID DELUXE, ACD		MCIDD
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALLER ID, NUMB ONLY,ABCD		MCID
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALLING NAME DELIVER, ACD		MCND
MULTISERV SERVICE	CALLING NAME DISP,INTRA,B		MCNDIS
MULTISERV SERVICE	CODE CALL ANSWER, C		MCCA
MULTISERV SERVICE	CODE RESTR-N11, ABCD		MCRN
MULTISERV SERVICE	CODE RESTR-10XXXX, ABCD		MCR10X
MULTISERV SERVICE	CODE RESTR-900, 976, ABCD		MCR9
MULTISERV SERVICE	COMMON BLOCK, ADD'L, A		MACB
MULTISERV SERVICE	CONF-EXEC, PER NUMBER, B		MEC
MULTISERV SERVICE	CONF-MEET ME, BASIC, B		MMMCI
MULTISERV SERVICE	CONF-PRESET, PER NUMBER,B		MPC
MULTISERV SERVICE	CONF-STA CONTROL, ACD		MSCC
MULTISERV SERVICE	CONF-STA CONTROL, LINE, B		MCC
MULTISERV SERVICE	DELAY ANNOUNCEMENT, ABCD		MDA
MULTISERV SERVICE	DIR CALLP/U BARGE EXMPT,B		MDCPBE
MULTISERV SERVICE	DIR CALLP/U BARGE IN,ABCD		MDCPB
MULTISERV SERVICE	DIR CALLP/U NONBARGE,ABCD		MDCPNB
MULTISERV SERVICE	DIR CALLP/U NONBRG EX, BC		MDCPNE
MULTISERV SERVICE	DISA, DIR INW SYS ACC, B		MDISA
MULTISERV SERVICE	DIST CALL WAITING, SYS, B		MDCWT

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MULTISERV SERVICE	DIST RING/CW W/CCW, AD		MDRCW
MULTISERV SERVICE	DIST RING/DIAL CW, C		MDRDCW
MULTISERV SERVICE	DIST RINGING SYS OVRRD, B		MDRSO
MULTISERV SERVICE	DIST RINGING, SYS, B		MDR
MULTISERV SERVICE	DISTRIBUTED LINE HUNT, B		MDLH
MULTISERV SERVICE	DO NOT DISTURB, BD		MDND
MULTISERV SERVICE	EXEC BUSY OVERRIDE, B		MEBO
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 1, A		MAF1
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 1, B		MBF1
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 1, C		MCF1
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 1, D		MDF1
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 2, A		MAF2
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 2, B		MBF2
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 2, C		MCF2
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 2, D		MDF2
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 3, A		MAF3
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 3, B		MBF3
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 3, C		MCF3
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 3, D		MDF3
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 4, A		MAF4
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 4, B		MBF4
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 4, C		MCF4
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 4, D		MDF4
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 5, A		MAF5
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 5, B		MBF5
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 5, C		MCF5
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 5, D		MDF5

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 6, A		MAF6
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 6, B		MBF6
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 6, C		MCF6
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 6, D		MDF6
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 7, B		MBF7
MULTISERV SERVICE	FEATURE GROUP 8, B		MBF8
MULTISERV SERVICE	GROUP INTERCOM, B		MGI
MULTISERV SERVICE	HUNTING, PREFERENTIAL, A		MPHT
MULTISERV SERVICE	LOUDSPEAKER PAGE ANSWER,C		MLPA
MULTISERV SERVICE	MESSAGE WAIT AUD, ABCD		MMWA
MULTISERV SERVICE	MESSAGE WAITING LAMP, B		MSTMWL
MULTISERV SERVICE	MT-DIG TERM DS1 CKTS, BCD		MMTDT
MULTISERV SERVICE	MT-DIG TERM PER DS0, BCD		MMTDO
MULTISERV SERVICE	MT-INWATS TERM, ABCD		MMTIW
MULTISERV SERVICE	MT-OUTWATS TERM, ABCD		MMTOW
MULTISERV SERVICE	MT-PRIMRY RATE INT TERM,B		MMTPRI
MULTISERV SERVICE	MT-TRUNK SIDE TERM, ABCD		MMTTST
MULTISERV SERVICE	MULTIACCOUNT SERVICE,ABCD		MMAS
MULTISERV SERVICE	MULTILINE HUNT GRP, ABCD		MMHG
MULTISERV SERVICE	MULTISERV SERVICE	SM	MS
MULTISERV SERVICE	MUSIC/ANNOUNCE ON HOLD,BC		ММОН
MULTISERV SERVICE	PERSONAL CALL SCREEN, B		MCS
MULTISERV SERVICE	QUEUING(INCOMING) GRP,ACD		MQ
MULTISERV SERVICE	SELECT CALL ACCEPTANCE,BC		MSCA
MULTISERV SERVICE	SMDI-PER LINE, BCD		MSMDIL
MULTISERV SERVICE	SMDI-PER LINK, 1200B,ABCD		MSMD12
MULTISERV SERVICE	SMDI-PER LINK, 9600B,ABCD		MSMD96

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MULTISERV SERVICE	SMDR PER SYS, AC		MEMDRR
MULTISERV SERVICE	SMDR RAO PER SYS, ABCD		MSMDRR
MULTISERV SERVICE	SPEED CALL LONG-ADDL,ABCD		MSCLA
MULTISERV SERVICE	SPEED CALL LONG-CNTL,ABCD		MSCLCL
MULTISERV SERVICE	SPEED CALL LONG, IND, AD		MSCLI
MULTISERV SERVICE	SPEED CALL, NETWORK, B		MNSCL
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA CNTRL OUT RESTR, B		MSCOR
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-DENY INCOMING, D		MSRDI
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-DENY ORIGINATE, D		MSRDO
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-DENY OUTGOING, D		MSRDA
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-DENY SPEC FAC, A		MSRDSF
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-DENY TERMINATE, D		MSRDT
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-IN & OUT, AC		MSRIO
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-INCOMING, AC		MSRI
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-OUTGOING, AC		MSRO
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-SEMI IN & OUT, AC		MSRSIO
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-SEMI INCOMING, AC		MSRSI
MULTISERV SERVICE	STA REST-SEMI OUTGOING, AC		MSRSO
MULTISERV SERVICE	SWITCH-COMPUTER LINK, B		MSCAI
MULTISERV SERVICE	TOD CNTRL-ARSB, D-NCOS, BCD		MTOD
MULTISERV SERVICE	TOLL DIVERSION, ABCD		MTDTR
MULTISERV SERVICE	TOLL RESTRICTION, ABCD		MTDTR1
MULTISERV SERVICE	TOLL RST-EXP LOC CLL, ABCD		MRELC
MULTISERV SERVICE	TRUNK VERIFY FROM STA, B		MTVFS
MULTISERV SERVICE	TSF-ARS-D PER LINE, C		MTSFAD
MULTISERV SERVICE	TSF-ARS-D W/TCM, C		MTSFA
MULTISERV SERVICE	TSF AUTO ALT ROUTE, C	_	MTSFAA

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
MULTISERV SERVICE	TSF-BASIC CAPABILITY, ABCD		MTSFBC
MULTISERV SERVICE	TSF-PER NODE, ABCD		MTSFN
MULTISERV SERVICE	TSF-PER UN, ABCD		MTSFU
MULTISERV SERVICE	TSF-TERMINATIONS, ABCD		MTSFT
MULTISERV SERVICE	TSF-UNIFORM NUMBERING, ABCD		MTSFUN
MULTISERV SERVICE	UCD PER GROUP, ABCD		MUCD
MULTISERV SERVICE	UCD PER LINE, B		MUCDL
MWI ACTIVATION (AUDIBLE)	MWI ACTIVATION (AUDIBLE)		MWIACT
MWI ACTIVATION (VISUAL)	MWI ACTIVATION (VISUAL)		MWIACV
MWI NO RATE HTG TEMP FIX	MWI NO RATE HTG TEMP FIX		MWINR
MWI VISUAL	MWI VISUAL		MWIV
NUMBER PORTABILITY-RCF	NUMBER PORTABILILTY-RCF		RCFNP
ONA AMS-TYPE SERVICES	ONA AMS-TYPE SERVICES		ONAAMS
ONA DUMMY SVC/100% DEPLOY	ONA DUMMY SVC/100% DEPLOY		ONA100
PATHLINK	CALL BY CALL		PLCXC
PATHLINK	CALLING LINE ID INTERFACE		PLCLID
PATHLINK	DIGITAL DATA ONLY		PLDD
PATHLINK	INWARD DATA ONLY		PLID
PATHLINK	PATHLINK		PL
PATHLINK	RELEASE LINK TRUNKING		PLRLT
PATHLINK (NI-2)	CALL BY CALL		PL2CXC
PATHLINK (NI-2)	CALLING LINE ID INTERFACE		PL2CID
PATHLINK (NI-2)	D-CHANNEL BACK-UP		PL2BU

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
PATHLINK (NI-2)	DIGITAL DATA ONLY		PL2DD
PATHLINK (NI-2)	HOTEL SEL CALL SCREENING		PL2SCS
PATHLINK (NI-2)	INWARD DATA ONLY		PL2ID
PATHLINK (NI-2)	NFAS		PL2NF
PATHLINK (NI-2)	PATHLINK (NI-2)		PL2
PATHLINK (NI-2)	PRI ACCESS		PL2PA
PATHLINK (NI-2)	PRI CALLING NAME DELIVERY		PL2CND
PATHLINK (NI-2)	PRI INTERFACE		PL2PI
PATHLINK (NI-2)	PRI REDIRECTING NUMBER		PL2RN
PATHLINK (NI-2)	SWFDS1		PL2SWF
PATHLINK (NI-2)	TWO B-CHANNEL TRANSFER		PL2TBT
PENDER COUNTY CLG PLAN-NC	PENDER COUNTY CLG PLAN-NC		OCP2
PPSN-CALL REDIRECTION	PPSN-CALL REDIRECTION		PPSCR
PPSN-CLOSED USER GROUP	PPSN-CLOSED USER GROUP		PPSCUG
PPSN-DIRECT CALL	PPSN-DIRECT CALL		PPSDC
PPSN-FAST SELECT PACKET	PPSN-FAST SELECT PACKET		PPSFSP
PPSN-HUNT GROUP	PPSN-HUNT GROUP		PPSHG
PPSN-REV CHG ACC	PPSN-REV CHG ACC		PPSRCA
PPSN-RPOA PRESELECT	PPSN-RPOA PRESELECT		PPSRP
PPSN-X.75 INTRFC TO PKT	PPSN-X.75 INTRFC TO PKT		PPSX7V
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	CALL FWD BUSY LINE		PCCFBL
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	CALL FWD DONT ANSWER		PCCFDA

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	CALL FWD VARIABLE		PCCFV
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	CALL PICKUP		PCCP
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	CALL WAITING		PCCW
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	R	PC
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	SPEED CALLING 30		PCSC30
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	SPEED CALLING 6		PCSC6
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	USER TRANS/CONF		PCUT
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	USER TRANS/CONF/CL HOLD		PCUTCH
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	USER TRANS/CONF/CL PK/H		PCUTPH
PRESTIGE COMM SERVICE	USER TRANS/CONF/CL PKU		PCUTCP
PRESTIGE DELUXE	ADDL CALL PICKKUP GRPS (G)		PDACP
PRESTIGE DELUXE	ALTERNATE ANSWERING (G)		PDAA
PRESTIGE DELUXE	AUTOMATIC CALLBACK (G)		PDAC
PRESTIGE DELUXE	CALL FWD BUSY LINE (G)		PDBL
PRESTIGE DELUXE	CALL FWD VAR RING RMDR(G)		PDCFR
PRESTIGE DELUXE	CALL FWD VARIABLE (G)		PDCF
PRESTIGE DELUXE	CALL PICKUP (G)		PDCP
PRESTIGE DELUXE	CALL WAITING (G)		PDCW
PRESTIGE DELUXE	CL FWD VAR INH RNG RMD(G)		PDCFI
PRESTIGE DELUXE	CTRL/CANCEL CALL WTG (G)		PDCCW
PRESTIGE DELUXE	DIST RINGING/CW TONE (G)		PDDR

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
PRESTIGE DELUXE	LDSPKR PAGING ACCESS (G)		PDLP
PRESTIGE DELUXE	MISC LINE TERMINATIONS(G)		PDMLT
PRESTIGE DELUXE	PRESTIGE ACCESS MGMT (G)		PDAM
PRESTIGE DELUXE	PRESTIGE CONFERENCE (G)		PDPC
PRESTIGE DELUXE	PRESTIGE DELUXE	R	PD
PRESTIGE DELUXE	SPEED CALL SHORT (G)		PDSC
PRESTIGE DELUXE	SPEED CALL 30 GROUP (G)		PDSCG
PRESTIGE DELUXE	SPEED CALL 30 INDIVDL (G)		PDS3I
PRESTIGE I	ADDL CALL PICKUP GPS (G)		P1ACP
PRESTIGE I	ALTERNATE ANSWERING (G)		P1AA
PRESTIGE I	CALL FWD VARIABLE (G)		P1CF
PRESTIGE I	CALL WAITING (G)		P1CW
PRESTIGE I	CONVENIENCE DIALING (G)		P1CD
PRESTIGE I	DISTINCTIVE RINGING (G)		P1DR
PRESTIGE I	INTERCOM (G)		P1I
PRESTIGE I	PRESTIGE I	R	P1
PRESTIGE I	USER TRANSFER (G)		P1UT
PRESTIGE I	800 SERVICE (G)		P1800
PRESTIGE II	ADDL CALL PICKUP GPS (G)		P2ACP
PRESTIGE II	ALTERNATE ANSWERING (G)		P2AA
PRESTIGE II	CALL FWD VARIABLE (G)		P2CF
PRESTIGE II	CALL HOLD (G)		P2CH
PRESTIGE II	CALL PICKUP (G)		P2CP
PRESTIGE II	CALL WAITING (G)		P2CW
PRESTIGE II	CONVENIENCE DIALING (G)		P2CD
PRESTIGE II	DISTINCTIVE RINGING (G)		P2DR
PRESTIGE II	INTERCOM (G)		P2I

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
PRESTIGE II	PRESTIGE II	R	P2
PRESTIGE II	USER TRANSFER (G)		P2UT
PRESTIGE II	800 SERVICE (G)		P2800
PRESTIGE SINGLE LINE	CALL FORWARDING (G)		PSCF
PRESTIGE SINGLE LINE	CALL HOLD (G)		PSCH
PRESTIGE SINGLE LINE	CALL WAITING (G)		PSCW
PRESTIGE SINGLE LINE	CONFERENCING (G)		PSC
PRESTIGE SINGLE LINE	CONVENIENCE DIALING (G)		PSCD
PRESTIGE SINGLE LINE	PRESTIGE SINGLE LINE	R	PS
PRESTIGE SINGLE LINE	SPEED DIALING 30 (G)		PSSC3
PRESTIGE SINGLE LINE	USER TRANSFER (G)		PSUT
PULSELINK	PULSELINK	R	PPSX25
PULSELINK PPSN SERVICE	PULSELINK PPSN SERVICE	R	PPPSN
QUEUING	QUEUING		QUE
QUICKSERVICE	QUICKSERVICE	SM	QS
REGIONSERV-TN	REGIONSERV-TN		RSV
REMOTE CALL FORWARDNG	REMOTE CALL FORWARDNG		RCF
REV BLLG ON CKT/PKT ACC	REV BLLG ON CKT/PKT ACC		RBCPA
RINGMASTER	RINGMASTER	R	RM
RINGMASTER	RINGMASTER I		RM1
RINGMASTER	RINGMASTER II		RM2
ROUTE DIVERSITY	ROUTE DIVERSITY		RTD
SAVER SERVICE	SAVER SERVICE	SM	SAVS
SELECT CLASS CALL SCREEN	SELECT CLASS CALL SCREEN		SCOCS

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
SELECTIVE RTG BRANDED	SELECTIVE RTG BRANDED		BSRC
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXW/PBX		SSAABW
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXW/PBX/HTG		SSAAHW
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXW/POTS		SSAATW
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXW/POTS/HTG		SSAARW
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXX/PBX		SSAABX
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXX/PBX/HTG		SSAAHX
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXX/POTS		SSAATX
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXX/POTS/HTG		SSAARX
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXY/PBX		SSAABY
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXY/PBX/HTG		SSAAHY
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXY/POTS		SSAATY
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXY/POTS/HTG		SSAARY
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXZ/PBX		SSAABZ
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXZ/PBX/HTG		SSAAHZ
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXZ/POTS		SSAATZ

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREXZ/POTS/HTG		SSAARZ
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX2/PBX		SSAAB2
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX2/PBX/HTG		SSAAH2
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX2/POTS		SSAAT2
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX2/POTS/HTG		SSAAR2
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX3/PBX		SSAAB3
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX3/PBX/HTG		SSAAH3
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX3/POTS		SSAAT3
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX3/POTS/HTG		SSAAR3
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX4/PBX		SSAAB4
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX4/PBX/HTG		SSAAH4
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX4/POTS		SSAAT4
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX4/POTS/HTG		SSAAR4
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX5/PBX		SSAAB5
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX5/PBX/HTG		SSAAH5
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX5/POTS		SSAAT5

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX5/POTS/HTG		SSAAR5
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX6/PBX		SSAAB6
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX6/PBX/HTG		SSAAH6
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX6/POTS		SSAAT6
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX6/POTS/HTG		SSAAR6
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX7/PBX		SSAAB7
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX7/PBX/HTG		SSAAH7
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX7/POTS		SSAAT7
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/CREX7/POTS/HTG		SSAAR7
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/UNREST/PBX		SSAABU
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/UNREST/PBX/HTG		SSAAHU
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/UNREST/POTS		SSAATU
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	ATT/UNREST/POTS/HTG		SSAARU
SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRAND	SELECTIVE RTG SELF-BRANDED		SSRC
SELECTIVE RTG UNBRANDED	SELECTIVE RTG UNBRANDED		USRC
SHARED SPEED CALLING	SHARED SPEED CALLING		SCS
SMARTLINE FIXED	OUT ONLY		SFOO

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
SMARTLINE FIXED	OUT ONLY-CREXV		SFOOV
SMARTLINE FIXED	SMARTLINE FIXED		SF
SMARTLINE FIXED	2 WAY		SF2
SMARTLINE FIXED	2 WAY-CREXV		SF2V
SMARTLINE USAGE	OUT ONLY		SUOO
SMARTLINE FIXED	OUT ONLY-CREXV		SUOOV
SMARTLINE FIXED	SMARTLINE USAGE		SU
SMARTLINE FIXED	2 WAY		SU2W
SMARTLINE FIXED	2 WAY-CREXV		SU2WV
SMPL MSG DESK INTERFACE	SMPL MSG DESK INTERFACE		SMDIF
SPECTRUS-COM'L QUAL VIDEO	SPECTRUS-COM'L QUAL VIDEO		SPCQV
SPECTRUS-EXTENDED SVC	SPECTRUS-EXTENDED SVC		SPESA
SPECTRUS-VIDEO CONF SVC	SPECTRUS-VIDEO CONF SVC		SPVCS
STATISTICAL MULTIPLEXER	STATISTICAL MULTIPLEXER		STMUX
SURROGATE CLIENT NUMBER	SURROGATE CLIENT NUMBER		SCN
SVC EXPEDITING CHARGE	SVC EXPEDITING CHARGE		SEC
SWITCHED ACCESS	CARRIER ID PARAMETER		SACIP
SWITCHED ACCESS	SWITCHED ACCESS		SA
SWITCHED ACCESS	950 OVER FEATURE GROUP D		950
SYNCHRONET MULTIPOINT	SYNCHRONET MULTIPOINT	R	SYNMP
SYNCHRONET SCDY CH SVC	SYNCHRONET SCDY CH SVC	R	SYNSC

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
SYNCHRONET SERVICE	SYNCHRONET SERVICE	R	SYN
TOUCHSTAR	ANONYMOUS CALL REJECTION		TSACR
TOUCHSTAR	BUSY CONNECT		TSBC
TOUCHSTAR	BUSY CONNECT, BUS. ONLY		TSBCB
TOUCHSTAR	CALL BLOCK		TSCB
TOUCHSTAR	CALL RET, USAGE SENSITIVE		TSCRB
TOUCHSTAR	CALL RETURN		TSCR
TOUCHSTAR	CALL RETURN - ENHANCED		TSCRE
TOUCHSTAR	CALL RETURN, BLOCK PVT #		TSCRBP
TOUCHSTAR	CALL SELECTOR		TSCS
TOUCHSTAR	CALL TRACING		TSCT
TOUCHSTAR	CALL TRACING, DENIAL OF		TSCTD
TOUCHSTAR	CALL TRACKING		TSCTK
TOUCHSTAR	CID BASIC NAME, SINGLE LN		TSCND
TOUCHSTAR	CID BASIC NBR		TSCID
TOUCHSTAR	CID BASIC NBR W/ACR		TSCIDA
TOUCHSTAR	CID BASIC NBR, MULTI LN		TSCIDM
TOUCHSTAR	CID DELUXE W/ACR		TSCIDR
TOUCHSTAR	CID DELUXE, MULTI LN		TSMD
TOUCHSTAR	CID DELUXE, SINGLE LN (G)		TSCIDD
TOUCHSTAR	CID-ENHANCED W/ACR		TSCIDE
TOUCHSTAR	CID-ENHANCED W/CALL MGMT		TSCIDG
TOUCHSTAR	CID-ENHANCED W/O ACR (G)		TSCIDF
TOUCHSTAR	CLG NBR DL BLOCK PERM		TSCNDB
TOUCHSTAR	PREFERRED CALL FORWARDING		TSPCF
TOUCHSTAR	REPEAT DIAL, USAGE SENS.		TSRDB
TOUCHSTAR	REPEAT DIALING		TSRD

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
TOUCHSTAR	TOUCHSTAR	R	TS
TOUCHTONE	TOUCHTONE		TT
TOUCHTONE PULSE SGN	TOUCHTONE PULSE SGN		TTP
TRIAD CLG PLAN-NC	TRIAD CLG PLAN-NC		OCP4
TRIANGLE J CLG PLAN-NC	TRIANGLE J CLG PLAN-NC		ОСР3
TRNK SIDE ACCESS	TRNK SIDE ACCESS		TRSA
TRUNK SIDE ACC (TANDEM)	TRUNK SIDE ACC (TANDEM)		TSALT
UNIF ACCESS NMBR (ACCESS)	UNIF ACCESS NMBR (ACCESS)		UANACC
UNIF ACCESS NUMBER	UNIF ACCESS NUMBER		UANO
UNIF 7D ACC NUM RCF	UNIF 7D ACC NUM RCF		UANRCF
UNISERV DUMMY SVC	UNISERV DUMMY SVC		UNISV
UNUSED	UNUSED		UNU
UNUSED	VACANT		UNUS
VER INTGRTY SUBSCR LINES	VER INTGRTY SUBSCR LINES		VINTSL
VIDEO SERVICE	VIDEO SERVICE		VIDEO
VISUAL DIRECTOR	VIS DIR W/CID-ACR (G)	SM	VIDRC
VISUAL DIRECTOR	VIS DIR W/MMC,CIDACR (G)	SM	VIMRC
VISUAL DIRECTOR	VISUAL DIRECTOR	SM	VI
VOICE ACTIVATED	VOICE ACTIVATED DIALING		VAD
DIALING			
VOICE GRD LINE/CKT SW BSA	VOICE GRD LINE/CKT SW BSA		VGBSA
WARM LINE	WARM LINE		WMLN
WATCHALERT	WATCHALERT		WATCH
WATSSAVER	AUTHORIZATION CODES		WSA

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
WATSSAVER	WATSSAVER		WS
WATSSAVER	WATSSAVER SERVICE	SM	WSS
X/CENTREX	ACCNT CODE ACC REC (G)		XACAR
X/CENTREX	ACCOUNT CODES-CDAR,ABCD		XSMCDA
X/CENTREX	ACD CALL PROCESS CONTR(G)		XACDCC
X/CENTREX	ACD CALLED NM/NO DISPL(G)		XACDCD
X/CENTREX	ACD ENHANCED (G)		XACDEH
X/CENTREX	ACD FEATURE PACKAGE (G)		XACDFP
X/CENTREX	ACD LD MNG BASIC CMMDS(G)		XACDLM
X/CENTREX	ACD MULTI QUE STAT LMP(G)		XACDMQ
X/CENTREX	ACD ON 2500 SET (G)		XO25S
X/CENTREX	ACD REMOTE LOAD MNG (G)		XACDRL
X/CENTREX	ACS-CHANGE TRANSLATN,ABCD		XACSC
X/CENTREX	ACS-SYS ABBREV DIAL,ABCD		XACSS
X/CENTREX	ACT/DEACT OF MSG WTG (G)		XADAMW
X/CENTREX	ADD'L DIR NUMBER, B		XADN
X/CENTREX	AF-ACCESS LINE (G)		XAAL
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT ACC PROT CT/OSI(G)		XOSIP
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT ACT DEACT CF (G)		XACACF
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT CALL WAIT LAMP (G)		XACAL
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT CALL-DETAIL ENT(G)		XACDE
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT CAMP W/DIST TN (G)		XACODT
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT CTL OF VOICE TE(G)		XACVT
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT EXT CLS TO CFBN(G)		XAECBA
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT KEY CONTROL (G)		XAAKCT
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT MESSAGE WTG (G)		XAAMW
X/CENTREX	AF-ATT T O D NCOS (G)		XTDNCS

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
X/CENTREX	AF-AUDIO ON INC CL QUE(G)		XAIICQ
X/CENTREX	AF-AUTODIAL (G)		XAD
X/CENTREX	AF-AUTOMATIC RECALL AT(G)		XARA
X/CENTREX	AF-BUSY VERF STA & TRK(G)		XABVST
X/CENTREX	AF-BUSY VERIFICATN TRK(G)		XABVT
X/CENTREX	AF-BUSY VERIFICTN STA (G)		XABVS
X/CENTREX	AF-CALL PARK RCALL TIM(G)		XACPRT
X/CENTREX	AF-CALL PARK/UNPARK (G)		XACPK
X/CENTREX	AF-CALL THROUGH TEST (G)		XACTT
X/CENTREX	AF-CAMP ON WITH MUSIC (G)		XACOWM
X/CENTREX	AF-CAMP-ON (G)		XACO
X/CENTREX	AF-CLOBAL VFG BUSY (G)		XAGVB
X/CENTREX	AF-CODE CALL ACCESS (G)		XACCA
X/CENTREX	AF-CONFERENCE (G)		XAC
X/CENTREX	AF-CONTROL OF FACLTIES(G)		XACF
X/CENTREX	AF-CTRL OF VFG ACCESS (G)		XACVA
X/CENTREX	AF-CTRL-CLOBAL VFG ACC(G)		XACGVA
X/CENTREX	AF-CTRL-TRK GROUP ACCS(G)		XACTGA
X/CENTREX	AF-DELAY OPERATION (G)		XADO
X/CENTREX	AF-DIAL THRU ATTND (G)		XADTA
X/CENTREX	AF-DO NOT DISTURB (G)		XADND
X/CENTREX	AF-DTMF END-TO-END SGN(G)		XADTMF
X/CENTREX	AF-EMERGENCY OVERRIDE (G)		XAEO
X/CENTREX	AF-FLEX CONSOLE ALERT (G)		XAFCA
X/CENTREX	AF-FLEX INC CALL RESTR(G)		XAFICR
X/CENTREX	AF-FLEXIBLE DISP LANG (G)		XAFDL
X/CENTREX	AF-FLEXIBLE INTERCEPT (G)		XAFI

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	AF-GROUP BUSY ID (G)		XAGBI
X/CENTREX	AF-GROUP TRK ACCSS CTL(G)		XAGTAC
X/CENTREX	AF-GROUP TRUNK BUSY (G)		XAGTB
X/CENTREX	AF-ISDN ATTNT CONSOLE (G)		XAIAC
X/CENTREX	AF-MULTI LIST DIR NBR (G)		XAMLD
X/CENTREX	AF-MULTI POS HUNT W QU(G)		XAMPHQ
X/CENTREX	AF-MULTI POSITION HUNT(G)		XAMPH
X/CENTREX	AF-NDATA LK CTL CL EXT(G)		XANDLC
X/CENTREX	AF-NET ATT B VYD STAT (G)		XANBVS
X/CENTREX	AF-NET CAMP-ON-1 (G)		XANCO
X/CENTREX	AF-NIGHT SERVICE (G)		XANSFL
X/CENTREX	AF-NIGHT SERVICE FIXED(G)		XANSF
X/CENTREX	AF-POSITION (G)		XAP
X/CENTREX	AF-POSITION BUSY (G)		XAPB
X/CENTREX	AF-QUERY-TIME KEY (G)		XAQTK
X/CENTREX	AF-RLEASE ON COMP DIAL(G)		XERLK
X/CENTREX	AF-SECRECY ATTENDANT (G)		XASECA
X/CENTREX	AF-SERIAL CALL ATTNDNT(G)		XASCA1
X/CENTREX	AF-SERVICE (G)		XAS
X/CENTREX	AF-SIMPLE MSG INTERFCE(G)		XASMI
X/CENTREX	AF-SOURCE BILL ATT HD (G)		XASBAC
X/CENTREX	AF-STA DID RESTRICTION(G)		XADIDR
X/CENTREX	AF-THRU DIALING (G)		XATD
X/CENTREX	AF-TRANSFER ATTENDANT (G)		XATRAT
X/CENTREX	AF-TRK ANSW FR ANY STA(G)		XATAAS
X/CENTREX	AF-TRK BUSY VERIF TONE(G)		XATBVT
X/CENTREX	AF-TRUNK GROUP BUSY (G)		XATGB

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	AF-UCD (G)		XAUCE
X/CENTREX	AF-UCD FROM QUEUE ATT (G)		XAUCDA
X/CENTREX	AF-VFG ACCESS CONTROL (G)		XATVAC
X/CENTREX	AF-VFG BUSY (G)		XAVB
X/CENTREX	AF-WILD CARD ACCESS (G)		XAWCA
X/CENTREX	ANON CALL REJECT, B		XAPACR
X/CENTREX	ANON CALL REJECTION, ABCD		XACR
X/CENTREX	AP-BASIC RATE INTRFACE(G)		XAPBRI
X/CENTREX	AP-IOP INTERFACE (G)		XAII
X/CENTREX	ARS BASIC - LINE, C		XARSBL
X/CENTREX	ARS BASIC - SYS, ABD		XARSBS
X/CENTREX	ARS-AUTHORIZATION CODE(G)		XACARS
X/CENTREX	ARS-BASIC (G)		XARS
X/CENTREX	ARS-ERWT (G)		XARSE
X/CENTREX	ARS-IDDD VIA ARS (G)		XIDDDA
X/CENTREX	ARS-OFFHOOK QUEUING (G)		XARSO
X/CENTREX	ARS-QUEING, CALLBACK (G)		XARSC
X/CENTREX	ARS-6 DIGIT SCREENING (G)		XARS6
X/CENTREX	ASSUMED DIAL 9 (G)		XAD9
X/CENTREX	ASSUMED DIAL 9, ABCD		XMAD9
X/CENTREX	AT-RECORDED ANNOUNCMNT(G)		XARAAT
X/CENTREX	AUTH CODE IMMED DIAL (G)		XACIMD
X/CENTREX	AUTH CODES-PER LINE,C		XACPL
X/CENTREX	AUTH CODES-PER OCC, ABCD		XACCHG
X/CENTREX	AUTH CODES-PER SYS, ABCD		XMACPS
X/CENTREX	AUTH CODES-STA SPEC, B		XACS
X/CENTREX	AUTH CODES-STA, B		XACSK

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
X/CENTREX	AUTH VERIF AND RECORD (G)		XAACVR
X/CENTREX	AUTHORIZATION CODES (G)		XAUTC
X/CENTREX	AUTO ANSWERBACK, B		XPAAB
X/CENTREX	AUTO CALL DIST-MIS (G)		XACDIS
X/CENTREX	AUTO CALLBACK/RING AGN(G)		XACBR
X/CENTREX	AUTO CIRCUITS ASSUR (G)		XACA
X/CENTREX	AUTO ID OUT DIAL B G (G)		XAIOD
X/CENTREX	AUTO INSPECT, B		XPAIM
X/CENTREX	AUTO LINE AND MADN (G)		XALM
X/CENTREX	AUTO LINE/DIR CONNECT (G)		XADC
X/CENTREX	AUTO ROUTE SEL (PBX) (G)		XARSP
X/CENTREX	AUTODIAL (G)		XAUTD
X/CENTREX	AUTODIAL, B		XPAUTD
X/CENTREX	AUTOMATIC INSPECT MODE(G)		XAIM
X/CENTREX	AUTOMATIC LINE I (G)		XALI
X/CENTREX	AUTOMATIC LINE, B		XPALP
X/CENTREX	BASIC DISPLAY, B		XPBD
X/CENTREX	BASIC STATION LINE HTG(G)		XBSLH
X/CENTREX	BASIC-PER ACD GROUP, B		XPACDB
X/CENTREX	BASIC-RECONFIG GROUP, B		XPACDR
X/CENTREX	BLIND TRANS REC ID (G)		XBTRID
X/CENTREX	BLIND TRANSFER RECALL (G)		XBTREC
X/CENTREX	BUSINESS SET INTERCOM (G)		XBSINT
X/CENTREX	BUSY OVERRIDE (G)		XBOV
X/CENTREX	CALL BACK QUE BUS SET (G)		XCBQBS
X/CENTREX	CALL BACK QUEUE ENH (G)		XCBQEH
X/CENTREX	CALL BLOCK, B		XCB

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
X/CENTREX	CALL BLOCK, PER SYS/LN(G)		XCLBLK
X/CENTREX	CALL DELAY ANNOUNCEMNT(G)		XCDAN
X/CENTREX	CALL FORWARDING VAR (G)		XCFDVA
X/CENTREX	CALL FORWD ENHANCMENTS(G)		XCFE
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD BUSY LINE (G)		XCFBL
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD BY LN INC ON (G)		XCBLIO
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD BY LN PROG I (G)		XCFBLP
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD DNT ANS PRG I(G)		XCFDAP
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD DONT AND INC (G)		XCFDAI
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD DONT ANSWER (G)		XCFDA
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD INC ONLY (G)		XCFIO
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD MULTI SIM		XCFMSS
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD MULTI SIM, A		SCFMSL
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD PRIVATE FAC (G)		XCFPF
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD REASON DISPLY(G)		XCFR
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD VAR ALL CALLS		XPCFV
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD VARIABLE (G)		XCFV
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD W/IN GRP ONLY(G)		XCFWGO
X/CENTREX	CALL FWD/AUT DIAL DISP(G)		XCFADD
X/CENTREX	CALL HOLD (G)		XCH
X/CENTREX	CALL HOLD II/PERM HOLD(G)		XCH2
X/CENTREX	CALL NAME DISP, INTRA		XPCND
X/CENTREX	CALL NUMB DEL BLOCK		XPCNB
X/CENTREX	CALL NUMB DEL BLOCK, ABCD		XCNDB
X/CENTREX	CALL PARK I (G)		XCPK
X/CENTREX	CALL PARK RECALL IDENT(G)		XCPRI
X/CENTREX	CALL PARK/RETRIEVE		XPCPCR

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	CALL PICKUP		XPCP
X/CENTREX	CALL PICKUP (G)		XCP
X/CENTREX	CALL PICKUP BUS SET (G)		XCPBS
X/CENTREX	CALL RETURN PER SYS/LN(G)		XCLRT
X/CENTREX	CALL RETURN, B		XPCR
X/CENTREX	CALL TRACE PER SYS/LN (G)		XCLTR
X/CENTREX	CALL TRACE, ABCD		XCT
X/CENTREX	CALL TRACE, B		XPCT
X/CENTREX	CALL TRACE, DENIAL, ABCE		XDCT
X/CENTREX	CALL TRACE, DENIAL, B		XPDCT
X/CENTREX	CALL TRACE, SUCCESS, ABCD		XCTPST
X/CENTREX	CALL TRANS, SYS EXCEP, B		XPCTW
X/CENTREX	CALL WAIT TERM W/CCCW,B		XPCWT
X/CENTREX	CALL WAIT TERM W/CCW,ABCD		XCWTI
X/CENTREX	CALL WAIT TERM-DIS TONE,C		XCWTZ
X/CENTREX	CALL WAITING (G)		XCW
X/CENTREX	CALL WAITING BUS SET (G)		XCWBS
X/CENTREX	CALL WAITING EXEMPT I (G)		XCWEXI
X/CENTREX	CALL WAITING EXEMPT, B		XCWEX
X/CENTREX	CALL WAITING INDCAT II(G)		XCWIII
X/CENTREX	CALL WAITING ORIG, ABCD		XCWO
X/CENTREX	CALL WAITING ORIG, B		XPCWO
X/CENTREX	CALL WAITING RINGBCK I(G)		XCWRBI
X/CENTREX	CALL WAITING TERMINTNG(G)		XCWT
X/CENTREX	CALL WTG IND II (G)		XCWII
X/CENTREX	CALL WTG ORIG FOR B/S (G)		XCWOBS
X/CENTREX	CALLER ID DELUXE, ACD		XCIDD

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	CALLER ID, NUMB ONLY,ABCD		XCID
X/CENTREX	CALLG/CALLD NBR DISPLY(G)		XISACN
X/CENTREX	CALLING NAME DELIVER, ACD		XCND
X/CENTREX	CALLING NAME DISP,INTRA,B		XCNDIS
X/CENTREX	CALLING NAME DISPLAY (G)		XCNMD
X/CENTREX	CALLNG NAME/NO DEL BLK(G)		XCNNDB
X/CENTREX	CALLNG NUMBER DELIVERY(G)		XCNDL
X/CENTREX	CAMP ON, STATION, B		XPSCO
X/CENTREX	CANCEL CALL WAITING (G)		XCCW
X/CENTREX	CCSA LINE OPTION (G)		XCCSLA
X/CENTREX	CCSA VFG OPTION (G)		XCCSVF
X/CENTREX	CENT DATA FAC POOLING (G)		XCDFP
X/CENTREX	CENTRALZED ATTNDNT SVC(G)		XCAS
X/CENTREX	CENTREX ELECTRONIC KEY(G)		XCEK
X/CENTREX	CFBL PROGRAMMABLE, B		XPCF
X/CENTREX	CFBL SPLIT DESTINATION, B		XPCF4
X/CENTREX	CFBL/DA INT/EXT SPLT (G)		XCFIES
X/CENTREX	CFDA PROGRAMMABLE, B		XPCF5
X/CENTREX	CFDA SPLIT DESTINATION, B		XPCF8
X/CENTREX	CISTP,ER GRP TRANSPRN (G)		XCGTI
X/CENTREX	CLG NBR DEL BLOCK-CALL(G)		XCNDBC
X/CENTREX	CODE CALLING (G)		XCCA
X/CENTREX	CODE CALLING ANSWER II(G)		XCCAII
X/CENTREX	CODE RESTR-N11, B		XPCRN
X/CENTREX	CODE RESTR-N11,ABCD		XCRN
X/CENTREX	CODE RESTR-10XXXX,ABCD		XCR10X
X/CENTREX	CODE RESTR-900, 976, ABCD		XCR9

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	CODE RESTRCTN ARRGMT (G)		XCRA
X/CENTREX	CODE RESTRICTION (G)		XCR
X/CENTREX	CONF-MEET ME, BASIC, B		XMMCI
X/CENTREX	CONF-PRESET, PER NUMBER,B		XPC
X/CENTREX	CONF-STA CONTROL, ACD		XSCC
X/CENTREX	CONF-STA CONTROL, LINE, B		XCC
X/CENTREX	CONF-STA CONTROLLER, B		XPSCC
X/CENTREX	CONFERENCE USE CONTROL(G)		XCVC
X/CENTREX	CONSULTATION HOLD (G)		XCHLD
X/CENTREX	CUST CHANGEABLE SC (G)		XSC3DC
X/CENTREX	CUST CTRL STA RESTRICT(G)		XCCSR
X/CENTREX	CUST DIAL ACCT RECORD (G)		XDCAR
X/CENTREX	CUT THROUGH DIALING (G)		XCUTD
X/CENTREX	DATA CALL PROTECTION, B		XPDCP
X/CENTREX	DECAS (G)		XDECAS
X/CENTREX	DELAY ANNOUNCEMENT, ABCD		XDA
X/CENTREX	DELUXE QUEUING (G)		XDQ
X/CENTREX	DIAL "0" CALLING (G)		XADOC
X/CENTREX	DIAL CALL WAITING, B		XPDCW
X/CENTREX	DIAL CALL WTG -BUS/SET(G)		XDCWBS
X/CENTREX	DIAL CODE SENDING ACCS(G)		XDCSA
X/CENTREX	DIAL DICTATION (G)		XDD
X/CENTREX	DIAL THRU ATTENDANT (G)		XDTA
X/CENTREX	DIR CALL P/U BARGE IN, B		XPDCPB
X/CENTREX	DIR CALL P/U NON-BARGE, B		XPDCNB
X/CENTREX	DIR CALLP/U BARGE EXMPT,B		XDCPBE
X/CENTREX	DIR CALLP/U BARGE IN,ABCD		XDCPB

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	DIR CALLP/U NONBARGE EX,B		XPDCNE
X/CENTREX	DIR CALLP/U NONBARGE,ABCD		XDCPNB
X/CENTREX	DIR CALLP/U NONBRG EX, BC		XDCPNE
X/CENTREX	DIR CPU NON BARGE IN (G)		XDCPN
X/CENTREX	DIRECT CONNECT (G)		XDC
X/CENTREX	DIRECT LN MNUAL LN SVC(G)		XDCM
X/CENTREX	DIRECT OUTWARD DIALING(G)		XDOD
X/CENTREX	DIRECTED CALL PARK (G)		XDICP
X/CENTREX	DIRECTED CALL PARK/RET,B		XPDCCR
X/CENTREX	DIRECTED CPU B I T II (G)		XDCPIT
X/CENTREX	DIRECTRY NO NET ATTRIB(G)		XDNNAT
X/CENTREX	DISA THIRD DIAL TONE (G)		XDITDT
X/CENTREX	DISA, DIR INW SYS ACC,B		XDISA
X/CENTREX	DISPLAY (G)		XDISPL
X/CENTREX	DISPLAY AND PRIVACY (G)		XDP
X/CENTREX	DISPLAY CALLED NUMBER (G)		XDCDN
X/CENTREX	DISPLAY CALLING NUMBER(G)		XDCGN
X/CENTREX	DIST CALL WAITING, SYS, B		XDCWT
X/CENTREX	DIST RING/CW W/CCW, AD		XDRCW
X/CENTREX	DIST RING/DIAL CW, C		XDRDCW
X/CENTREX	DIST RINGING SYS OVRRD, B		XDRSO
X/CENTREX	DIST RINGING, SYS, B		XDR
X/CENTREX	DISTINCTIVE RING & CW (G)		XDRCWT
X/CENTREX	DISTINCTIVE RING OVRRD,B		XPDRSO
X/CENTREX	DISTRIBUTED LINE HUNT, B		XDLH
X/CENTREX	DO NOT DISTURB, BD		XDND
X/CENTREX	DSS/BUSY LAMP, B		XPDSS

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	EBS AGENT - BASIC FEA, B		XBFAA
X/CENTREX	EBS AGT-C/A KEY W/MSBO,B		XPAC3
X/CENTREX	EBS AGT-C/A,DIF INCALL,B		XPAC4
X/CENTREX	EBS AGT-CK.ABS SVR KEY,B		XPAC1
X/CENTREX	EBS AGT-DISP QUEUE KEY, B		XPADQT
X/CENTREX	EBS AGT-EVENT CODE KEY,B		XPAECL
X/CENTREX	EBS AGT-MSBO, INCALL, B		XPAC2
X/CENTREX	EBS AGT-NOT READY KEY, B		XPANRK
X/CENTREX	EBS AS MESSAGE CENTER (G)		XEMSMS
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR - BASIC, B		XBFAS
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-AGT STAT LAMP, B		XAASL
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-ANS AGENT KEY, B		XASAAK
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-ANS EMER KEY, B		XASAEK
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-CALL AGT KEY, B		XASCA
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-CNTRL INTERFLOW,B		XACIK
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-DISP QUE THRSHD,B		XADQST
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-DISP QUEUE STAT,B		XADQSS
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-ENH OBSRV AGT, B		XASEOB
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-NITE SVC CNTRL, B		XASNS
X/CENTREX	EBS SVR-OBSERVE AGT KEY,B		XASOB
X/CENTREX	ECAS (G)		XECAS
X/CENTREX	ELCTRNC DIRECTORY SVC (G)		XEDS
X/CENTREX	ELCTRNC MSG REG SVE (G)		XEMRS
X/CENTREX	ELECTRNC TELEPHONE SVC(G)		XETS
X/CENTREX	ESS-OUTWARD CALLNG FTR(G)		XEOCF
X/CENTREX	ETS-ACCOUNT CODES (G)		XEAC
X/CENTREX	ETS-ARS (G)		XEARS

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	ETS-ARS DELUXE (G)		XEARSD
X/CENTREX	ETS-AUTHORIZATON CODES(G)		XEAVC
X/CENTREX	ETS-AUTO ALTERNATE RTE(G)		XEAAR
X/CENTREX	ETS-CUSTOMER ADMIN (G)		XETSCA
X/CENTREX	ETS-DELUXE QUEUING (G)		XEDQ
X/CENTREX	ETS-FAC ASSURANCE RPT (G)		XEFAR
X/CENTREX	ETS-FAC RESTRICT LEVEL(G)		XEFRL
X/CENTREX	ETS-FACILITY ADMIN CTL(G)		XEFAC
X/CENTREX	ETS-OFFHOOK QUEUING (G)		XEOHQ
X/CENTREX	ETS-OVERFLOW TO TOLL (G)		XEOTT
X/CENTREX	ETS-SMDR (G)		XESMDR
X/CENTREX	ETS-SMDR-CDAR (G)		XESC
X/CENTREX	ETS-TIE LINE (G)		XETL
X/CENTREX	ETS-TIME OF DAY ROUTNG(G)		XETDR
X/CENTREX	ETS-TRAFC DATA TO CUST(G)		XETDC
X/CENTREX	ETS-UNIFORM NUMBERING (G)		XEUN
X/CENTREX	EXCHANGE CIRCUIT (G)		XMSC
X/CENTREX	EXEC BUSY OVERRD EXMPT(G)		XEBOE
X/CENTREX	EXEC BUSY OVERRDE EX I(G)		XEBOEI
X/CENTREX	EXEC BUSY OVERRIDE, B		XEBO
X/CENTREX	EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE (G)		XEC
X/CENTREX	EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE I(G)		XECNFI
X/CENTREX	FACILITIES MANAGEMENT (G)		XFM
X/CENTREX	FEATURE GROUP 1, A		XAF1
X/CENTREX	FEATURE GROUP 1, B		XBF1
X/CENTREX	FEATURE GROUP 1, C		XCF1
X/CENTREX	FEATURE GROUP 1, D		XDF1

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	FOREIGN EXCH FORIGN CO(G)		XFXFCO
X/CENTREX	FULLY RESTRICTED SVC (G)		XFRS
X/CENTREX	FUNC SNG ACC- MDC FEA (G)		XFSAEF
X/CENTREX	GROUP INTERCM ALL CALL(G)		XGIAC
X/CENTREX	GROUP INTERCOM ALL CALL,B		XPGIA
X/CENTREX	GROUP INTERCOM I (G)		XGINTI
X/CENTREX	GROUP INTERCOM, B		XPGI
X/CENTREX	HOT LINE STATIONS (G)		XHLS
X/CENTREX	HUNT, SHORT, B		XPSHHT
X/CENTREX	HUNTING, REGULAR (G)		XHSC
X/CENTREX	IDENTIFED OUTWARD DIAL(G)		XIOD
X/CENTREX	INDIV PAGE GRP INTERCM(G)		XIPGI
X/CENTREX	INSPECT, B		XPI
X/CENTREX	INTERCOM, SET, B		XPINT
X/CENTREX	LAST NO REDIAL ASST (G)		XLNRAS
X/CENTREX	LAST NUMBER REDIAL I (G)		XLNRI
X/CENTREX	LEAVE WORD CALLING (G)		XLWC
X/CENTREX	LINE IDENTIFICATION (G)		XLI
X/CENTREX	LOUDSPEAKER PAGE ANSII(G)		XLPAII
X/CENTREX	LOUDSPEAKER PAGE/ANSWR(G)		XLPAGA
X/CENTREX	MADN NOT PDN, ADD'L APP,B		XADN2
X/CENTREX	MADN NOT PDN, 1ST APP,B		XMADN1
X/CENTREX	MADN RING FORWARD (G)		XMDRF
X/CENTREX	MADN RING FORWD-AUTO, B		XPMRFA
X/CENTREX	MADN RING FORWD-MANUAL, B		XPMRFM
X/CENTREX	MADN SAME TN, NO GUIDE,B		XADN3
X/CENTREX	MADN SNGL BRIDG ARRGMT(G)		XMDSBA

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	MADN, SECOND-CALL FRWD, B		XPMCF
X/CENTREX	MAIN STA EXTENSION SVC(G)		XMSE
X/CENTREX	MAKE BUSY ARRANGMNT II(G)		XMBAII
X/CENTREX	MAKE BUSY EX GRP INTC (G)		XMBDGI
X/CENTREX	MAKE BY EX TERM(MS/LN)(G)		XMBET
X/CENTREX	MAKE LN BUSY ALL CALLS(G)		XMLBAC
X/CENTREX	MAKE LN BUSY INTRAG I (G)		XMLBII
X/CENTREX	MAKE SET BUSY-PER DN, B		XPMSBD
X/CENTREX	MAKE SET BUSY, B		XPMSB
X/CENTREX	MBKS FEATURE BUTTON (G)		XMBKFB
X/CENTREX	MBPS MULT CALL APP (G)		XMBKCA
X/CENTREX	MDC ORG RSTR (G)		XMDCOR
X/CENTREX	MEET ME CONF SEC CODE (G)		XMMCSC
X/CENTREX	MEET ME CONFERENCE (G)		XMMC
X/CENTREX	MESSAGE SERVICE (G)		XMS
X/CENTREX	MESSAGE WAIT AUD, ABCD		XMWA
X/CENTREX	MESSAGE WAITING AUD, B		XPMWA
X/CENTREX	MESSAGE WAITING LAMP, B		XSTMWL
X/CENTREX	MIS DOWN STRM PROCSSR (G)		XMISDS
X/CENTREX	MISC LINE TERM-TIE LN (G)		XMLTTL
X/CENTREX	MISC LINE TERMINATIONS(G)		XMLT
X/CENTREX	MODULE ADDITIVE, B		XPMA
X/CENTREX	MT-DIG TERM DS1 CKTS, BCD		XMTDT
X/CENTREX	MT-DIG TERM PER DSO, BCD		XMTDO
X/CENTREX	MT-INWATS TERM, ABCD		XMTIW
X/CENTREX	MT-OUTWATS TERM, ABCD		XMTOW
X/CENTREX	MT-TRUNK SIDE TERM, ABCD		XMTTST

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	MULT APP DN MCA-NRSM (G)		XMCANR
X/CENTREX	MULTI APP DIR NO (G)		XMADN
X/CENTREX	MULTI APP DN MCA-RSM (G)		XMCARS
X/CENTREX	MULTI APP DN SCA-NRSM (G)		XSCANR
X/CENTREX	MULTI APP DN SCA-RSM (G)		XSCARS
X/CENTREX	MULTILINE HUNT GRP, ABCD		XMHG
X/CENTREX	MUSIC ANNC ON HOLD I (G)		ХМАОНІ
X/CENTREX	MUSIC ON HOLD BUS SET (G)		XMOHBS
X/CENTREX	MUSIC ON HOLD KEYSET, B		XPMOH
X/CENTREX	MUSIC ON QUEUE (G)		MXOQ
X/CENTREX	MUSIC/ANNOUNCE ON HOLD,BC		ХМОН
X/CENTREX	M52/M53 SET DISPLAY (G)		XM5253
X/CENTREX	NAME DISP MADN SEC MEM(G)		XMDMD
X/CENTREX	NET WIDE AUTO RT SEL (G)		XNWARS
X/CENTREX	NET WIDE RING AGAIN (G)		XNWRA
X/CENTREX	NETWORK ACCESS LIMITER(G)		XNAL
X/CENTREX	NETWORK ACCESS REGISTR(G)		XNAR
X/CENTREX	NETWORK CLASS OF SVC (G)		XNCOS
X/CENTREX	NETWORK DIAL PLAN DISP(G)		XNDPD
X/CENTREX	NETWORK INFO SIGNAL (G)		XNIS
X/CENTREX	NETWORK NUMBER DISPLAY(G)		XNND
X/CENTREX	NETWORK SPEED CALLING (G)		XNSC
X/CENTREX	NIGHT SERVICE FIXED (G)		XNSF
X/CENTREX	NIGHT SERVICE FLEXIBLE(G)		XNSFL
X/CENTREX	NIGHT SVC-ANS ANY STA (G)		XNSTA
X/CENTREX	NTWK MGMT RPTS-ANAL, B		XANMRA
X/CENTREX	NTWK MGMT RPTS-DIG, B		XANMRD

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	NTWK NA DISP-ATT COL (G)		XNNDAC
X/CENTREX	ONHOOK DIALING (G)		XOHD
X/CENTREX	OUT TRK QUEUING-WATS (G)		XOTQ
X/CENTREX	OUTGOING CALL SCREEN (G)		XOCS
X/CENTREX	OVERFLOW MSG IND II (G)		XOMIII
X/CENTREX	PERSONAL CALL SCREEN I(G)		XPCSI
X/CENTREX	PERSONAL CALL SCREEN, B		XCS
X/CENTREX	POSITION HUNT (G)		XPOHT
X/CENTREX	PREFER CALL FORWARDING, B		XPPCF
X/CENTREX	PREFERENTIAL HUNTING (G)		XPHT
X/CENTREX	PRIV FAC POOLING (G)		XPFP
X/CENTREX	PRIV REL CONF CONT (G)		XPRCC
X/CENTREX	PRIVACY ENABLE/RELEASE, B		XPPER
X/CENTREX	PRIVATE VIRT NET ENH (G)		XPVNE
X/CENTREX	PRIVATE VURTUAL NET (G)		XPVN
X/CENTREX	PROGRAM LINE SELECTION, B		XPRLNS
X/CENTREX	PROHIBIT 10XXX DIALING(G)		XP10X
X/CENTREX	PROHIBT INTERLATA DIAL(G)		XPILD
X/CENTREX	PVN ATTENDANT SERVICE (G)		XAPVNS
X/CENTREX	QUERY BUSY STATION, B		XQBS
X/CENTREX	QUERY TIME/DATE, B		XQTD
X/CENTREX	QUEUING(INCOMING) GRP,ACD		XQ
X/CENTREX	QUEUING, CALL BACK (G)		XCBQ
X/CENTREX	QUEUING, OFFHOOK (G)		XOHQ
X/CENTREX	RADIO PAGING (G)		XRP
X/CENTREX	RECORDED ANNOUNCEMENT (G)		XRANN
X/CENTREX	RECORDED TEL DICTATION(G)		XRTDA

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	REGULAR HUNTING DCO (G)		XHT
X/CENTREX	RELEASE LINK TRKS (G)		XRLT
X/CENTREX	REMOTE ACTVN OF CL FWD(G)		XRACF
X/CENTREX	REMOTE LOAD MGMT UPDATE,B		XARLM
X/CENTREX	REPEAT DIALING, B		XPRD
X/CENTREX	SEC MADN CALL FORWARD (G)		XSMDCF
X/CENTREX	SELECT CALL ACCEPTANCE, B		XPSCA
X/CENTREX	SELECT CALL ACCEPTANCE,BC		XSCA
X/CENTREX	SEMI RESTRICTED SVC (G)		XSEMI
X/CENTREX	SEQUENTIAL HUNTING (G)		XSH
X/CENTREX	SHORT HUNT (G)		XSHTHT
X/CENTREX	SIMP MSG DESK INTERFAC(G)		XSMDI
X/CENTREX	SIMPLIFIED DIALING (G)		XSIMDL
X/CENTREX	SIMULATED FAC GRP I/O (G)		XSFG
X/CENTREX	SIX PORT CONFERENCING (G)		X6PCNF
X/CENTREX	SIX PRT CON AUTO CODE (G)		XSPCAC
X/CENTREX	SMDI-PER LINE, BCD		XSMDIL
X/CENTREX	SMDI-PER LINE, 9600B,ABCD		XSMD96
X/CENTREX	SMDI-PER LINK, 1200B,ABCD		XSMD12
X/CENTREX	SMDR PER SYS. AC		XSMDR
X/CENTREX	SMDR RAO PER SYS, ABCD		XSMDRR
X/CENTREX	SMDR-CDAR (G)		XSMCD
X/CENTREX	SMDR-PREM (G)		XSMDRP
X/CENTREX	SMDR-RAO-CDAR (G)		XSMDRC
X/CENTREX	SPEED CALL LNG-ADDL USR,B		XPSCL
X/CENTREX	SPEED CALL LONG-ADDL,ABCD		XSCLA
X/CENTREX	SPEED CALL LONG-CNTL,ABCD		XSCLCL

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	Т	Product ID
X/CENTREX	SPEED CALL LONG-CNTRL,B		XPSCLC
X/CENTREX	SPEED CALL LONG, IND, AD		XSCLI
X/CENTREX	SPEED CALL SHORT, B		XPSCS
X/CENTREX	SPEED CALL, NETWORK, B		XNSCL
X/CENTREX	STA CNTRL OUT REST /DN, B		XPSCOR
X/CENTREX	STA DIAL CODE SCREEN (G)		XSDCS
X/CENTREX	STA DID RESTRICTION (G)		XSDIDR
X/CENTREX	STA HTG ARRNGMNTS II (G)		XSHAII
X/CENTREX	STA HTG-CIRC HUNT (G)		XSHCH
X/CENTREX	STA HTG-MULTLN HNT GRP(G)		XSHMHG
X/CENTREX	STA HTG-SERIES NON-SEQ(G)		XSHSNS
X/CENTREX	STA HTG-SERIES SEQ (G)		XSHSS
X/CENTREX	STA HTG-UCD (G)		XSHUCD
X/CENTREX	STA MSG WTG LAMP IND I(G)		XMWLII
X/CENTREX	STA NUMBER CORRELATION(G)		XSNC
X/CENTREX	STA ORIGINATION RESTR (G)		XSOR
X/CENTREX	STA REST-DENIED ORIG, B		XPDO
X/CENTREX	STA REST-DENIED TERM, B		XPDT
X/CENTREX	STA REST-DENY INCOMING, D		XSRDI
X/CENTREX	STA REST-DENY ORIGINATE,D		XSRDO
X/CENTREX	STA REST-DENY OUTGOING, D		XSRDA
X/CENTREX	STA REST-DENY SPEC FAC, A		XSRDSF
X/CENTREX	STA REST-DENY TERMINATE,D		XSRDT
X/CENTREX	STA REST-IN & OUT, AC		XSRIO
X/CENTREX	STA REST-INCOMING, AC		XSRI
X/CENTREX	STA REST-OUTGOING, AC		XSRO
X/CENTREX	STA REST-SEMI IN & OUT,AC		XSRSIO

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	STA REST-SEMI INCOMING,AC		XSRSI
X/CENTREX	STA REST-SEMI OUTGOING,AC		XSRSO
X/CENTREX	STATION ACT CFBL/DA (G)		XSACBD
X/CENTREX	STATION ACT DND W/REMD(G)		XSADND
X/CENTREX	STATION CONFERENCE (G)		XSATCN
X/CENTREX	STATION IDENTIFICATION(G)		XSI
X/CENTREX	STATION MESSAGE WAIT (G)		XSMWA
X/CENTREX	STATION RESTRICTION (G)		XSR
X/CENTREX	STATION SPEC AUTH CODE(G)		XSPAC
X/CENTREX	STOP HUNT/MAKE BUSY KY(G)		XSHMBK
X/CENTREX	STUTTR DIAL TONE-MWIA (G)		XSDTMW
X/CENTREX	SUBSIDIARY SYS ARRGMNT(G)		XSSA
X/CENTREX	SWITCH-COMPUTER LINK, B		XSCAI
X/CENTREX	THREE WAY CALL CHAINNG(G)		XTWCC
X/CENTREX	THREE WAY CONF/HOLD/TR(G)		XTWCCT
X/CENTREX	THREE WAY CONFERENCE (G)		XTWCF
X/CENTREX	TIME OF DAY NCOS (G)		XTNCOS
X/CENTREX	TOD CNTRL-ARSB,D-NCOS,BCD		XTOD
X/CENTREX	TOLL DIVERSION (G)		XTDTR
X/CENTREX	TOLL REST-EXP LOC CALL, B		XPELC
X/CENTREX	TOLL RESTIRCTION, B		XPTR
X/CENTREX	TOLL RESTRICTION, ABCD		XTDTR1
X/CENTREX	TOLL RST-EXP LOC CLL,ABCD		XRELC
X/CENTREX	TRAFFIC DATA TO CUST (G)		XTDC
X/CENTREX	TRK ANS FROM ANY STA (G)		XTAAS
X/CENTREX	TRUNK VERIFY FROM STA, B		XTVFS
X/CENTREX	TSF-ARS-D W/TCM, C		XTSFA

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
X/CENTREX	TSF-AUTO ALT ROUTE, C		XTSFAA
X/CENTREX	TSF-BASIC CAPABILITY,ABCD		XTSFBC
X/CENTREX	TSF-PER NODE, ABCD		XTSFN
X/CENTREX	TSF-TERMINATIONS, ABCD		XTSFT
X/CENTREX	TSF-UNIFORM NUMBERNG,ABCD		XTSFU
X/CENTREX	UCD LOGIN/LOGOUT, B		XPUCDI
X/CENTREX	UCD PER GROUP, ABCD		XUCD
X/CENTREX	UCD PER LINE, B		XUCDL
X/CENTREX	UCD QUEUE-STATUS LAMP (G)		XUCDQL
X/CENTREX	UCD W/DELAY ANNOUNCEMT(G)		XUCDDA
X/CENTREX	UCD, B		XPUCD
X/CENTREX	UNBUN ARS DELUX (G)		XUARSD
X/CENTREX	UNBUN ARS DX W/AUTO CD(G)		XUARAC
X/CENTREX	UNBUN ETS DLX QUEUE (G)		XUETSQ
X/CENTREX	UNBUN FAC ADM & CNTRL (G)		XUFADC
X/CENTREX	UNBUN SMDR (G)		XUSMDR
X/CENTREX	VAR LNGTH DIG DIAL TRS(G)		XVLSDL
X/CENTREX	VIRT FAC GRP LOOKAHEAD(G)		XVFGLA
X/CENTREX	VOICE DATA PROTECTION (G)		XVDP
ZIPCONNECT	ZIPCONNECT		AZP
800 SVC TO DID LINES	800 SVC TO DID LINES		DID800
800 SVC-CXR SEL ON REV CH	800 SVC-CXR SEL ON REV CH		CARSEL
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	CFBL - INTERSWITCH		99CFBL
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	CFDA - INTEROFFICE		99CFDA
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (CDRP)		99CDRP
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (FSRP)		99FSRP
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (HGP)		99HGP

Table H Services Available (continued)

Product Name	Feature Title	T	Product ID
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (MATG)		99MATG
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (MWI)		99MWIP
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (PDSP)		99PDSP
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (REG)		99REG
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (PPSCUG)		99CRGP
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (PPSDC)		99DCP
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (PPSFSP)		99FSAP
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (PPSRCA)		99RCAP
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (PPSX25)		99X25P
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	PPSN PKT RPT ONLY (PPSX75)		99X75P
99 - SYSTEM USE ONLY	99 SYSTEM USE ONLY		99

9. Appendix I

9.1 NPA / Area Information

The following list will assist you with selecting the Area/State based on NPA:

Table I NPA / Area Information

NPA	AREA
205, 334, 256	AL
352, 850, 904	FL - North
305, 786	FL - South
407, 561, 954	FL - Southeast
404, 770, 678	GA - Atlanta
706, 912	GA - Outstate
502, 606, 270	KY
318, 504, 490, 492, 225	LA
601, 228	MS
704, 910, 919, 336, 252, 828	NC
803, 864, 843	SC
423, 615, 901, 931	TN

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00 Issue 9.0, April, 200

10. Appendix J

10.1 Circuit ID Information

The following list will assist you with selecting the appropriate Area based on the circuit ID prefix:

Table J Circuit ID Information

CIRCUIT ID PREFIX	AREA
10	AL - Alabama
20, 21	NC - North Carolina
30	NF - North Florida
40	AT - Atlanta, Georgia
50	OS - Outstate Georgia
50	KY - Kentucky
60	LA - Louisiana
70	MS - Mississippi
70	SF - South Florida
80	TN - Tennessee
80	SE - Southeast Florida
90	SC - South Carolina

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00 Issue 9.0, April, 200

11. Appendix K

11.1 Address Structure Used in Address Validation Responses

Table K Address Structure Used in Address Validation Responses

MESSAGES	DESCRIPTION	ТҮРЕ
0000	Hit without message	Fielded address
I901, I902, I903, I904, W901, W902, W903, W904, W905, W907, W909, W910, W911, W912, W915, W918, W921, W922, W923, W924, W925, W926, W927, W929, W930, W931, W932, W933, W934, W935, W936, W937, W938, W943	Hit without message	Fielded address
E904, E909, E912, E914, E915, E916, E923, E924, E928, E932, E943, I913, W913, W939	No hits	N/A
E901, E931	Menu of Community names	Fielded address
E902, E951	Menu of Street Names	Address with range
E903	Menu of Descriptive Names	Fielded address
E905, E940, E952, E955	Range of house numbers	Address with range
E910, E941	Location Standards	Fielded address
E911, E942	Menu of supplemental addresses	Fielded address
E919	Menu of Basic Addresses for Descriptive Address input	Fielded address
E920, E922, E929, E930, E949	List of Basic Addresses	Fielded address
W906	Summary information	Address with range

- continued -

Table K Address Structure Used in Address Validation Responses (continued)

MESSAGES	DESCRIPTION	ТҮРЕ
E921, E967	Menu of Address Telephones (customer accounts/living units)	Fielded address
W908, E908, E958, E961, E962	Menu of Basic Addresses for a Street or Basics & Supplementals for a specific address	Both Address with range and Fielded address

12. Appendix L

12.1 Address Validation Messages

Note: All message IDs have a prefix of BLP and a suffix of ADR. For example, I901 would be

BLP901ADR.

Table L Address Validation Messages

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
0000	COMPLETED SUCCESSFULLY	Address validated
1001	EITHER STATE/COMMUNITY, STATE/ZIP CODE OR TELEPHONE NUMBER MUST BE PRESENT; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	Required fields are missing from the request.
1011	INQUIRY DOES NOT EXIST; PLEASE RESUBMIT WITH PROPER RESEND INDICATOR	On an Address Validation resend the inquiry number provided is not a valid inquiry number from a previous Address Validation response.
I901	THIS ADDRESS IS VALID BUT HAS PRE-CT FACILITIES ONLY.	This message informs the user that no telephone service has been established at this address, but pre-CT facilities are in place.
I902	PRIMARY STREET NAME RETURNED.	This message informs the user that the input street is an alternate street name and that Address Validation has returned the primary street name.
I903	PRIMARY BASIC ADDRESS RETURNED.	This message informs the user that the input address is an alternate basic address and Address Validation has returned the primary basic address.
W901	SIMILAR DESCRIPTIVE FOUND.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input descriptive address but did find a single similar descriptive address.
W902	SIMILAR STREET FOUND.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input street but did find a single similar street.

- continued -

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
W903	THIS ADDRESS HAS A LIVING UNIT AT THE BASIC ADDRESS ONLY.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input supplemental address but is returning the basic address information because a Living Unit exists at the basic address only.
W904	THIS ADDRESS IS VALID, BUT NO LIVING UNIT EXISTS.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found the input address, but no telephone service is established at this address.
W905	INPUT INFORMATION DOES NOT MATCH TELEPHONE NUMBER.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found the input telephone number but other input identifying information does not match the information for the address found with this telephone number.
W906	ADDRESS INFORMATION ONLY/ ASSIGN AHN.	This message, which is returned when more than 60 Address Validation telephone records exist on the specified street, advises the user (1) that this unnumbered address requires AHN assignment for service provisioning purposes and (2) that only summary address information is available.
W907	THIS ADDRESS ALSO HAS LIVING UNITS WITH SUPPLEMENTAL ADDRESSES.	This message informs the user that there is telephone service established at the input basic address, but there are also supplemental addresses at this basic address, which also have telephone service established.
W908	THIS ADDRESS ALSO HAS LIVING SUNITS WITH SUPPLEMENTAL ADDRESSES.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did find the input street and basic address, but the input supplemental does not match any existing supplementals in Address Validation. Address Validation returns up to 60 basic and/or supplemental addresses from which the user may select. The user may input additional or different information and send a new query or may request summary-level address information for the input address in order to create a new telephone record.
W909	SIMILAR COMMUNITY NAME FOUND.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input community name but did find a single similar community name.

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
W910	INPUT INFORMATION DOES NOT MATCH ROUTE & BOX.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found the input route & box, but other input identifying information does not match the information for this address.
W911	NO MATCH ON TELEPHONE NUMBER. MATCH ACHIEVED ON ADDRESS.	This message informs the user that the address was found based upon input address information not on the input TN.
W912	NO MATCH ON DESCRIPTIVE. MATCH ACHIEVED ON ADDRESS.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input descriptive but did find an address based on other input address information or telephone number.
W913	THERE ARE ONLY LIVING UNITS WITH SUPPLELMENTAL ADDRESSES.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found the input address, but telephone records exist only at supplemental addresses and not at the basic address.
W915	SIMILAR SUPPLEMENTAL ADDRESS FOUND.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input supplemental address but did find a single similar supplemental address.
W922	PRIMARY STREET RETURNED. FOUND IN DIFFERENT COMMUNITY.	This message informs the user that the input street is an alternate street. Address Validation is returning the primary street, and the address was found in a different community than the input community.
W923	SIMILAR STREET FOUND IN DIFFERENT COMMUNITY.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input street but did find a single similar street, which is in a different community than the input community.
W924	SIMILAR ALTERNATE STREET FOUND - PRIMARY STREET RETURNED.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input alternate street but did find a single similar alternate street and is returning the primary street.

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
W925	SIMILAR ALTERNATE FOUND IN DIFFERENT COMMUNITY - PRIMARY STREET RETURNED.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input alternate street but did find a single similar alternate street in a community different than the input community. Address Validation returns the primary street and the correct community name.
W926	SIMILAR DESCRIPTIVE FOUND IN DIFFERENT COMMUNITY/ZIP.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input descriptive address but did find a single similar descriptive address in a different community/ZIP than the input community/ZIP. Address Validation returns the similar descriptive with the correct community/ZIP.
W927	STREET NAME FOUND IN DIFFERENT COMMUNITY.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found the input street but in a different community than the input community.
W929	STREET NAME FOUND IN DIFFERENT ZIP.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found the input street but in a different ZIP than the input ZIP.
W930	STREET NAME FOUND IN DIFFERENT COMMUNITY AND ZIP.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found the input street but in a different community and ZIP than the input community and ZIP.
W931	PRIMARY STREET RETURNED. FOUND IN DIFFERENT ZIP.	This message informs the user that the input street is an alternate street, and the address was found in a different ZIP than the input ZIP. Address Validation returns the primary street.
W932	PRIMARY STREET RETURNED. FOUND IN DIFFERENT COMMUNITY AND ZIP.	This message informs the user that the input street is an alternate street, and the address was found in a different community and ZIP than the input community and ZIP. Address Validation returns the primary street.
W933	SIMILAR STREET FOUND IN DIFFERENT ZIP.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input street but did find a single similar street that is in a different ZIP than the input ZIP.

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
W934	SIMILAR STREET FOUND IN DIFFERENT COMMUNITY AND ZIP.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input street but did find a single similar street that is in a different community and ZIP than the input community and ZIP.
W935	SIMILAR ALTERNATE FOUND IN DIFFERENT ZIP - PRIMARY STREET RETURNED.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input alternate street but did find a single similar alternate street in a different ZIP than the input ZIP. Address Validation returns the primary street with the correct ZIP.
W936	SIMILAR ALTERNATE FOUND IN DIFFERENT COMM./ ZIP-PRIMARY STREET RETURNED.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input alternate street but did find a single similar alternate street in a different community and ZIP than the input community and ZIP. Address Validation returns the primary street with the correct community and ZIP.
W937	THIS ADDRESS ALSO HAS LIVING UNITS AT SIMILAR HOUSE NUMBERS.	This message informs the user that the address found is valid and has a living unit, and a living unit(s) also exists at another basic address(es) with the same street number.
W938	THIS ADDRESS ALSO HAS LIVING UNITS AT SUPPLELMENTAL & SIMILAR HOUSE NUMBERS.	This message informs the user that the address found is valid and has a living unit, and a living unit(s) also exists at another basic address with the same street number and at supplemental addresses at this basic address.
E901	STREET NAME FOUND IN MORE THAN ONE COMMUNITY.	This message informs the user that the input community cannot be identified, but Address Validation did find the input street in more than one community in the 3-digit zip search area. Address Validation returns a list of communities from which a selection may be made.
E902	NO EXACT MATCH ON STREET NAME.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find a match on the input street name but did find multiple similar street names in more than one community in the 3-digit zip search area. Address Validation returns a list of streets and communities from which a selection may be made.

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
E903	NO MATCH ON DESCRIPTIVE.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input descriptive address, but did find multiple similar descriptive addresses. Address Validation returns a list of descriptive addresses from which a selection may be made.
E904	NO MATCH ON DESCRIPTIVE ADDRESS - PLEASE ENTER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find address information based on the input descriptive address. The user must enter additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.
E905	NO MATCH ON HOUSE NUMBER OR AHN.	This message, which is returned when more than 60 Address Validation telephone records exist on the specified street, informs the user that Address Validation did find the input street, which has numbered/unnumbered street number ranges, but the input street number does not fall within a valid range. The user must provide additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.
E908	NO MATCH ON HOUSE NUMBER OR AHN.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did find the input street, but the input street number does not fall within a valid range and less than 61 telephone records exist in Address Validation for this street. This message may also return from Address Validation when the inquiry is an unnumbered inquiry and less than 61 telephone records exist in Address Validation for this street. The user may select from a list of up to 60 telephone records, provide additional or different information and resend the query, or request summary-level address information in order to create a new telephone record.
E909	NO MATCH ON TELEPHONE NUMBER.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find address information based on the input telephone number, and no other search criteria was provided which could otherwise be used for a search. The user must provide additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
E910	REVIEW LOCATION STANDARDS +	 This message advises that one of the following conditions exists: • The input supplemental address does not conform to the format standards established at this basic address. • The input supplemental address does conform to the format standards at the specified basic address, but no match is found.
E911	NO EXACT MATCH ON SUPPLEMENTAL ADDRESS.	 This message is returned by Address Validation, along with a list of up to 60 telephone records for this address, in the following situations: Address Validation did not find the input supplemental address but did find other supplemental addresses at the input basic address. If location standards exist for this address, the input supplemental address must conform to those standards. Otherwise, E910 will be returned. Only the basic address was input, but Address Validation contains telephone records only at supplemental addresses.
E912	NO MATCH ON ZIP CODE.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input 4-digit or 5-digit ZIP code, and there was no additional search area information input to assist in the search. The user must provide additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.
E914	FIELD ERROR - INVALLID SEARCH AREA.	This message informs the user that valid or complete search area information has not been input and a search cannot be performed. The user must input additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.
E915	FIELD ERROR - ENTER ADDITIONAL ADDRESS INFORMATION OR TELEPHONE NUMBER.	This message informs the user that complete address information, or a telephone number, has not been input; therefore a search cannot be performed. The user must input additional or different information in order to located the desired address.

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
E916	FIELD ERROR - INCORRECT TELEPHONE NUMBER FORMAT.	This message informs the user that the input telephone number is not in valid format. The user must input additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.
E919	MORE THAN ONE MATCH ON DESCRIPTIVE - SELECT BASIC ADDRESS.	This message informs the user that multiple basic addresses are associated with either the input descriptive or a single occurrence of a similar descriptive. Address Validation returns a list of basic addresses from which a selection may be made.
E920	MORE THAN ONE MATCH ON OCCUPANT NAME.	This message informs the user that Address Validation has found multiple occurrences of the input occupant name on the input street (no AHN was entered in this situation). Address Validation returns a list of basic addresses from which a selection may be made.
E921	MORE THAN ONE MATCH ON TELEPHONE NUMBER.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found more than one occurrence of the input telephone number. Other identifying information either was not provided or did not narrow the search to a specific address. Address Validation returns a list of basic addresses from which a selection may be made.
E922	NO MATCH ON OCCUPANT NAME.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input occupant name on the input street. Other identifying information either was not provided or did not narrow the search to a specific address, but Address Validation did find more than one similar occupant name on the input street. Address Validation returns a list of basic addresses from which a selection may be made.
E923	NO MATCH ON STREET NAME. PLEASE ENTER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input street name or any similar street names in the 3-digit ZIP search area. The user must provide additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
E924	NO SIMILAR COMMUNITY/ZIP FOUND.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input community/ZIP code, or any similar community. The user must provide additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.
E925	AHN ASSIGNMENT NOT ALLOWED. OBTAIN VALID HOUSE NUMBER.	This message informs the user that Address Validation cannot allow AHN assignment at the input address because it is no longer an unnumbered address. The user must provide additional or different information in order to assign an AHN or locate the desired address.
E926	AHN RANGE IS FULL. SELECT ANOTHER GSG OR CALL CLEC SPOC TO EXTEND RANGE.	This message informs the user that there are no more AHN numbers to be assigned at the input address because that AHN range is full. The user must select another GSG for AHN assignment, call the CLEC SPOC to extend the range, or provide additional or different information in order to assign an AHN or locate the desired address.
E928	NO SIMILAR LIVING UNIT - ENTER ADDITIONAL OR CORRECT INFORMATION.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input address, or an address with similar criteria, in the input search area.
E929	MORE THAN ONE MATCH ON STATUS.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found more than one occurrence of the input status on the input street, and other identifying information either was not provided or did not narrow the search to a specific address. Address Validation returns a list of basic addresses from which a selection may be made.
E930	MORE THAN ONE MATCH ON ROUTE & BOX.	This message informs the user that Address Validation found more than one occurrence of the input route & box on the input street, and other identifying information either was not provided or did not narrow the search to a specific address. Address Validation returns a list of basic addresses from which a selection may be made.

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
E931	NO MATCH ON EXACT STREET NAME AND COMMUNITY/ STATE.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input street name in the input community or in a similar community, but Address Validation did find more than one similar community that may or may not contain the input street. Address Validation returns a list of street names and community names from which a selection may be made.
E935	NO DATA TO RETURN - ASSIGN AHN?	This message is returned when Address Validation has been invoked but Address Validation found no living units existing on the specified street.
E936	INVALID GSG/COMMUNITY STREET UNIQUE KEY.	This message is returned to the user's application when Address Validation has been invoked and the GEOSEG code or the community street unique key fields contain invalid data.
E937	INVALID GSG, RANGE AND/OR COMMUNITY STREET UNIQUE KEY.	This message is returned to the user's application when Address Validation AHN has been invoked and a blank or an invalid code is present in any of the following fields: GEOSEG code, GEOSEG range low value, GEOSEG range high value, GEOSEG range type, GEOSEG range odd/even indicator, or community street unique key.
E942	SIMILAR ADDRESS FOUND - TYPE J DATA RETURNED.	This message is returned by Address Validation, along with a list of up to 60 telephone records for this address, in the same situations where E911 is returned, except that the inquiry was by descriptive name or a similar street name is found.
E949	ADDRESS VALID, NO LIVING UNITS EXIST. SIMILAR HOUSE #'S DISPLAYED.	This message informs the user that the input address is valid, but no living units exist, and Address Validation has returned a list of similar addresses.
E951	MORE THAN ONE EXACT MATCH ON STREET NAME FOUND.	This message informs the user that Address Validation did not find one match for the input street that was in a valid street number range, but Address Validation did find multiple matches (in or outside of a valid range) in the 3-digit zip search area. Address Validation returns a list of basic addresses from which a selection may be made.

Table L Address Validation Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
E958	STREET IN DIFF. COMM./ZIP-NO MATCH ON HS #/AHN.SELECT OR CREATE NEW.	This message is returned when less than 61 Address Validation telephone records exist on the specified street, and Address Validation found the street as a primary street name but in a different community/ZIP than the input community/ZIP, and the street has numbered/unnumbered street number ranges, but the input street number does not fall within a valid range. A list of up to 60 telephone records are provided for view and from which the user may make a selection. The user may provide additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.
E961	SIMILAR STREET NAME FOUND - NO MATCH ON HOUSE # OR AHN.	This message, which is returned when less than 61 Address Validation telephone records exist on the specified street, informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input street but did find a single similar primary street name, which has either numbered and unnumbered street number ranges, but the input street number does not fall within a valid range. A list of up to 60 telephone records are provided for view and from which the user may make a selection. The user may provide additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.
E962	SIMILAR STREET FOUND IN DIFF. COMMUNITY &/ZIP - NO MATCH ON hs #/AHN.	This message, which is returned when less than 61 Address Validation telephone records exist on the specified street, informs the user that Address Validation did not find the input street, but did find a single similar primary street name, which is in a different community/ZIP than the input community/ZIP, and the street has either numbered and unnumbered street number ranges, but the input street number does not fall within a valid range. A list of up to 60 telephone records are provided for view and from which the user may make a selection. The user may provide additional or different information in order to locate the desired address.

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00 Issue 9.0, April, 200

13. Appendix M

13.1 Telephone Number Assignment Messages

Table M Telephone Number Assignment Messages

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP1000TNX	Transaction successful	NONE. TRANSACTION SUCCESSFUL
BLP1001TNR	SYSTEM ERROR; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	Verify entries and resubmit If all required entries are provided and are valid contact CLEC SPOC.
BLP3002TNX	Dates were successfully changed	Dates were successfully changed on you telephone reservation.
BLP3003TNX	Confirmation %%%%%%% has been canceled	All telephone numbers previously reserved has been returned to Telephone Number Selection/Reservation per confirmation number displayed.
BLP3007TNX	Easy and coin are not permitted with sequential requests and were disregarded	RESUBMIT TRANSACTION
BLP5001TNX	Q and Z are invalid entries, character was changed to "*"	Letters Q & Z were entered in telephone number field and are not found on telephone keypad (STYLIST); so Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation changed these to * and continued to process request. Transaction successful.
BLP5002TNX	Switch %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%	Telephone Number Selection/Reservation able to honor request for telephone numbers but these numbers can only be used for additional service for existing customers. These numbers cannot be used on A or T order activity.
BLP5003TNX	Too few numbers to satisfy your request within same NXX	Telephone Number Selection/Reservation was able to find only some requested numbers with the same NXX. Others shown are from different NXX. You may accept these or resubmit request with different NXX.
BLP5004TNX	No numbers to match your request. These are in the same switch	There are no telephone numbers in NXX requested. Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation provided numbers from same switch and services will work. You may accept change or use different NXX in that switch.

- continued -

Table M Telephone Number Assignment Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP5005TNX	Too few numbers to satisfy quantity requested.	Telephone Number Selection/Reservation will display partial list, not numbers requested. If unacceptable, change request.
BLP5006TNX	Confirmation numbers must be assigned by Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Confirmation number entered and proper key depressed to reserve telephone numbers. Telephone Number Selection/Reservation must assign confirmation number.
BLP5007TNX	Maximum of 10 numbers allowed per confirmation number	Request for additional telephone numbers exceeds 10 per confirmation.
BLP5009TNX	The NPA NXX entered is invalid for this switch	Telephone numbers already displayed and different NPA and NXX entered and more telephone numbers were requested. Only numbers from same C.O. switch can be reserved on single reservation.
BLP5011TNX	No exact match. Confirmation(s) found for customer name only	Telephone Number Selection/Reservation searched using all criteria specified. There is no match and Telephone Number Selection/Reservation defaulted to customer names.
BLP5013TNX	These numbers can be reserved but are not valid on service orders until NXX effective date %%/%%/%%	Telephone Numbers may be reserved only. Cannot use on service order until NXX effective date.
BLP5014TNX	No sequential numbers found to match your line number request. These are in the same switch	Telephone Number Selection/Reservation searched using criteria specified. There is no match, returned numbers may be sequential. You may accept change or use different line number criteria.
BLP5015TNX	No sequential groups large enough to satisfy quantity requested. Here are two smaller groups.	Telephone Number Selection/Reservation searched using criteria specified no match found for quantity requested.
BLP5017TNX	Qty TNs reduced to %% since limit has been reached	Request exceeds limit %% send for confirmation number for these TNs and send another request for additional TNs.
BLP7008TNX	Only letters or numbers allowed in the switch field	CO switch field contains characters not allowed in eight or eleven spaces.

Table M Telephone Number Assignment Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP7009TNX	Please enter three numbers in the CO(TTA) field	Resubmit transaction after correcting TTA value.
BLP7010TNX	Quantity must be between 1 and 10	Number in quantity field missing or greater than 10. Can be written as 1-9, 01-09, or 10.
BLP7013TNX	Switch XXXXXXXXX not found in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Telephone Number Selection/Reservation unable to find valid switch by name reported in error message. If request made by NPA/NXX, call BellSouth Acct. Team Representative.
BLP7014TNX	Switch XXXXXXXXX is frozen. No reservation allowed at this time.	All activity for switch discontinued; possibly due to central office conversion. Check Service Availability screen for more detail.
BLP7015TNX	Switch XXXXXXXX is a manual switch. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	BellSouth Acct. Team Rep must make manual assignments and reservations for this switch.
BLP7016TNX	Switch %%%%%%%%%%%%%%has no more numbers. Call BellSouth Acct Rep.	Call BellSouth Acct. Rep.
BLP7020TNX	Numbers already reserved. Request not honored.	Numbers on screen already reserved. If date to be changed, make change again and resend transaction.
BLP7026TNX	Reserve date must be today or later	Contact CLEC SPOC.
BLP7028TNX	Date all date exceeds XX limit for switch	Telephone numbers can only be reserved for specified time.
BLP7030TNX	Reserve all date missing or invalid. Please correct.	Verify correct format MM/DD/YY.
BLP7048TNX	Invalid request type	Contact CLEC SPOC to report problem.
BLP7050TNX	Specific TN requested is already reserved for another customer	Resubmit transaction using different TN.
BLP7052TNX	Specific TN requested is not in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Resubmit transaction after correcting TN.

Table M Telephone Number Assignment Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP7053TNX	No numbers with NPA NXX entered found in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Combination of NPA and NXX should be corrected and re-entered.
BLP7054TNX	CO switch & CO(TTA) combination not found in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Verify NPA and CO. If entry valid, contact your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7055TNX	NPA/CO(TTA) combination not found in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Verify NPA and CO. If entry valid, contact your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7058TNX	Switch %%%%%%%%%%%%% for NPA NXX not coin equipped	Resubmit transaction specifying different CLLI.
BLP7059TNX	Switch %%%%%%% not coin equipped	Resubmit transaction specifying different CLLI.
BLP7060TNX	Switch %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7064TNX	No numbers found to match your request	List of telephone numbers displayed must be disposed of before investigation started.
BLP7065TNX	NPA NXX entered invalid for this switch.	If this is a new code contact BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7068TNX	No easy numbers available in future NPA NXX %%% %%%	None
BLP7069TNX	No numbers available in future NPA NXX %%% %%%	None
BLP7070TNX	Reserve date must be after NPA NXX effective date of %%/%%/%%	TN cannot be reserved until effective date.
BLP7072TNX	No coin numbers available in future NPA NXX %%% %%%	None.

Table M Telephone Number Assignment Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP7073TNX	Switch for NPA NXX %%% %%% has no more coin numbers. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7075TNX	No sequential numbers found to match your request	None
BLP7083TNX	No TNs provided; CLLI/TTA limit already reached	Resubmit transaction using different CLLI/TTA combination.
BLP9001TNX	System error. Call CLEC SPOC and give them this info: code 9999; location %%%	Contact CLEC SPOC.

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-001 Issue 9.0, April, 2001

14. Appendix N

14.1 Direct Inward Dial Messages

Table N Direct Inward Dial Messages

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP0004DID	QUANTITY OF DID REQUESTS EXCEEDS ALLOWED LIMIT	Decrease quantity.
BLP0007DID	RTI VALUE NOT VALID; MUST BE NUMERIC	Provide 3-4 digit RTI.
BLP1000DID	Transaction successful	
BLP1001DID	SYSTEM ERROR; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	Verify entries and resubmit If all required entries are provided and are valid contact CLEC SPOC.
BLP1004DID	RTI VALUE NOT VALID; MUST BE NUMERIC	Provide 3-4 digit RTI.
BLP3001DID	Numbers marked with * are reserved	Transaction successful. Take note of reserved number list.
BLP3002DID	Dates were successfully changed	Dates were successfully changed on your telephone number reservation.
BLP3003DID	Confirmation XXXXXXXX has been canceled.	All telephone numbers previously reserved has been returned to Telephone Number Selection/Reservation.
BLP3004DID	Transaction successful. Note: some ranges may contain more than one block	Transaction successful. Number range provided may contain more than 1 block of numbers. A block of numbers = 20 Telephone Numbers.
BLP3005DID	Transaction successful. Ranges returned	Transaction successful. Take note of number ranges returned.
BLP3006DID	Confirmation %%%%%%% has been canceled	Transaction successful. Do not use telephone numbers on service request.
BLP5001DID	Too few numbers to satisfy your request within same NXX	Insufficient supply of telephone numbers in requested NNX. Other telephone numbers supplied are of another NNX same CO switch.

- continued -

Table N Direct Inward Dial Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP5002DID	No numbers to match your request. These are in the same switch	No telephone numbers available in NNX requested. Telephone numbers provided are in same CO switch.
BLP5003DID	Switch %%%%%%%%%%%% is capped. Numbers may not be used for new service	Telephone numbers in this switch are for additions to existing service only.
BLP5004DID	TNs provided were not reserved; no action was taken	Telephone numbers provided but not reserved. Submit for confirmation number.
BLP5005DID	Not all TNs provided were found in Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation; those that are in Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation were returned	Only telephone numbers found in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation were returned. Verify all entries for return consideration. Resubmit request.
BLP5006DID	Maximum of %%% blocks allowed per confirmation number	Maximum met for blocks allowed per confirmation. If more needed submit additional request.
BLP5009DID	List was based on customer name alone because other criteria did not match	Try providing more information and resubmit.
BLP5012DID	Too few numbers to satisfy quantity requested	Try another NXX in same switch and resubmit.
BLP5013DID	TTA entered was not numeric and was ignored by Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Correct the TTA entered and resubmit.
BLP5014DID	The NPA NXX entered is invalid for this switch	Verify NPA NXX and resubmit request.
BLP5015DID	These numbers can be reserved but are not valid on service orders until NXX effective date %%/%%/%%	Telephone Numbers not available until effective date and not valid on service orders.
BLP5016DID	Maximum of 25 TNs allowed per confirmation number	Maximum met. If more TNs are required submit additional confirmation requests.
BLP7003DID	You must enter NPA NXX and/or CLLI before requesting a search	Enter required element of either NPA/NNX or CLLI and resubmit request.

Table N Direct Inward Dial Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP7004DID	There is no CLLI in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation to support DID numbers for the information entered: NPA NXX	Remove CLLI information and resubmit request.
BLP7005DID	There is no CLLI in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation to support DID numbers for information entered: CLII %%%%%%%%%%%/ TTA %%%	Remove CLLI information and resubmit request.
BLP7007DID	No DID reservations found to match the criteria entered	Check for any entry errors and resubmit request.
BLP7010DID	Switch %%%%%%%%%%%% is frozen. No reservations allowed at this time. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7011DID	Switch is a manual switch. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7012DID	Quantity must be numeric	Change entry into numeric and resubmit request.
BLP7014DID	Reserve all date must be today or later	Verify date entered and resubmit request.
BLP7015DID	Date on line %% must be today or later	Verify date entered and resubmit request.
BLP7016DID	Reserve all date invalid	Verify date entered and resubmit request.
BLP7017DID	Date on line %% is invalid	Verify date entered and resubmit request.
BLP7018DID	Reserve all date exceeds %% month limit for switch	Verify date entered does not exceed noted limit and resubmit request.
BLP7019DID	Date on line %% exceeds month limit for switch	Verify date entered does exceed noted limit and resubmit request.
BLP7020DID	Reserve all date must be after NPA NXX effective date %%/%%/%%	Check date entered against effective date and resubmit request.
BLP7021DID	Date on line %% must be after NPA NXX %%% %%% effective date %%/%%/%%	Check date entered against effective date and resubmit request.

Table N Direct Inward Dial Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP7023DID	NPA NXX entered was not numeric and was ignored by Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Verify entry made is numeric and resubmit request.
BLP7027DID	Customer TN must be supplied to reserve numbers	Make entry in "CONTACT TN" field and resubmit request.
BLP7028DID	Customer TN must be numeric	verify entry in field is numeric only.
BLP7033DID	There are no blocks of DID TNs in Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation to match your request. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7039DID	Confirmation number not found in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Verify confirmation number entered and resubmit request.
BLP7040DID	No ranges found to match confirmation number entered. No action taken	Verify confirmation number entered is correct and retry request.
BLP7041DID	Please enter one or more of the following criteria: TN, CLLI, ASR #, customer name, customer TN, and/or confirmation number	Make appropriate valid entries and resubmit request.
BLP7042DID	Confirmation number required to display more numbers	Add confirmation number and resubmit request.
BLP7043DID	You must enter an RTI number to confirm numbers. If you do not have an RTI number, enter "none"	Make valid entry as indicated and resubmit request.
BLP7045DID	There are no more blocks of DID numbers in this CLLI/TTA. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP9001DID	System error. Call CLEC SPOC and give them this info: code 9999 location %%%	Call the CLEC SPOC

15. Appendix O

15.1 Multi-Line Hunt Messages

Table O Multi-Line Hunt Messages

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP0005MLH	LEAD TELEPHONE NUMBER REQUIRED ON A MULTI-LINE HUNT TRANSACTION	Provide lead TN
BLP0008MLH	QTY IN-TER AND QTY-OUT-TER CANNOT BOTH BE BLANK	Provide QTY-IN-TER or QTY-OUT-TER
BLP0009MLH	QTY LAST-IN-TER AND QTY-LAST-OUT-TER CANNOT BOTH BE BLANK	Provide LAST-IN-TER or QTY-LAST-OUT-TER
BLP1000MLH	Transaction successful	
BLP1001MLH	SYSTEM ERROR; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	Verify entries and resubmit. If all required entries are provided and are valid contact CLEC SPOC.
BLP3001MLH	A separate telephone number is required for each line in a DMS10 office; therefore no TERs have been provided.	In a DMS100 switch each line telephone number identified. TERs are invalid.
BLP3002MLH	MLH number(s) were returned to Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation. Do not put returned number(s) on a service order.	Do not use these telephone numbers on service order.
BLP3003MLH	The MLH number(s) shown already exist so it was not returned to Telephone Number Selection/Reservation	Transaction not needed. MLH number(s) already in Telephone Number Selection/Reservation.
BLP3004MLH	Existing MLH will still work. Additional TERs are shown below the MLH number	Additional TERs are returned to be used with existing MLH.
BLP3005MLH	Replacing existing MLH with????. Additional TERs are shown below the new MLH	Additional TERs are returned with a new MLH, verify if you need a new MLH.

- continued -

Table O Multi-Line Hunt Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP3006MLH	Existing MLHs will still work. Additional TERs are shown below their respective MLH numbers	Additional TERs returned to work with existing MLHs.
BLP3007MLH	First MLH, %%%%, will still work. Replace second MLH with %%%%. Necessary TERs are shown below their respective MLH numbers	First MLH will still be used. Second MLH has been replaced. Necessary TERs are shown with respective MLH.
BLP3008MLH	Second MLH, %%%%, will still work. Replace first MLH with %%%%. Necessary TERs are shown below their respective MLH numbers	First MLH has been replaced. Second MLH will still be used. Necessary TERs are shown with respective MLH.
BLP3009MLH	Existing MLH, %%%%, will still work and you must add a 2nd MLH %%%%. Necessary TERs are shown below their respective MLH numbers	Existing MLH still works and you need to add a 2nd MLH. Necessary TERs are shown with respective MLH.
BLP3010MLH	Replace existing MLH with %%%% and add a second MLH %%%%. Necessary TERs are shown below their respective MLH numbers	Replace existing MLH and add a 2nd MLH. TERs are shown with respective MLH.
BLP3011MLH	Second MLH %%%% still works. Remove first MLH (it is not valid). TERs shown replace those for first MLH and support additional service	Remove 1st MLH and supporting TERs. Use any additional TERs with 2nd MLH.
BLP3012MLH	Replace first MLH with %%%%. Remove second MLH (it is not valid). TERs shown replace those for second MLH and support additional service	Change out 1st MLH with new MLH and use TERs with new MLH. Remove 2nd MLH and supporting TERs.
BLP3013MLH	Existing MLH will still work. Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided	MLH is valid. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.
BLP3014MLH	Replace existing MLH with %%%%. Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided	New MLH is being provided. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.
BLP3015MLH	Existing MLH will still work. Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided	MLH is valid. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.

Table O Multi-Line Hunt Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP3016MLH	First MLH, %%%%, will still work. Replace second MLH with %%%%. Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided	1st MLH is valid. Change 2nd MLH to new MLH. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.
BLP3017MLH	Second MLH, %%%%, will still work. Replace first MLH with %%%%. Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided	Change 1st MLH. 2nd MLH still valid. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.
BLP3018MLH	Existing MLH, %%%%, will still work and you must add a second MLH, %%%%. Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided	Existing MLH is valid. Need to add 2nd MLH. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.
BLP3019MLH	Replace existing MLH with %%%%, and add a second MLH %%%%. Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided.	Change 1st MLH. Need to add 2nd MLH. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.
BLP3020MLH	Second MLH, %%%%, still works. Remove first MLH (it is not valid). Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided	Remove 1st MLH. Use 2nd MLH. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.
BLP3021MLH	Replace first MLH with %%%%. Remove second MLH (it is not valid). Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided	Change 1st MLH. Remove 2nd MLH. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.
BLP3022MLH	First MLH, %%%%, still works. Remove second MLH (it is not valid). TERs shown replace those for second MLH and support additional service	1st MLH is valid. Remove 2nd MLH. Use TERs shown with 1st MLH.

Table O Multi-Line Hunt Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP3023MLH	First MLH, %%%%, still works. Remove second MLH (it is not valid). Separate TNs required for each line in a DMS10 office so no TERs have been provided	1st MLH is valid. Remove 2nd MLH. In a DMS100 office each line is telephone number identified TERs are not used.
BLP5001MLH	MLH provided is for new service only; additional service values were ignored	Use MLH with new service only.
BLP5002MLH	CLLI, %%%%%%%%, is capped. MLH numbers supplied here can be used only on orders for existing accounts	Use MLH with existing service only.
BLP5003MLH	There are no TNs available in %%%%. Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7004MLH	Reserve until date is invalid. Please correct it	Verify the reserve until date and resubmit request.
BLP7005MLH	You must enter existing MLH number(s) when requesting additional service	Please enter existing MLH to request for additional service or indicate new request and resubmit.
BLP7006MLH	Please enter last inward/2-way TERs and/or last out- dial TERs when requesting additional service	When requesting additional service a valid entry is required under "Additions To Existing Service". Make appropriate entry and resubmit.
BLP7007MLH	You entered too many last inward/ 2-way TERs. There should only be one per existing MLH	Only one entry is valid for the TERs. Make correction and resubmit.
BLP7008MLH	You entered too many last out-dial TERs. There should only be one per existing MLH	Only one entry is valid for the TERs. Make correction and resubmit.
BLP7009MLH	You must enter a last inward/2-way or last out-dial TER for each existing MLH number	When requesting additional service a valid entry is required under "Additions To Existing Service". Make appropriate entry and resubmit.

Table O Multi-Line Hunt Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP7010MLH	The second MLH number has no TERs under it; please add or move a TER under that MLH number	Add or move a TERs to go under 2nd MLH number.
BLP7011MLH	The first MLH number has no TERs under it; please add or move a TER under that MLH number	Add or move a TERs to go under 1st MLH number.
BLP7012MLH	Multiple CLLIs found to satisfy criteria; please enter 11 character CLLI or TTA	Enter correct CLLI or TTA. This information can be found in Service Availability.
BLP7013MLH	No CLLI found to match criteria entered. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7014MLH	No MLH assignments allowed from CLLI %%%%. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7015MLH	Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation cannot find the switch type for CLLI %%%. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7016MLH	Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation cannot find the CLLI. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7017MLH	Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation does not have any info on assigning MLH for switch type %%%% associated with CLLI %%%%%%%%%%%%. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7018MLH	Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation does not have complete rules for handling MLH ranges for switch type %%%%. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7019MLH	Switch type is in class DMS10 so it does not have TERs. Please use last-TER fields to enter quantity of existing TERs	DMS100 office does not use TERs each line is telephone number identified.

Table O Multi-Line Hunt Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP7020MLH	Please specify quantity of inward/2-way and/or out-dial lines needed	Enter quantity of lines needed. Resubmit request.
BLP7021MLH	You are dealing with more lines than Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation can accommodate. Please call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7022MLH	There are no MLH numbers in CLLI %%%%%%%%%%%%%. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7023MLH	Reserve until date must be today or later	Type entry in "Reserve Until" field. Resubmit request.
BLP7024MLH	Reserve until date for MLH numbers may not exceed one year	Verify date entered in "Reserve Until" field is not greater than 1 year. Resubmit request.
BLP7025MLH	CLLI %%%%%%%%%%% is frozen. No MLH numbers can be assigned at this time. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7026MLH	CLLI %%%%%%%%%%% is a manual CLLI so Telephone Number Selection/Reservation cannot assign MLH numbers. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7027MLH	Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation cannot find any priority ratings for CLLI %%%%%%%%. Call BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.	Call your BellSouth Acct. Team Rep.
BLP7030MLH	MLH %%%% was not found in Telephone Number Selection/ Reservation. Please verify that the MLH number being returned is correct.	The MLH entered was not found. Verify entry and resubmit request.
BLP7031MLH	Please enter either in-ter-qty or out-ter qty, not both, and resubmit.	Request only in-ter or out-ter. If both are needed 2 separate requests need to be sent.

Table O Multi-Line Hunt Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP7032MLH	Either in-ter-qty or out-ter-qty must be entered to process this request.	This request needs an entry in the in-ter or out-ter field. Type in entry and resubmit.
BLP7039MLH	Too many TERs for a single MLH. For this CLLI, each MLH can support a maximum of 2047 IN-TERs and 999 OUT-TERs 256 TERs 2015 IN-TERs and 999 OUT-TERs 256 IN-TERs or 256 OUT-TERs 256 TERs 60 TERs 4095 IN-TERS or 4095 OUT-TERs	Limitations have been exceeded please verify entry quantity and resubmit.
BLP9001MLH	System error. Call CLEC SPOC and give them this info: code: 9999, location ????.	Call the CLEC SPOC

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00 Issue 9.0, April, 200

16. Appendix P

16.1 Service Availability Messages

Table P Service Availability Messages

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP0000SAV	TRANSACTION COMPLETED SUCCESSFULLY	None
BLP1001SAV	INVALID COMBINATION OF NPANXX %%%%%% AND CLLI CODE %%%%%%%%%; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION	This message informs the user that the CLLI code or the NPANXX code combination is invalid.
BLP1002SAV	CLLI MUST EXIST TO VALIDATE NPANXX AND CLLI COMBINATION	This message informs the user that the CLLI code is missing.
BLP1003SAV	NPA NXX MUST EXIST TO VALIDATE NPA NXX AND CLLI COMBINATION	This message informs the user that the NPA NXX code is missing

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-001 Issue 9.0, April, 2001

17. Appendix Q

17.1 Appointment Availability Messages

Note: These message Ids have a prefix of BLP and a suffix of AAV. Example: BLP0000AAV

Table Q Appointment Availability Messages

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEST	DESCRIPTION
0000	Transaction completed successfully	Good return.
1001	WORK DAY INTERVAL HAS NOT BEEN ASSIGNED FOR THIS NPANXX %%%%%%	None
3600	Bad Return code from NAVRECV	Unable to complete transaction, please resubmit your query.
3610	IMS error code from NAVRECV	Unable to complete transaction, please resubmit your query.
3620	NPANXX not found	NPANXX not found in database.
3630	IMS INIT error	Unable to complete transaction, please resubmit your query.
3650	Error from NAVSEND	Unable to complete transaction, please resubmit your query.

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-001 Issue 9.0, April, 2001

18. Appendix R

18.1 Customer Record Messages

Table R Customer Record Messages

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP0000CSR	CSR Transaction Completed Successfully.	None
BLP0003CSR	Invalid data in agency authorization status or date of agency authorization.	For CSRQ, agency authorization must be "Y" and date of agency authorization must use the format MM-DD-CCYY. Correct one or more of these fields and resubmit the query.
BLP0004CSR	Invalid data ([state code]) in state code field.	State code field is required when query is by circuit id. Valid state code fields are: AT for Atlanta, OS for everything in Georgia outside greater metro Atlanta area, SF for South Florida (Miami), NF for North Florida, SE for Southeast Florida (Ft. Lauderdale), KY for Kentucky, LA for Louisiana, MS or Mississippi, TN for Tennessee, NC for North Carolina and SC for South Carolina. Use one of the valid state codes and resubmit the query.
BLP0005CSR	Missing account number or circuit ID field.	Data in account number and circuit ID cannot both be blanks. Queries for CSR data must be by account number or circuit ID. Determine if query will be account number or circuit ID, enter the appropriate data, and resubmit the query.
BLP0006CSR	Invalid data ([account number and customer code]) in account number and/or customer code fields.	Queries by telephone number must be by the 10-character account code or the 10-character account code plus the 3-character customer code. Reenter either 10 or 13 characters and resubmit the query.
BLP0008CSR	Invalid NPA for account [account number].	NPA is not a BellSouth NPA. Determine correct NPA and resubmit the query.

- continued -

Table R Customer Record Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP0009CSR	Requested account [original account number] is not a main telephone. Reenter [account number] to access CSR information.	Resubmit query using the 13-character account number/customer code returned.
BLP0010CSR	Requested account [account number] is a exceeds capacity allowed by CMISE protocol	Additional data exists that could no be transmitted due to system limitations. Call the LCSC to request the remaining CSR data by fax.
BLP0011CSR	Account number found for circuit ID request. Resubmit query using account [account number].	Match found for circuit ID query. Resubmit query using the account number.
BLP1001CSR	CSR data for [account number/customer code] cannot be accessed due to a system error.	An error occurred trying to retrieve CSR data. Resubmit query. If problem persists, contact the CLEC Single Point of Contact (SPOC).
BLP1002CSR	Access restricted for account [account number/customer code] at the customer's request. If the customer has authorized this request, contact the Local Carrier Service Center (LCSC) for a faxed delivery.	The account contains a CPNI or CLEC restriction at the customer's request. If the customer has authorized this request, contact the LCSC for a faxed delivery.
BLP1003CSR	Account [account number/customer code] not found in BellSouth's CSR database.	Determine correct account number/customer code and resubmit query.
BLP1004CSR	BellSouth is not authorized to provide information on this account, [account number/customer code].	The account belongs to another reseller or facility-based provider. Access to this account is denied.

Table R Customer Record Messages (continued)

MSG ID	MESSAGE TEXT	DESCRIPTION
BLP1005CSR	Circuit ID [Circuit ID] not found in BellSouth's CSR database.	Determine correct circuit ID and resubmit query.
BLP2999CSR	Account data for [account number/customer code] exceeds 1 MB of data. Contact the Local Carrier Service Center (LCSC) for a faxed delivery of remaining data.	Data for this account is greater than 1 megabyte and cannot be delivered electronically. Contact the LCSC for a faxed delivery of remaining data.

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00 Issue 9.0, April, 200

19. Appendix S

19.1 BLP Telephone Number Availability Messages Returned to CLEC

Table S BLP Telephone Number Availability Messages Returned to CLEC

MESSAGE ID	MESSAGE TEXT	NOTES
BLP0000TNR	TRANSACTION SUCCESSFUL. MISCELLANEOUS ACCOUNT NUMBERS ARE VALID FOR 60 DAYS ONLY.	
BLP0001TNR	NO MISC NPA-NXX FOUND FOR THE CITY AND STATE PROVIDED.	Notify EC Support
BLP0010TNR	QUANTITY FOR MISCELLANEOUS TNS MUST BE WITHIN THE RANGE OF 01 thru 25.	Verify that quantity is a 2-digit number between the values of 01 and 25.
BLP0052TNR	MISC NPA-NXX IS INVALID; CANNOT CREATE A MISCELLANEOUS ACCOUNT	Check accuracy of miscellaneous NPA-NXX input. Or if available, try and alternate miscellaneous NPA-NXX.
BLP0053TNR	UNABLE TO RESERVE A MISCELLANEOUS ACCOUNT NUMBER FOR THIS MISCELLANEOUS NPA-NXX.	Try an alternate NPA-NXX for this city-state if available. If no other NPA-NXX available, contact EC Support.
BLP1001TNR	SYSTEM ERROR; CANNOT PROCESS TRANSACTION. IF YOU RECEIVE THIS MESSAGE 3 CONSECUTIVE TIMES, CONTACT EC SUPPORT.	

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-001	
	Issue 9.0, April, 2001	
	· -	

20. Appendix T

20.1 CKT- ID Format

Table T CKT- ID Format

Validate Circuit ID If the CKT-ID field is populated, it must have a valid format as follows: 12.PLNT.123456.66.SB WHERE 12 = PREFIX (OPTIONAL) (1-2 ALPHANUMERICS) WHERE PL = SERVICE CODE (2 ALPHABETICS PRECEDED BY A PERIOD) WHERE NT = MODIFIER (2 ALPHABETICS OR 1 ALPHABETIC AND 1 ALPHANUMERIC) WHERE 123456 = SERIAL NUMBER (1-6 NUMERICS OF 1-999999 PRECEDED BY A PERIOD) WHERE 66 = SUFFIX (OPTIONAL) (1-3 NUMERICS OF 1-999 PRECEDED BY A PERIOD) WHERE SB = ASSIGNING COMPANY IDENTIFICATION (2 OR 4 ALPHABETICS PRECEDED BY A PERIOD)

NOTE 1: THE ABSENCE OF THE SUFFIX DATA IS INDICATED BY 2

Page 157

PERIODS BETWEEN THE SERIAL NUMBER AND THE ASSIGNING

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-001 Issue 9.0, April, 2001

21. Appendix U

21.1 XDSL Loop Qualification Inquiry Response Messages

These messages may differ in text from those provided by the downstream systems in the current architecture and are provided here only as a guide.

Table U XDSL Loop Qualification Inquiry Response Messages

MESSAGE ID	Message Text
006	Address Not Found
008	Call Order Center
009	CC Not Valid
010	CCNA Not Valid
011	D/TSENT Not Vallid
014	Host System Unable To Process Transaction
015	Insufficient Information To Process Query
018	Invalid Input Combination
024	QNR Exceeds Limit
027	Transaction Successful
029	Reservation Not Found
031	Scheduled System Downtime
032	System Unavailable
033	Telephone Number Not Found
037	TXACT/TXTYP cOMBINATION nOT vALID
038	TXNUM Not Valid
039	TXTYP Not Valid
041	Zip Code Not Found
045	No x DSL Loops Available for This Address
046	No xDSL Loops Available for This Address Manual Intervention Available Through Firm Order Process

- continued -

Table U XDSL Loop Qualification Inquiry Response Messages (continued)

MESSAGE ID	Message Text
047	No Mechanized Information Available For This Request
048	xDSL Loop Not Offered for Product Specified
049	RESID Not Found

22. Appendix V

22.1 Calculate Due Date Response Messages

Table V Calculate Due Date Response Messages

Message ID	Message Text
8001VAL	CANNOT CALCULATE DUE DATE FOR QUANTITY OF OVER <\$NUM> LINES(S).
8002VAL	DESIRED DUE DATE MUST BE A VALID DATE AND MUST BE THE CURRENT DATE OR A FUTURE DATE.
8003VAL	DESIRED DUE DATE MUST NOT BE MORE THAN 1 YEAR IN THE FUTURE.
8004VAL	A VALID UNE PRODUCT MUST BE SELECTED TO CALCULATE A DUE DATE.
8005VAL	DUE DATE CALCULATION CANNOT BE PERFORMED BECAUSE CDD IS GREATER THAN 12/31/2000.
8006VAL	THE ESTIMATED DUE DATE IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE WHEN THE FIRM ORDER IS SUBMITTED.
8007VAL	QUANTITY OF LINES MUST BE SPECIFIED TO CALCULATE DUE DATE.
1110VAL	INVALID REQTYP-ACCOUNT ACTIVITY TYPE COMBINATION.
DD01VAL	DDD CANNOT BE MORE THAN 1 YEAR IN THE FUTURE.
DD02VAL	INVALID ADDRESS-STATUS.
DD03VAL	INVALID CNF-IND.
DD04VAL	INVALID DIP-IND.
DD05VAL	EST-SERVICE DATE REQUIRED FOR RESTRICTION.
DD06VAL	INVALID DATE FORMAT FOR EST-SERVICE-DATE.
DD07VAL	INVALID FACAVAIL.
DD08VAL	INVALID NPA-TTA.
DD09VAL	IDD09VAL INVALID QUICK-SERVICE-IND.
DD10VAL	INVALID TN.

- continued -

Table V Calculate Due Date Response Messages (continued)

Message ID	Message Text	
DD11VAL	INVALID INTERVAL.	
DD12VAL	INVALID CLOSED-DATE.	
DD13VAL	INVALID REASON-CODE1.	
DD14VAL	INVALID REASON-CODE2.	
DD15VAL	INVALID HOLIDAY-DATE.	
DD16VAL	INVALID SERVICE ORDER DATE.	
DD17VAL	INVALID SASD.	
DD18VAL	SASN IS REQUIRED.	
DD19VAL	SADN MUST HAVE AN @ SYMBOL IN THE FIRST POSITION.	
DD20VAL	CITY IS REQUIRED.	
DD21VAL	STATE IS REQUIRED.	
DD22VAL	ZIP CODE IS REQUIRED.	
R1125VAL	DDD MUST BE A CURRENT OR FUTURE DATE.	
R1130VAL	DDD MUST BE A VALID DATE.	
U6000VAL	NC CODE REQUIRED.	
U6005VAL	NC CODE INVALID.	
U6030VAL	SECNCI IS REQUIRED FOR NC.	
U6035VAL	SECNCI PROHIBITED WITH NC.	
U6040VAL	SECNCI MUST BE 5 OR 12 ALPHANUMERICS OR PERIODS.	
U6055VAL	LQTY IS REQUIRED FOR REQTYP/ACT COMBINATION.	
01000DDS	CANNOT CALCULATE DUE DATE. DUE DATE ASSIGNED ON AN INDIVIDUAL CASE BASIS.	
01100DDS	CANNOT CALCULATE DUE DATE FOR THIS PRODUCT/SERVICE.	
02000DDS	CANNOT CALCULATE DUE DATE. DUE DATE WILL BE RETURNED ON FOC.	
03000DDS	CALCULATED DUE DATE PROVIDED.	
04000DDS	DDD NOT AVAILABLE. RESUBMIT ORDER WITH THE PROVIDED CDD OR DDD GREATER THAN THE CDD.	

Table V Calculate Due Date Response Messages (continued)

Message ID	Message Text	
05000DDS	INVALID ADDRESS. CANNOT CALCULATE DUE DATE.	
05100DDS	CANNOT CALCULATE DUE DATE. RETRY OR CONTACT SPOC.	

BellSouth Pre-Order Business Rules Appendix	CG-APND-00. Issue 9.0, April, 200

23. Appendix W

23.1 RSPROD Identifier

Table W RSPROD IDENTIFIER

RSPROD IDENTIFIER	RSPROD IDENTIFIER DESCRIPTION
0	Not a Resale to calculate
7	ISDN/BRI
26	Call Waiting Deluxe
27	Caller ID
28	Enhanced Caller ID
29	Independent Payphone Provider (per location)
30	Line features
31	Local Exchange Line (Flat/Message/Measured) Residence
32	Local Exchange Line (Flat/Message/Measured) Business
33	MemoryCall [®]
34	Optional Calling Plan
35	PBX Trunks
36	RingMaster®